Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held at
the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN on
WEDNESDAY 1 FEBRUARY 2017 AT 7.00 PM

Andy Couldrick
Chief Executive
Published on 24 January 2017

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities
Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services

The Underpinning Principles
Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel
efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

MEMBERSHIP OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Councillors
Tim Holton (Chairman)
John Kaiser
Wayne Smith

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Chris Bowring
Malcolm Richards
Bill Soane

Philip Houldsworth
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey

SUBJECT

84.

ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN
To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the
2016-2017 Municipal Year.

85.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

86.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 7
December 2016.

87.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declaration of interest

88.

APPLICATIONS TO BE DEFERRED AND
WITHDRAWN ITEMS
To consider any recommendations to defer
applications from the schedule and to note any
applications that may have been withdrawn.

PAGE
NO.

7 - 10

89.

Arborfield;
Barkham;
Finchampstead
South;
Swallowfield

APPLICATION NO - 162881 - ARBORFIELD
GARRISON
Recommendation: Conditional Approval

11 - 40

90.

Emmbrook

APPLICATION NO - 163444 - 52 READING ROAD,
WOKINGHAM, RG41 5NE
Recommendation: Conditional Approval

41 - 66

91.

Bulmershe and
Whitegates

APPLICATION NO - 163369 - BEECHWOOD
PRIMARY SCHOOL, AMBLESIDE CLOSE, RG5 4JJ
Recommendation: Conditional Approval

67 - 90

92.

Arborfield

APPLICATION NO - 163115 - THE FIRS,
PARKCORNER LANE, CARTERS HILL,
ARBORFIELD, RG2 9JJ
Recommendation: Refusal

91 - 112

93.

Remenham,
Wargrave and

APPLICATION NO - 161845 - 134-146 LONDON
ROAD, RUSCOMBE, RG10 9HA

113 - 150

Ruscombe

Recommendation: Conditional Approval, subject to
legal agreements

94.

Swallowfield

JOULDINGS LANE, SWALLOWFIELD
Recommendation: Authorise

151 - 156

95.

Hawkedon;
Maiden Erlegh;
Winnersh

FOOTPATH EARLEY 15 - 660 WOKINGHAM ROAD,
EARLEY
Recommendation: Authorise

157 - 162

96.

Evendons;
Wescott

FOOTPATH WOKINGHAM 23 - TAN HOUSE
CROSSING, WOKINGHAM
Recommendation: Authorise Diversion

163 - 168

97.

QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT MONITORING
REPORT
To receive the quarterly enforcement monitoring
report.

169 - 170

98.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Act as appropriate.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading.
GLOSSARY OF TERMS
The following abbreviations were used in the above Index and in reports.
C/A
CIL
R
LB
S106
F
MU
RM
VAR
PS
Category

Conditional Approval (grant planning permission)
Community Infrastructure Levy
Refuse (planning permission)
(application for) Listed Building Consent
Section 106 legal agreement between Council and applicant in accordance
with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(application for) Full Planning Permission
Members’ Update circulated at the meeting
Reserved Matters not approved when Outline Permission previously granted
Variation of a condition/conditions attached to a previous approval
Performance Statistic Code for the Planning Application

Arabella Yandle
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic Services Officer
0118 974 6059
arabella.yandle@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 86.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON 7 DECEMBER 2016 FROM 7.00 PM TO 7.51 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Tim Holton (Chairman), Chris Singleton (Vice-Chairman), Philip Houldsworth,
John Kaiser, Malcolm Richards, Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey and Wayne Smith
Other Councillors Present
Councillors: John Halsall
Officers Present
Chris Easton, Service Manager, Highways Development Management
Justin Turvey, Operational Development Management Lead Officer, Development
Management
Arabella Yandle, Democratic Services Officer
Case Officers Present
Daniel Ray
David Smith
Graham Vaughan
76.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Chris Bowring and Bill Soane
77.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 9 November 2016 were confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
MEMBER'S UPDATE
There are a number of references to the Members' Update within these minutes. The
Members' Update was circulated to all present prior to the meeting. A copy is attached.
78.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
79.
APPLICATIONS TO BE DEFERRED AND WITHDRAWN ITEMS
There were no items deferred or withdrawn
80.
APPLICATION NO - 162841 THAMES VALLEY SCIENCE PARK, SHINFIELD
Proposal: Application for approval of Reserved Matters in relation to the development of
Phase 1b of the proposed Thames Valley Science Park (TVSP) for a new cancer
treatment centre, all associated landscaping, access and ancillary works. Application
made pursuant to Outline Planning Permission 152330.
Applicant: Proton Partners International (PPI) and University of Reading (UoR)
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in Agenda
pages 15 to 40.
The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included an update to the
representations in favour of the proposed development.

5

Nick Paterson-Neild of Barton Wilmore spoke in favour of the application in favour of
Proton and Reading University. He emphasised the ground breaking nature of the
application, offering the first Proton Theme Therapy Centre in the South of England.
Resolved: That application No. 162841 be approved subject to the conditions set out in
Agenda pages 15 to 40.

81.
APPLICATION NO - 162818 THAMES VALLEY SCIENCE PARK, SHINFIELD
Proposal: Application for approval of Reserved Matters in relation to the construction of a
permanent car park to serve phase 1 of the Thames Valley Science Park. Application
made pursuant to Outline Planning Permission 152330 (Outline Permission for Phase 1 of
a Science and Innovation Park).
Applicant: University of Reading (UoR)
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in Agenda
pages 41 to 52.
The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included:


Proposed additional condition indicating that the car park was not to be used until
such time as screening had been put in place and approved by the Council.

In response to Member’s questions, The Service Manager, Highways Development
Management, referred to the use of the Science Park in Cambridge as an example that
was used for comparison. He stated that, whilst the application was designated B1, the
designated level of parking for B1 applications would not be required and that the affiliation
with the university would give greater control. He further indicated that the location of the
proposed Science Park on the Eastern Relief Road would offer no off-site parking so that
parking would be controlled.
Officers clarified that information about charging points for electric cars would be outlined
in the Parking Management Plan and that the main entrance to the building was located
close to the disabled parking zone with a covered walkway linking the two.
Resolved: That application no. 162818 be approved subject to the conditions set out in
the Agenda pages 41 to 52 and the additional condition as set out in the Member’s
Update.
82.
APPLICATION NO - 162288 MALMESBURY, DAIRY LANE, REMENHAM
Proposal: Full application for the proposed creation of a polo facility for private use,
comprising of a polo field, exercise track, stable block, all weather practice area, summer
pavilion and widening of existing access onto A4130.
Applicant: Spink Property
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in Agenda
pages 53 to 80.

6

The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included:









An outline of a revision to the plan supporting the view that there would be no net
loss of Local Wildlife Site Standard and/or Habitat of Principal Importance;
Proposed additional condition that no development be taken place until a site
specific great crested newt method statement of reasonable avoidance measures
had been submitted;
Proposed additional condition that a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan
(LEMP) be submitted to, and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the occupation of the development, to include details of the legal and
funding mechanisms by which the long term implementation of the plan will be
secured by the developer with the management body(ies) responsible for its
delivery;
Clarification in relation to lighting, which would be restricted to the stable and
approved prior to installation;
Clarification that no klaxon would be used;
Clarification as to the dimension of the floor space in the pavilion and the stable;
and
Clarification as to the dimensions of the stable housing the office and ridge heights.

Members had visited the site on Friday 2 December.
Mike Spink, of Spink Property, spoke in favour of the application to commend the Planning
Department on their work.
John Halsall, Member for Remenham, Wargrave and Ruscombe, commented on the
application. He stated that there had been a long and detailed consultation in the ward
and that as a result the majority of issues had been addressed. He commended the
Planning Officer on the application.
Resolved: That application No. 162288 be approved subject to the conditions set out in
the Agenda pages 53 to 80 and the additional conditions and clarifications as set out in the
Members’ Update.
83.

APPLICATION NO - 162736 UNITS 68 AND 69, SUTTONS BUSINESS PARK,
SUTTONS PARK AVENUE, EARLEY
Proposal: Full application for the proposed erection of 1no class B2/B8 industrial unit with
ancillary office space and associated car parking, landscaping and recycling building,
following demolition of existing buildings.
Applicant: Standard Life Assurance Ltd.
The Committee received and reviewed a report about this application, set out in Agenda
pages 81 to 110.
The Committee were advised that the Members’ Update included:




Clarification in regards to the levels of job creation possible as part of the
development;
Agreement to provide additional parking;
Proposed update to plans to reflect this change;

7



Proposed additional condition relating to drainage requiring that development be
implemented in full accordance with the approved plan to prevent an increased
flood risk from surface water run-off.

Jenny Lissaman, representing the Association of Central Earley Residents (ACER), spoke
in opposition to the application, citing the large size of the development and its proximity to
the boundary of the site and stating that existing buildings had already been demolished.
She commented on the selection of tree plantings and the need for them to be maintained.
She questioned the colour choice of the roof and sought clarification as to whether run-off
from the site would soak away as opposed to entering the local water system. She also
requested that a noise condition be added to the plan.
The Officer clarified that demolition was part of the application. It was later confirmed that
demolition had been approved in September 2016. In relation to landscaping and the
dimensions of the building, he stated that the developer had changed the location of the
building as far as possible to maximise the distance to the boundary. He outlined the
measures that had been put in place to ensure a mix of planting. He stated that the area
was a core employment area and that as such suitable for such a development. He
indicated that the colour of the roof was illustrated on the elevations in the agenda.
In relation to noise levels, he outlined the distances between the development and
residential properties and indicated that Environmental Health had no objection to the
application. The Officer outlined the additional condition in the Members’ Update as to
how it related to drainage and commented that the concerns raised had been negated by
this condition.
In response to Members’ questions, the Service Manager, Highways and Development
Management, stated that there would be a small increase in traffic but that the shift pattern
used by the company would mean that this increase would not impact peak flow. The
Officer stated that there was no traffic restriction on the existing building limiting night time
movements but that an amendment to the conditions could require back-up sensors in
lorries to be deactivated. He indicated the siting of the original building and clarified that
the new building had a marginally higher roof line.
In relation to the colour of the roof, the Officer commented that the design was of a
contemporary nature and that the Council had recently approved similar applications in the
area. The Planning Department were happy with the materials chosen as indicated in the
plan. He indicated that conditions in the plan specified planting during the appropriate
season and that tree protection methods would be employed. He stated that the applicant
had submitted an External Lighting Report as part of their application and that Planning
and Environmental Health were happy with the findings of that report.
Resolved: That application No. 162736 be approved subject to the conditions set out in
Agenda pages 81 to 110 and the updated plans and additional condition as set out in the
Members’ Update and an additional condition regarding the deactivation of reversing
sensors.

8

Agenda Item 89.
Development
Management
Ref No
162881

No weeks on
day of
committee
Planning
Performance
Agreement

Parish

Ward

Listed by:

Barkham,
Finchampstead,
Swallowfield,
Arborfield

Barkham,
Finchampstead
South,
Swallowfield,
Arborfield

N/A SDL
Major
Development

Applicant
Location
Proposal

Crest Nicholson Operations Limited C/O Savills
Arborfield Garrison and adjoining land
Postcode RG2 9LN
Full application for temporary planning permission for the use of land for
filming, incorporating temporary change of use of existing former
barracks buildings from Use Class Sui Generis to Use Class B1, and the
use of the site and hard standing for parking and storage, with
associated access
Type
Major
PS Category 3
Officer
Alex Thwaites
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 1st February 2017
Head of Development Management and Regulatory
Services

SUMMARY
This application relates to land within the existing Arborfield Garrison, and the proposal
is for temporary planning permission for the use of land and buildings for filming,
including use of the site and hard standing for parking and storage, with associated
access for nine years.
The development area is currently within the approved Strategic Development Location
(SDL) of Arborfield Garrison which was established through its allocation by policy
CP18 of the Core Strategy. The existing outline application O/2014/2280 was approved
in April of 2015 and the area for the proposed temporary film studio was designated as
residential parcels.
The overarching vision of the SDL is to provide a co-ordinated approach to the delivery
of infrastructure and services ensuring that developments are of a high quality and are
sustainable. This includes the provision of schools, community facilities, good quality
open space and appropriate local transport and links. The outline application for
Arborfield Garrison was supported by an Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) which
established how the necessary infrastructure could be delivered. A S106 legal
agreement secured the proportion of infrastructure attributable to the development at
Arborfield Garrison and triggers for its delivery.
The outline application for the SDL secured, via condition, a phasing strategy (reference
152158) that defined that the relevant residential parcels, where the film studio is to be
located, are not due to come forward for development until the Development Periods
2019-2021 to 2028-2030. The application therefore seeks the temporary change of use
of the land for a film studio, so that over this period of time the site remains in use and
available facilities can be utilised. This is common practice on large scale development
sites and helps to ensure they remain secure over the long development life.

9

The proposal includes access off Langley Common Road and does not incorporate any
new permanent structures as it will make use of the existing buildings and hardstanding.
The working hours have been considered and revised so that they remain mainly in line
with the previously approved hours of operation for the residential parcels when they
are brought forward. Where uses are not considered to result in significant harm from
noise or other forms of disturbance, longer hours of operation are considered
acceptable.
As advised the proposal is temporary in nature and makes use of an area of the site
that isn’t due for development in the immediate future. The proposals are not
considered to result in significant harm to the local area and as such are acceptable and
it is recommended that application is approved subject to conditions outlined below.
PLANNING STATUS
 Strategic Development Location (SDL)
 Modest Development Location
 Countryside
 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 5km – 7km Zone
 Site of Special Scientific Interest 500m Buffer - Longmoor Bog
 Affordable Housing Thresholds
 Farnborough Aerodrome Safeguarding Consultation Zone
 Potentially Contaminated Land - Sewage Works (Disused)
 TPOs Served
 Bat Roost
RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following conditions:
1. Timescale
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. Temporary use period
The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the land restored to its
former condition on or before Nine years from the date of this decision.
Reason: To allow the local planning authority an opportunity to assess the effect
of the use hereby permitted on the [INSERT] of the surrounding properties.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3.
3. Plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
Resubmission Cover Letter – Savills (21/12/16)
Site Location Plan PL 01 – IDP
Site Layout Plan PL 02 Rev D – IDP
PL03-PL21 Building Plans
MV01 Arborfield Film Studio Masterplan 3D Massing Model View

10

First Occupations – Indicative Phasing, Land Use with Temporary Income
Generating Zone Plan LUGZ01 – IDP
Land Use with Temporary Income Generating Zone Plan – Overlay Version
LUGZ02 - IDP
Typical 9 month production schedule – Crest
Arboricultural Method Statement, dated December 2016 – SJA Trees
ITL12223-001B R Transport Statement
Transport Statement Addendum, 21 December 2016 - I-Transport
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby
approved.
4. Hours of use
The use hereby permitted shall not operate other than between the hours
detailed below:
Filming Hours
08:00 – 20:00
08:00 – 13:00
Closed
20:00 – 00:00

Associated Activities
08:00 – 18:00
08:00 – 13:00
Closed
N/A

Monday to Friday
Saturday
Sunday and Public Holidays
Late Night (limited to no more
than 28 days per year)*
Overnight (limited to no more
00:00 – 08:00
N/A
than 10 days per year)*
*Restriction – no more than three days in consecution and excluding
weekends and public holidays.
Reason: To safeguard residential amenities. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policies CP1 and CP3 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy
CC06.
5. Protection of trees
No development or other operation shall commence on site until the submitted
Arboricultural Method Statement (December 2016) and Tree Protection Plan
‘SJA TPP 16331-01’ are provided in accordance with the submitted plans, unless
otherwise agreed by the Local Authority.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that the development is
being carried out of trees shrubs or hedges growing within or adjacent to the site
which are of amenity value to the area, and to allow for verification by the local
planning authority that the necessary measures are in place before development
and other works commence Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21.
6. Site Access
No building shall be occupied until the access has been constructed in
accordance with the layout on Drawing ITL12223-SK-001 REVA. The visibility
splays shall thereafter be kept free of all obstructions to visibility above a height
of 0.6 metres.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience. Relevant policy:

11

Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
7. Pedestrian & cycle access
Upon completion of the new access road serving the Primary School to the south
of the site a new pedestrian and cycle access into the site in the location
indicated on the Figure 1 of the Transport Statement Addendum titled ‘Arborfield
Studios Sustainable Transport Improvements’ will be provided. Details of this
access will provided and approved in writing by the Local Authority.
Reason: To encourage the use of all travel modes. Relevant policy: NPPF
Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policy CP6.
8. Off-site works
No development shall commence until the completion of off-site works
comprising:
•
Cutting back of the hedgerow adjacent to the footway on the north
side of Langley Common Road between the site access and Biggs
Lane;
•
Clearing of the footway surface of any vegetation and patch the
surface of the footway where in a poor state of repair;
Once these works have been undertaken they shall be reviewed by Council
Officers to ensure they have been undertaken correctly and approved in writing
by the Local Authority prior to operation of the site for its intended use.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience. Relevant policy:
Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
Lighting Strategy
9. No development shall commence until details of any proposed external lighting
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The scheme shall set out the steps that will be taken to ensure that
external lighting does not cause a nuisance to local residents including future
residents of the site and shall include details of locations on site, on public roads,
direction and level of illumination.
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policy CP3.
10. Travel Plan
Within six months of the occupation of the site the occupant shall submit a Travel
Plan to and have approved in writing by the local planning authority. The travel
plan shall include a programme of implementation and proposals to promote
alternative forms of transport to and from the site, other than by the private car
and provide for periodic review. The travel plan shall be fully implemented,
maintained and reviewed as so-approved.
Reason: To encourage the use of all travel modes. Relevant policy: NPPF
Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policy CP6.
Informatives
1. The applicant is advised that the Council seeks that employers or developers
within the borough commit to using local labour / contractors where possible.
This should include:

12

•
•
•

Advertisement of jobs within local recruitment agencies / job centres;
Recruitment and training of residents from the local area;
Seek tender of local suppliers or contractors for work.

2. Work on Highway
The Corporate Head of Environment at the Council Offices, Shute End,
Wokingham should be contacted for the approval of the access construction
details before any work is carried out within the highway. This planning
permission does NOT authorise the construction of such an access.
3. Mud on Road
Adequate precautions shall be taken during the construction period to prevent
the deposit of mud and similar debris on adjacent highways. For further
information contact Corporate Head of Environment on tel: 0118 974 6302.
4. Highway Management
Any works/events carried out either by, or at the behest of, the developer,
whether they are located on, or affecting a prospectively maintainable highway,
as defined under Section 87 of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991, or on
or affecting the public highway, shall be coordinated under the requirements of
the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991 and the Traffic management Act
2004 and licensed accordingly in order to secure the expeditious movement of
traffic by minimising disruption to users of the highway network in Wokingham.
5. Utilities
Any such works or events commissioned by the developer and particularly those
involving the connection of any utility to the site, shall be co–ordinated by them in
liaison with Wokingham Borough Council’s Street Works Team, (telephone
01189 746302). This must take place at least three month in advance of the
works and particularly to ensure that statutory undertaker connections/supplies to
the site are coordinated to take place wherever possible at the same time.
6. Noise
The attention of the applicant is drawn to the requirements of Section 60 of the
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in respect of the minimisation of noise on
construction and demolition sites. Application, under Section 61 of the Act, for
prior consent to the works, can be made to the Environmental Health and
Licensing Manager.
PLANNING HISTORY
SO/2010/0611 EIA scoping opinion
23/4/2010
O/2013/0600
Outline application for 2000 dwellings and Withdrawn 19/11/2013
supporting infrastructure.
O/2014/2280
OUTLINE PERMISSION FOR: Demolition of Approved 02/04/2015
buildings and phased redevelopment of
Arborfield Garrison and adjoining land for: Up
to 2,000 new dwellings (including up to 80
units of extra care housing). District centre
comprising a food store up to 4,000 sqm
gross with up to a further 3,500 sqm (gross)
floor space within Classes A1, A2, A3, A4,

13

A5, B1, D1 and D2 (with residential above Class C3)), and transport interchange, village
square, car parking, servicing and drop off
area. Up to a further 1,500 sqm (gross) floor
space within Classes D1 and D2.
Neighbourhood centre to provide up to 300
sqm (gross) floor space within Classes A1,
A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, D1 and D2, with
parking/servicing area. Secondary school for
up to 1,500 pupils (Class D1) including sports
pitches, flood-lit all-weather pitch, and indoor
swimming pool and parking areas. Up to
three-form primary school (Class D1) with
sports pitch and parking areas. Associated
phased provision of: car parking; public open
space
including
sports
pitches,
informal/incidental open space, children's
play areas including multi-use games area
(MUGA),
skate
park,
community
gardens/allotments; landscaping/buffer areas;
boundary treatments; new roads, footpaths,
cycleways and bridleways; sustainable urban
drainage systems, including flood alleviation
works.

152158

PART 2 - FULL PERMISSION FOR phased
development of: Creation of two new areas of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace
(SANGS) (In the north-eastern part of the
application site ("Northern SANGS") and at
West Court ("West Court SANGS") including
car parking areas, path/walkways, fencing
and associated landscaping; re-use of
existing
MoD
gymnasium
for
sports/community
uses/centre
(Classes
D1/D2; new roundabout junction to A327
Reading Road; junction improvements to
Langley Common Road, Baird Road and
Biggs Lane; junction improvements and new
access at Biggs Lane/Princess Marina Drive;
re-use and improvements to existing site
accesses from Biggs Lane.
Application for submission of details to Replied 13/10/2015
comply with the following condition of
planning consent O/2014/2280 (dated
01/04/2015): 6. Phasing strategy

SUMMARY INFORMATION
For Residential
Site Area
Previous land use(s) and floorspace(s)
Proposed floorspace of each use(s)

12.31 ha
34,492 square metres
34,492 square metres

14

Change in floorspace (+/-)
Number of jobs created/lost
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces

N/A
300 Full-Time and 300 Part-Time
497
240 designated spaces + 200
‘overspill’ spaces

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
No comment received.
Berks, Bucks and Oxon
Wildlife Trust
No comment received.
Berkshire Archaeology
No comment received.
WBC Biodiversity
No comment received.
WBC Building Control
No comment received.
WBC Children Services
No comment received.
WBC Community
Infrastructure
No objection
WBC Conservation
Officer
Crime Prevention Design No comment received.
Officer
No objection
WBC Drainage
No comment received.
WBC Economic
Sustainability Team
WBC Education Services No comment received.
No comment received.
Environment Agency
No objection
WBC Environmental
Health
No comment received.
WBC Health and
Wellbeing
No objection – subject to conditions
WBC Highways
No objection
Highways England
No comment
Historic England
WBC Trees & Landscape No objection – subject to conditions
No comment received.
WBC Libraries
No comment
Natural England
No comment received.
Network Rail
No comment received.
WBC LUTT (Policy)
No comment
WBC Public Rights of
Way
Royal Berkshire Fire and No comment received.
Rescue
No comment received.
South East Water
No comment received.
South West Train
No comment received.
Southern Gas Networks
No objection
Sport England
No comment received.
SSE Power Distribution
No comment received.
Thames Water
No comment received.
WBC Waste Services
REPRESENTATIONS
Arborfield Parish
‘The Parish Council wishes to make the following comments
regarding the above application:

15







Hours of operation, adjacent to residential properties in
Langley Common Road, and not far from Venning Road,
Biggs Lane and Hill Road etc properties. No information
on noise or light issues provided with the application.
[Officer note: working hours have been revised in order to
mirror that of the previously approved outline application]
Access – the application site is on site boundary away
from Biggs Lane, but all the land in between is in the same
ownership. There is no need to create another access on
40mph LCR. Should be accessed from 30 mph Biggs
Lane. [Officer note: the applicant has submitted a Road
Safety Audit and the Highways Officer is satisfied with the
proposal in this aspect]
Traffic – two issues:
o Traffic generation – 400 space car park generating
38 arrivals morning peak hour. Words fail me.
Would normally reckon on 50% of spaces being
filled. Film industry non-standard, so could be less
or more than 200 trips. This is about the same as
would be generated by the housing that already has
outline consent for the same site, but is tidal in the
opposite direction and likely to more heavily
weighted towards M4.
o Timing – although this development would occupy
land with consent for housing, it brings the
associated traffic generation into the period before
the Relief Road is constructed, rather than after.
Therefore, the number of houses that can be built
before the bypass is open must be reduced by this
amount – about 350 houses. Max build pre-ARR is
therefore 400 homes.

Based on the above points the Parish Council is not in favour of
supporting this application until further information regarding
noise and lighting is provided, the reopening of the access on
Langley Common Road is revisited and assurance is receive that
pre-bypass housing number be allowed to be reduced by 350.’

Finchampstead
Parish
Barkham Parish

Following revised comments: ‘Most of the comments the Parish
Council raised have been addressed however the final point
regarding timing is to be reiterated’
‘We support comments made by Arborfield/Barkham parishes.
FPC has no further comment.’
‘The Parish Council is strongly opposed to this application’.
Concerns have been raised by the council regarding:
 Noise from the development causing disturbance for
existing residents [Officer note: working hours have been
revised in order to mirror that of the previously approved
outline application]
 Light pollution causing disturbance during the night due to
floodlighting [Officer note: again the revised working hours
will limit the time spent working and therefore the amount

16

of light needed ]
Concern raised over the working hours, in particular the 28
days per year which work is proposed up to midnight, and
10 days per year all night working [Officer note: the
proposal has been revised so that there is a proposed
restriction over consecutive days of late night working
which would also exclude working on weekends and public
holidays]
 Concerns over the suitability and safety of the proposed
entrance to the site, the Parish council proposed use of
access off Biggs Lane [Officer note: the applicant has
submitted a Road Safety Audit and the Highways Officer is
satisfied with the proposal in this aspect]
 Request to review Condition 71 of the outline and protect
Langley Common Farm House, also known as Langley
House [Officer note: while the proposal is absolutely
related to the outline application previously approved, the
application is a standalone full application and therefore
will not take into account any conditions or obligations
referred to on O/2014/2280. Equally, for note, Langley
House is covered under condition 71 of the outline]
‘Resident and members of the Parish council have express
concerns that the noise from this activity will have a major impact
on residents. The barracks have no noise insulation and hence
will be unsuitable for any night time filming. The application is for
up to 28 days per year and filming will be permitted until midnight
and for 10 days per year all night working is requested. This is
unacceptable with housing close by and could be a disturbance
for local residents. It is different from working hours of the
development which are 8.00 – 6.00 p.m. Monday to Friday and
8.00 – 1.00 p.m. on Saturday as per Condition 68 of the original
application. It is not acceptable for work to be carried out outside
of these hours at this location.


Councillor John
Kaiser (Barkham
Parish Council)

Neighbours

Concerned was also raised that up to 200 vehicle movements a
day would take place. The entrance is not suitable for this volume
of traffic which is on a 40 mph road.’
Three letters of Objection, One Letter of support. Concerns over:
 Increase in traffic in the surrounding area
 Placement of proposed access
 Hours of working
 Delaying the delivery of housing
 Temporary nature of application
 Noise pollution
 Lighting during proposal
Following re-consultation after amended plans and documents,
One letter received of comment regarding:
 Focus of the Road Safety Audit
 Over-run of footpath upon exit of the site

17

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework 2012

South East Plan 2009
Saved policy NRM6 - Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Wokingham Borough Core Strategy policies:
CP1 - Sustainable Development
CP2 - Inclusive Communities
CP3 - General Development Principles
CP4 - Infrastructure Requirements
CP5 - Housing Mix, Density and Affordability
CP6 - Managing Travel Demand
CP7 - Biodiversity
CP8 - Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
CP9 - Scale and Location of Development Proposals
CP10 - Improvements to the Strategic Transport Network
CP11 - Proposals outside Development Limits (including countryside)
CP13 – Town Centres and Shopping
CP17 - Housing delivery
CP18 – Arborfield Garrison Strategic Development Location
Appendix 7 – Additional Guidance for the Development of Strategic Development
Locations
Managing Development Delivery Document (Local Plan) (adopted February 2014)
CC01 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CC02 – Development Limits
CC03 - Green Infrastructure, Trees and Landscaping
CC04 - Sustainable Design and Construction
CC05 - Renewable energy and decentralised energy networks
CC06 - Noise
CC07 - Parking
CC08 - Safeguarding alignments of the Strategic Transport Network & Road
Infrastructure
CC09 - Development and Flood Risk (from all sources)
CC10 - Sustainable Drainage
TB05 - Housing Mix
TB07 – Internal Space Standards
TB08 - Open Space, sport and recreational facilities standards for residential
development
TB09 – Residential accommodation for vulnerable groups
TB12 – Employment Skills Plan
TB15 – Major Town, and Small Town/District Centre development

18

TB16 – Development for Town Centre Uses
TB20 – Service Arrangements and Deliveries for Employment and Retail Use
TB21 - Landscape Character
TB23 - Biodiversity and Development
TB24 – Designated Heritage Assets (Listed Buildings, Historic Parks and Gardens,
Scheduled Ancient Monuments and Conservation Areas)
TB25 - Archaeology
TB26 – Buildings of Traditional Local Character and Areas of Special Character
SAL05 - Delivery of Avoidance Measures for the Thames Basin Heath Special
Protection Areas
Supplementary Planning Documents
Arborfield Garrison Strategic Development Location Supplementary Planning Document
(October 2011)
Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (October
2011)
Wokingham Borough Design Supplementary Planning Document (2012)
Wokingham Borough Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (July
2013)
Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Document (28 May
2010)
Planning Advice Note, Infrastructure Impact Mitigation, Contributions for New
Development (Revised 2014)
Barkham Village Design Statement (re-adopted as an appendix to the Borough Design
Guide SPD in May 2012)
Emerging Arborfield and Newland Village Design Statement (post-consultation, now
being considered for adoption)
The Council’s parking standards as set out within appendix 2 of the Managing
Development Delivery Local Plan and referred to in para 4.38 of the Core Strategy
PLANNING ISSUES
Principle of Development and Infrastructure Delivery
1. The application site forms part of a larger area designated under the Wokingham
Borough Core Strategy as the Arborfield Garrison Strategic Development
Location (SDL).
2. Wokingham Borough Core Strategy policy CP17 establishes a requirement to
provide at least 13,487 new dwellings with associated development and
infrastructure in the period 2006-2026. The majority of this new residential
development will be in four SDLs, of which Arborfield Garrison is one of these.
Policy CP18 identifies that the Arborfield Garrison SDL will deliver a sustainable,
well designed mixed use development of around 3,500 dwellings and associated
infrastructure.
3. Core Strategy Policy CP18 is amplified by Appendix 7 of the Core Strategy, the
Arborfield Garrison Strategic Development Location Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) and Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions SPD, which
address the associated infrastructure impacts across the whole borough. These
documents establish a requirement for a sustainable, well designed, mixed use
development and make clear that a co-ordinated approach to the development of
the SDL will be required to deliver the necessary infrastructure, facilities and

19

services to meet the needs of the expanded community.
4. Outline planning permission for the site was granted by Wokingham Borough
Council on 02/04/2015. This established the principle for development for the site
together with access for up to 2,000 new dwellings, district centre,
neighbourhood centre, secondary school, primary school and two Suitable
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANGS). These were considered against the
relevant Core Strategy policies and Local Plan policies. At outline stage the
proposal secured via condition (reference 152158) a phasing plan that highlights
when development parcels are to be brought forward during the construction
period.
5. The current application is for the proposed temporary use of the existing former
Garrison site for filming and ancillary uses during the interim period before the
approved residential development comes forward. This is common practice on
large scale development sites where there are existing buildings available on the
site, for example there is similar use at Runnymede. The application is made on
the basis that the area designated for the temporary use has been defined within
the phasing plan to be brought in the Development Periods of 2019-2021 to
2028-2030. By virtue of the proposal being within the SDL and being temporary
in nature, providing the use does not delay the already determined progress of
the future residential parcels, it is considered acceptable in principle.
6. For clarity, while the proposal is directly related to the outline application and
strategic development location, the proposal is a separate full application and
therefore is not subject to any previous conditions imposed by the outline
application.
Site Description
7. The application site relates to an area of land within the Arborfield Garrison
Strategic Development location. As defined by outline application O/2014/2280,
the proposal is located within parcels V1, W, Y, Z of Arborfield site (all residential
parcels). The proposal also includes an access onto the Langley Common Road
Description of Proposal
8. As discussed previously, the proposal is located is the north western point of the
SDL, adjacent to open countryside and Langley Common Road. The proposal is
for the actual use of the site rather than any new structural development, the
existing buildings on the site will be used as offices, workshops, stages and
management suites.
9. Equally the existing hardstanding and open areas will remain in their current
forms for uses such as car parks, back lots and builder’s yards. The main
development work will be confined to the access which needs to be improved.
10. There are two elements to the use, the actual filming section of the proposal and
the ancillary works. From the submitted documents, which include documentation
that provides an example of a similar film studio in Runnymede, it is clear that the
majority of the day to day work take place in the office and workshop buildings
leading up to a period of filming, while filming on the site will be limited to shorter
period (paragraphs 15 and 16).

20

Working Hours and Impact on Residential Amenities
11. While the proposal is located within the existing Arborfield Garrison, away from
immediate neighbouring properties, there are several properties that are located
adjacent to the entrance on Langley Common Road. These include Oaklands
Park, a Commercial Garage and properties further north that are located on
Langley Common Road itself.
12. With regard to working hours, it is important to make the distinction between the
hours of operation for filming and the hours of operations for associated
activities. For clarity these associated activities are defined as office preproduction work, concept design and set construction and are less intensive
13. Below are the submitted work hours for both sub categories:
Filming Hours
08:00 – 20:00
08:00 – 13:00
Closed
20:00 – 00:00

Associated Activities
08:00 – 18:00
08:00 – 13:00
Closed
N/A

Monday to Friday
Saturday
Sunday and Public Holidays
Late Night (limited to no more
than 28 days per year)*
Overnight (limited to no more
00:00 – 08:00
N/A
than 10 days per year)*
*Proposed restriction – no more than three days in consecution and
excluding weekends and public holidays.
14. In terms of the “associated activities” hours of operation, so for example for set
construction, these will mirror the working hours secured under Condition 68 of
O/2014/2280 for the Arborfield Garrison residential development. These hours
will protect nearby residents from the greatest noise disturbance and remain
similar to that of the permitted hours during the construction period and in
accordance with Wokingham Borough Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP3. As
such the proposed hours, which are identical to the previously agreed, are
considered to be acceptable.
15. The applicants have provided a typical 9 month production schedule work
schedule to allow officers to understand the proposal and likely operation of the
site. While acting only as an example, the schedule describes operation of the
site. The first two months are mainly office based with a low number of staff on
site, the next four being mainly for set construction/some filming with a
‘moderate’ amount of staff and finally, the last three months being the ‘peak’ time
consisting of filming and eventually clearance and set removals.
16. With regard to the filming hours, these can be broken down into two subsections,
the ‘hours of operations’ and the ‘out of hours’ operations. With regard to the first
subsection, ‘hours of operations’ these are identical to the “associated activities”
hours except they are likely to finish two hours later (20:00 as opposed to 18:00).
The ‘out of hours’ operations are described to include 28 days a year of late night
filming (20:00 – 00:00) and 10 days a year of overnight filming (00:00 – 08:00).
This allows flexibility should there be overrunning on film production.
17. Additionally regarding the out of hours proposals, the applicant has proposed
there are no more than three consecutive days of ‘late night’ or ‘overnight’ filming

21

and no out of hours filming on weekends and public holidays. The majority of
filming activities will be located inside the stage facilities and the back lot areas
and existing security lighting and street lamps within the site will be re-used as
would have been the case when the garrison was in operation. The applicant has
also confirmed that lighting associated with production filming is typically inward
facing and set focussed and usually (back lot) sets will be surrounded by green
screens or containers.
18. In terms of working hours, the hours that reflect the already approved hours in
the outline application are not considered to cause significant impacts on
neighbouring properties. It is worth noting that development work associated with
the residential development is likely to be more intensive and disruptive then the
works carried out in this proposal when they come forward. Regarding the out of
hours operations, while outside of the already approved hours for the site, these
operations and times will be limited in number and restricted to non-consecutive
days to provide greater protection to neighbouring residents and this is secured
by condition. Likewise traffic generation outside of the core hours is likely to be
limited and therefore would not result in significant disturbance to neighbouring
residents along Langley Common Road. Therefore due to these reasons, and the
locations of the main stages (Stage 1 and Stage 2) being located away from
existing neighbours it is considered acceptable for the temporary nine year
period.
Security
19. As previously discussed there is to be no change to the existing layout and the
studio will have a 24/7 on-site security presence. Additionally the existing security
lighting and street lamps within the site will be re-used. Moreover maintaining
some use on the site will help prevent anti-social issues from the site over the
intervening period when no construction activities are proposed.
Noise
20. Core Strategy Policy CP1 and MDD LP Policy CC06 direct development away
from areas where noise would impact upon amenity and require mitigation where
noise cannot be completely avoided. The majority of the works related use
proposed will take place within the workshops and offices of the site, with the
filming section while being the most intensive also being a small percentage of
the total work and located well away from the existing neighbouring residential
properties.
21. The main Stages designated for use both within hours and ‘out of hours’ are
located within the centre of the development approximately 435 metres away
from the residential dwellings on Langley Common Road. It should be noted that
this type of use is in operation at other similar large sites and officers could find
no evidence of significant issues of disturbance arising at these sites. Additionally
the proposal is temporary in nature and is located within the Strategic
Development Location that is progressing with residential developments in close
proximity. Therefore due to the above reasons the proposals are not considered
to cause a significant detrimental impact or be contrary to Core Strategy Policy
CP1 and MDD LP Policy CC06.
Access and Movement – Langley Common Road Access
22. The proposal for the temporary change of use from the existing Garrison to a film

22

studio and ancillary works includes a vehicular access off Langley Common
Road. While the access is in situ, it is currently not in use and therefore
consideration needs to be taken regarding the appropriateness of its use.
23. As the application is for a temporary planning use, in this case for nine years,
while the access has to be appropriate it is also secured via condition for its
removal. The applicant has also confirmed via the ‘Resubmission Cover Letter’
that there is no future intention to seek consent for this to become a permanent
access to the residential development. Additionally, in the existing Outline
consent there is no vehicular access in this location on the approved Movement
and Access Plan. Should any request for this to become an permanent come
forward in the future, then this would require a full application that would be
subject to review and consultation.
24. Submitted with the application is a Transport Statement and a Road Safety Audit
for the access, both of which are considered to comply with the National
standards and Wokingham Borough Council policies and have been considered
acceptable by the Highways Officer. It is also worth noting that due to the nature
of the use there are variable peak times that fluctuate both in level of intensity
and period of time, with the most ‘intense’ period being a relatively short amount
of time period according to the example put forward in the ‘typical 9 month
production schedule’. However the levels generated are not considered
significant on the local highway network.
25. Therefore due to the points raised above, the use of the existing access is
considered acceptable..
Access and Movement – Langley Common Road Roundabout Development
26. A submission for a potential new roundabout at Langley Common Road and
Biggs Lane is currently going through the design process and it is noted that the
Parish Council are in favour of a 30mph speed limit on this section of road. While
the access for the proposal leads onto Langley Common Road, as this is a
temporary planning application for a change of use the speed limit does not form
a material consideration, only the safety and level of traffic of the proposed
access. The speed limit is being reviewed outside of this application.
Access and Movement – Car Parking
27. In line with Core Strategy Policy CP6, Managing Travel Demand and MDDLP
Policy CC07: Parking, Wokingham Borough Council requires applications to
incorporate car parking in line with the Council’s standards.
28. Given the nature of the use, it is difficult to gage an exact parking requirement for
the use however a summary of the allocated car parking provision and locations
is provided on the table below:
Location
Adjacent to the Water Tower
Adjacent to Building 39
Building 35
South of Building 42

Parking Provision (Allocated)
71 Spaces
46 Spaces
100 Spaces
23 Spaces
Total: 240 Allocated Spaces

23

29. In total 240 allocated spaces have been provided by the applicant, as detailed in
plan ITL12223-SK-003. Additionally, as there is a significant amount of
hardstanding on the site that can accommodate an additional 200 overspill
spaces. These areas are located outside the various workshops and stages
across the site and will likely be used when needed during more ‘intense’
periods.
30. Additionally it is important to note that that the car parking onsite will be managed
on a day to day basis as requirements change through the different stages of
filming. As an example of what level of parking is required the applicant has
submitted the parking provision of Longcross Film Studio (Runnymede) which
equates to a similar level of provision (allocated). Officers have reviewed both the
submitted documents and the Longcross Film Studio information and the
provision is considered acceptable for the temporary application.
Access and Movement – Access to Public Transport
31. In order to ensure good public transport to the site, a public transport strategy
has been secured by Condition 33 of the previously approved outline planning
consent. While the submitted proposal is not directly linked to the outline
consent, and therefore doesn’t benefit from the previously approved condition,
the site is located near facilities that will be phased in over time.
32. While a travel plan has been submitted, it is difficult to understand the
requirements at this time as there is no end user at this time and as such the
Highways Officer has requested that within six months of the occupation of the
site the occupant shall submit a Travel Plan to and have approved in writing by
the local planning authority. This will allow review of the use and provide greater
certainty and flexibility. The travel plan shall include a programme of
implementation and proposals to promote alternative forms of transport to and
from the site, other than by the private car and provide for periodic review. The
travel plan shall be fully implemented, maintained and reviewed as so-approved
Trees and Landscaping
33. The site contains a number of trees, many of which are protected by a Tree
Preservation Order. An Arboricultural Method Statement has been submitted with
the application that includes a Tree Protection Plan. Due to the fact there is no
proposed structural development and the submission of the amended
documents, the Trees and Landscape Officer is satisfied with the proposals
subject to the Tree Protection Plan being carried out as submitted. This is
secured via condition.
Flooding and Drainage
34. Core Strategy Policy CP1 and MDD DPD Policies CC09 and CC10 establish that
new development should avoid increasing and where possible reduce flood risk
and Arborfield Garrison SPD generally requires provision of a comprehensive
system for water management, which takes account of existing features and
includes proposals for effective sustainable urban drainage (SUDS), measures to
avoid flood risk and new ponds.
35. The application submitted is a temporary application for a change in use of the
existing buildings and hard surfaces. The type of use and locations of the site is
not considered to exacerbate the existing conditions and when residential parcels

24

come forward as per the approved phasing plan the drainage and flooding will be
fully assessed. The Drainage Officer is satisfied with the proposal and therefore
the proposal is acceptable in this sense.
Langley Common Farmhouse
36. Following the submission of revised plans it is important to note that Langley
Common Farmhouse has been removed from the application, by virtue of the
revised ‘red line’ now excluding the building. Concern was raised by Barkham
Parish Council regarding the future of the farmhouse, including the current
protection and future use.
37. With regard to the previously approved Outline application on the site, Condition
70 states that prior to the development in ‘Parcel Z’ (where the building is
located) a detailed assessment of the heritage significance and suitability for reuse of Langley Common Farmhouse and the stables should be submitted to the
Local Authority. Additionally it has been confirmed by the applicant that the
maintenance regime approved under Condition 71 of the Outline application is
being reviewed, which includes inspections, necessary maintenance of roofs and
external building fabric repairs to ensure the building remains wind and
weathertight.
38. While the concern from the Parish Council is noted, for the purposes of this
application Langley Common Farmhouse remains outside of the application and
therefore is not a material consideration in this application for a temporary film
studio for a nine year period. However officers are satisfied that the building
remains protected as part of the wider outline approval.
CONCLUSION
The proposal for the temporary change of use from the existing Garrison to a film studio
and ancillary uses for a period of nine years is considered acceptable. The application
will use the existing buildings and hardstanding and will be access of Langley Common
Road. The main stages and back lots are located away from existing neighbouring
residential properties Langley Common Road and the residential parcels on the
adjoining sites. Therefore it is considered that no significant harm will occur to existing
or future occupiers from noise or disturbance associated with the use. . There are also
no significant impacts to the highway network. Given residential development is
expected to come forward at the end of the nine year period, therefore it is considered
that the application will provide a continued use of the site in the intervening years
which will help with security on the site over this term and will be beneficial to the local
economy and employment. As such the proposals are in accordance with the Council’s
spatial strategy and vision and therefore can be recommended for approval.

CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Email
Development
0118 974 6428 / 6429 development.control@wokingham.gov.uk
Management and
Regulatory Services

25

This page is intentionally left blank

27

This page is intentionally left blank

29

2020
First Occupations Indicative Phasing

2020
2022

2024

2021

2026

This page is intentionally left blank

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Finchampstead Parish Council
Alex Thwaites
Planning comments - 162881
06 January 2017 11:33:03
image001.png

Dear Alex
Langley Common Rd,
Former Hazebrouck
Barracks

162881
Alex Thwaites

Greenfield

Comments by 17 th Jan revised/additional plans, 3 letters objecting 1
supporting
Full application for temporary planning permission for the use of land for
filming, incorporating temporary change of use of existing former barracks
buildings from use class sui generis to use class B1 and the use of the site and
hard standing for parking and storage, with associated access.

We support comments made by
Arborfield/Barkham parishes. FPC has no
further comment.

5.1.17

Regards Anna

Assistant to the Clerk: Mrs A. Kent
Finchampstead Parish Council
FBC Centre, Gorse Ride North
Finchampstead
Berkshire RG40 4ES
0118 908 8164
www.finchampstead-pc.gov.uk

Follow us on Facebook
IMPORTANT NOTICE:
The contents of this e-mail are confidential to the ordinary user of the e-mail address to which it was addressed and may also be privileged. If you are not the addressee of this e-mail you may not copy, forward, disclose or otherwise use it or any part of it in
any form whatsoever. If you have received this e-mail in error please e-mail the sender by replying to this message

Click here to report this email as spam.

31

This page is intentionally left blank

Barkham Parish Council

Telephone / Fax
E-mail

Small Oaks
Doles Lane
Wokingham
Berkshire
0118 977 2857
RG41 4EB
clerk@barkham-parishcouncil.org.uk

Alex Thwaites
Planning Department
Wokingham Borough Council
11th November 2016
Dear Alex,
Application Number 162881
Former Hazebrouck Barracks, Princess Marina Drive and Langley Common Road.
Full application for temporary planning permission for the use of land for filming, incorporating
temporary change of use of existing former barracks buildings from Use Class Sui Generis to Use Class
B1 and the use of the site and hard standing for parking and storage with associated access.
The Parish Council is strongly opposed to this application.
Although this is a temporary application it covers a period of 9 years which is a significant period during which
local residents could be inconvenienced.
Our concerns lie with the fact that the noise from this activity will be a huge disturbance for our residents. The
barracks have no noise insulation and hence will be unsuitable for any night time filming and we draw your
attention to Conditions 61 & 62 under which Planning Application O/2014/2280 for development of the SDL
was originally granted. Filming at night suggests flood lighting could be used and Condition 57 of this
application needs to be addressed.
We note that for 28 days per year filming will be permitted until midnight and for 10 days per year all night
working is requested. This is unacceptable with housing close by and will be a disturbance for local residents.
It is vastly different from working hours on the development are 8.00 – 6.00 p.m. Monday to Friday and 8.00 –
1.00 p.m. on Saturday laid out in Condition 68 of the original application. These conditions should be adhered
to for this application and it is not acceptable for work to be carried out outside of these hours at this location.
The proposal is to access the venue via the entrance from Langley Common Road, opposite Staysure Tyres with
up to 200 vehicle movements a day. This entrance is not suitable for this volume of traffic which is on a 40 mph
road and opposite the tyre depot who have large trucks entering and exiting on a regular basis.
It has been an understanding that access to the northernmost sectors of the SDL would be via Biggs Lane. It
would be unacceptable if the opening of this entrance was used as a precedent to create a new access point for
the development on to Langley Common Road, which would encourage traffic to use routes through Barkham
rather than the new Arborfield bypass. We would propose that access to the venue is via the existing main gate
on Isaac Newton Road.
Condition 71 of the original application which addresses the protection of retained buildings, namely Langley
Common Farm House also known as Langley House, must be reviewed to determine whether further measures
are required under these proposals. The Parish Council notes that the application indicates that Langley House
would not be used for the filming enterprise. BPC strongly believes that Langley House is of local historical
value and should be retained for residential use. We are concerned that if it stands vacant and unused for nine

33

years it could become derelict and defeat the object of Condition 71. We therefore recommend that the
developer be required to bring forward the Condition 71 review to be considered at the same time as the current
application.
Therefore we recommend that this application is refused.
Yours sincerely,

Judith Neuhofer
Clerk to Barkham Parish Council

34

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Arborfield & Newland Parish Council
Alex Thwaites
Re: PA 16288 - Former Hazebrouck Barracks ~[UNCLASSIFIED]~
23 January 2017 13:08:20

Hi Alex,
Thank you for your email. Most of the comments the Parish Council raised have been
addressed however the final point regarding timing is to be reiterated.
Kind Regards,
Alison Ward
Parish Clerk
Arborfield & Newland Parish Council
The Parish Office, Arborfield Village Hall
Eversley Road, Arborfield, Berkshire, RG2 9PQ
0118 976 1489
www.arborfield.org.uk
The Parish Office is open 10am - 12noon, Monday to Thursday
This message, its contents and any attachments to it are private and confidential. Any
unauthorized disclosure; use or dissemination of the whole or any part of this message
(without our prior consent in writing) is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient
of this message please notify us immediately. No contracts or agreements may be
concluded on behalf of the Council solely by means of e-mail.
From: Alex Thwaites
Sent: Monday, January 23, 2017 12:10 PM
To: 'Arborfield & Newland Parish Council'
Subject: RE: PA 16288 - Former Hazebrouck Barracks ~[UNCLASSIFIED]~

Hi Alison,
I believe that the below is the most recent formal comment regarding the Film Studio
application at Arborfield. Following the submission of the revised documents, is there any
updated responses?
Kind regards,
Alex Thwaites
Senior Planning Officer

Wokingham Borough Council
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, Berks RG40 1WR
( 0118 974 6431 / 07738 860 907    Alex.Thwaites@wokingham.gov.uk

P

Think of the environment. Please avoid printing this email unnecessarily.

Please note, this email is an opinion of an officer of this council only which is of an advisory nature, and is given without

35

prejudice to any formal decision taken in respect of development of the above site under the Town and Country Planning Act.
Should you require any further information, please feel free to contact me on the direct dial number listed above.

From: Arborfield & Newland Parish Council [mailto:parishclerk@arborfield.org.uk]
Sent: 19 December 2016 13:58
To: Alex Thwaites
Subject: PA 16288 - Former Hazebrouck Barracks

Hi Alex,
Apologies for the delay responding, we were hoping to meet with Curtin & Co prior to
submitting the response but that isn’t going to be possible until the New Year now so am
forwarding the comments to save any further delay.
The Parish Council wishes to make the following comments regarding the above
application:
·         Hours of operation, adjacent to residential properties in Langley Common
Road, and not far from Venning Road, Biggs Lane and Hill Road etc properties.
No information on noise or light issues provided with the application.
·         Access – the application site is on site boundary away from Biggs Lane, but all
the land in between is in the same ownership. There is no need to create
another access on 40mph LCR. Should be accessed from 30 mph Biggs Lane.
·         Traffic – two issues:
o   Traffic generation – 400 space car park generating 38 arrivals morning
peak hour. Words fail me. Would normally reckon on 50% of spaces
being filled. Film industry non-standard, so could be less or more than
200 trips. This is about the same as would be generated by the housing
that already has outline consent for the same site, but is tidal in the
opposite direction and likely to more heavily weighted towards M4.
o   Timing – although this development would occupy land with consent for
housing, it brings the associated traffic generation into the period before
the Relief Road is constructed, rather than after. Therefore, the number
of houses that can be built before the bypass is open must be reduced by
this amount – about 350 houses. Max build pre-ARR is therefore 400
homes.
Based on the above points the Parish Council is not in favour of supporting this
application until further information regarding noise and lighting is provided, the
reopening of the access on Langley Common Road is revisited and assurance is receive
that pre-bypass housing number be allowed to be reduced by 350.
Kind Regards,
Alison Ward
Parish Clerk

36

Arborfield & Newland Parish Council
The Parish Office, Arborfield Village Hall
Eversley Road, Arborfield, Berkshire, RG2 9PQ
0118 976 1489
www.arborfield.org.uk
The Parish Office is open 10am - 12noon, Monday to Thursday
This message, its contents and any attachments to it are private and confidential. Any
unauthorized disclosure; use or dissemination of the whole or any part of this message
(without our prior consent in writing) is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient
of this message please notify us immediately. No contracts or agreements may be
concluded on behalf of the Council solely by means of e-mail.
Click here to report this email as spam.

DISCLAIMER
You should be aware that all e-mails received and sent by this Council are subject to the Freedom
of Information Act 2000 and therefore may be disclosed to a third party. (The information contained
in this message or any of its attachments may be privileged and confidential and intended for the
exclusive use of the addressee). The views expressed may not be official policy but the personal
views of the originator.
If you are not the addressees any disclosure, reproduction, distribution, other dissemination or use
of this communication is strictly prohibited.
If you received this message in error please return it to the originator and confirm that you have
deleted all copies of it.
All messages sent by this organisation are checked for viruses using the latest antivirus products.
This does not guarantee a virus has not been transmitted. Please therefore ensure that you take
your own precautions for the detection and eradication of viruses.

37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 90.
Development
Management
Ref No
163444

No weeks Parish
on day of
committee
8/8
Wokingham
Town

Ward

Listed by:

Emmbrook

WHL Development

Applicant
Location
Proposal

Wokingham Housing Ltd
52 Reading Road, Wokingham
Postcode RG41 1EH
Full application for the proposed erection of supported affordable
housing consisting of 7no bedsitting rooms, 2no single person flats and
supported ancillary accommodation, car parking, motor cycle parking,
covered cycle storage and garden following demolition of existing
building.
Type
Minor Dwellings (1-9)
PS Category 511
Officer
Pooja Kumar
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 1st February 2017
Head of Development Management and Regulatory
Services

SUMMARY
The application proposes the erection of a two and a half storey building comprising of
2no. self-contained flats and 7no. bedsitting rooms for vulnerable young adults aged
between 16-25, following the demolition of the existing building. The building would
provide short term housing (Sui Generis) for up to 12 months, replacing the Council’s
existing supported housing service at Seaford Court.
52 Reading Road was originally a residential property but the site was given a
temporary change of use for a period of 5 years in 2009 for general office use (B1) with
associated community support facilities and the siting of a modular unit on site and new
access (planning reference F/2009/1180). The site was compulsory purchased in the
late 1990’s to allow for the Station Link Road project, but it was later decided that its
demolition was not required as part of the scheme, as such there would be no net loss
of a residential dwelling (C3) as part of the current application.
The site is within a sustainable location, close to Wokingham Town Centre with
excellent transport links. The proposal includes office and residential accommodation
for a member of the management team to be on site 24 hours, 7 days a week.
It is acknowledged that the proposed building would have a larger footprint than its
neighbouring properties and would have a similar height to its neighbouring buildings
although on a lower land level. However the proposal is not considered to result in any
harm to the local character, nor harm the residential amenities of neighbouring
properties and future occupiers of the site. Paragraphs 1-38 provide further details to
these material considerations, and subject to conditions 1-18 the application is
recommended for approval.
PLANNING STATUS
 Major development location
 Town & District Centre Boundary
 Proposed Mixed Use site

39









Thames Basin Heaths SPA- 7km
Contaminated land consultation zone
South East Water
Aerodrome Safeguarding for Wind
Green Route
Protected Oak tree along site’s southern boundary- TPO 1116/2006
Adjacent to Listed Building- St Paul’s Parish Church

RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following:
A. Conditions and informatives:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. This permission is in respect of the submitted application plans and drawings
numbered 981/X01; 981/X02; 981/1.2/D+A; ACD Soft Landscape Specification
PR120974Spec; Specification for 52 Reading Road; Vehicle Swept Path
104346_D_001; Phase I Environmental Report; Groundsure Geosite EMS352357_473218 and; Ecological Appraisal and Bat Inspection received by the
local planning authority on 8th December 2016 and revised plans 981/OD02 B;
981/OD04 A and; 981/OD05 A received by the local planning authority on 22 nd
December 2016 and revised plans 981/OD01 C; 981/XOD03 B; Landscape
Proposals PRI20974-11A and Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method
Statement PRI209ams A & TPP received by the local planning authority on 10th
January 2017 and plan number 981/X03 A received by the local planning
authority on 20th January 2017. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby
approved.
3. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, samples and details of
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
building/s shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. Development shall not be carried out other than in
accordance with the so-approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3
4. No development shall take place until a measured survey of the site and a plan
prepared to scale of not less than 1:500 showing details of existing and proposed
finished ground levels (in relation to a fixed datum point) and finished roof levels
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, and
the approved scheme shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of the
building(s).
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory form of development relative to

40

surrounding buildings and landscape. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies
CP1 and CP3 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy TB21.
5. No development shall take place, excluding any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors,
ii) lorry routing and potential numbers
iii) types of piling rig and earth moving machinery to be utilized
iv) installation of temporary lighting
v) loading and unloading of plant and materials,
vi) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development,
vii) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate,
viii) wheel washing facilities,
ix) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction,
x) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety & convenience and neighbour
amenities. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
6. No part of any building(s) hereby permitted shall be occupied or used until the
vehicle parking and turning space has been provided in accordance with the
approved plans. The vehicle parking and turning space shall be retained and
maintained in accordance with the approved details and the parking space shall
remain available for the parking of vehicles at all times and the turning space
shall not be used for any other purpose other than vehicle turning.
Reason: To provide adequate off-street vehicle parking and turning space and to
allow vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in the interests of road
safety and convenience and providing a functional, accessible and safe
development and in the interests of amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy
CC07.
7. No building shall be occupied until secure and covered parking for cycles has
been provided in accordance with the approved drawing(s)/details. The cycle
parking/ storage shall be permanently so-retained for the parking of bicycles and
used for no other purpose.
Reason: In order to ensure that secure weather-proof bicycle parking facilities are
provided so as to encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policies CP1,
CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
8. No building shall be occupied until the vehicular access has been surfaced with a
permeable and bonded material across the entire width of the access for a
distance of 10 metres measured from the carriageway edge.
Reason: To avoid spillage of loose material onto the highway, in the interests of
road safety. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP6.
9. No development, including demolition and site clearance work, shall take place
until a detailed reptile mitigation strategy has been submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority. The mitigation and contingency measures contained

41

within the strategy shall be implemented in accordance with the approved plan
unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that the risk of killing and injuring reptiles, protected under the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), is minimised.
10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning, (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order with or without modification), no additional windows or similar
openings shall be constructed in the first floor level or above in the north-west
(side) elevation of the building hereby permitted except for any which may be
shown on the approved drawing(s).
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring properties.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3
11. Those windows shown on the approved drawings as having obscured glazing in
part or full shall be so-fitted and shall be permanently so-retained, and shall be
opening at a height of 1.7 metres from the finished floor level.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring properties.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3
12. Prior to commencement of development a scheme for protecting the proposed
occupiers of the site from noise and vibration shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. The approved scheme shall be
implemented prior to occupation of the building, unless an alternative phased
approach is agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of future occupiers of the site.
13. Should contamination be found on site at any time during site clearance,
groundwork and construction the discovery shall be reported as soon as possible
to the local planning authority. A full contamination risk assessment shall be
carried out and if found to be necessary, a ‘remediation method statement’ shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
approved method statement shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details and a final validation report shall be submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority before the site (or relevant phase of the development
site) is occupied.
Reason: To ensure that future users of the site are protected from the harmful
effects of contamination
14. Prior to commencement of development details of a drainage system for
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The details shall include:
 Results of intrusive ground investigation demonstrating seasonal high
groundwater levels for the site and infiltration rates in accordance with
BRE365.
 Demonstration that the base of SuDS features are at 1m above seasonal
groundwater level.
 Full calculations demonstrating the performance of soakaways or capacity
of attenuation features to cater for 1 in 100 year flood event with a 40%
allowance for climate change and runoff controlled at Greenfield rates, or
better.
 A drainage strategy plan

42



A maintenance arrangement for the SuDS features throughout the lifetime
of the development.
Reason: This is to ensure that the development does not increase flood
risk on or off site.

15. Prior to the commencement of the development there shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority a revised scheme of
landscaping (drawing PRI20974-11 A), which shall specify species, planting
sizes, spacing and numbers of trees/shrubs to be planted, and any existing trees
or shrubs to be retained.
Planting shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details in the first
planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s).
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years from the date of the planting
(or within a period of 5 years of the occupation of the buildings in the case of
retained trees and shrubs) die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size
and species or otherwise as approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure adequate planting in the interests of visual amenity. Relevant
policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan
policies CC03 and TB21 (and TB06 for garden development)
16. No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on
the Tree Protection Plan shall be felled, uprooted wilfully damaged or destroyed,
cut back in any way or removed without previous written consent of the local
planning authority; any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without consent or
dying or being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years
from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with
trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species unless the local
planning authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that development is being
carried out, of trees, shrubs and hedges growing within the site which are of
amenity value to the are. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21
17. a) No development or other operations shall take place except in complete
accordance with the details as approved in Arboricultural Impact Assessment
(PRI2097ams) and Tree Protection Plan (PRI20974-03).
b) No operations shall commence on site in connection with development hereby
approved (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, soil moving,
temporary access construction and or widening or any other operation involving
use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) until the tree protection
works required by the Approved Scheme are in place on site.
c) No excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of
vehicles, deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of
liquids shall take place within an area designated as being fenced off or
otherwise protected in the Approved Scheme.
d) The fencing or other works which are part of the Approved Scheme shall not be
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works including external
works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials
removed from the site, unless the prior approval in writing of the local planning

43

authority has first been sought and obtained.
18. The supported living accommodation hereby approved shall be managed in
accordance with the ‘Specification of 52 Reading Road’ document submitted with
the application unless otherwise approved by the approved in writing by the local
planning authority.
Reason: In the interests of neighbour amenity.
Informatives
1. The applicant is reminded that this approval is granted subject to conditions
which must be complied with prior to the development starting on site.
Commencement of the development without complying with the precommencement requirements may be outside the terms of this permission and
liable to enforcement action. The information required should be formally
submitted to the Council for consideration with the relevant fee. Once the details
have been approved in writing the development should be carried out only in
accordance with those details. If this is not clear please contact the case officer
to discuss.
2. The applicant is advised to see the council’s website for waste information for
developers using the following link: http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/rubbish-andrecycling/recycling/information-for-developers/ . It is the developer’s duty to
provide appropriate waste and recycling facilities for future occupiers of the site.
3. Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the
responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground,
water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended
that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into
the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to
connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not
permitted for the removal of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required. The contact number is 0800 009 3921. Reason - to
ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to
the existing sewerage system.
4. Should any bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during the development,
all works must stop immediately and an ecological consultant contacted for
further advice before works can proceed. All contractors working on site should
be made aware of the advice and provided with the contact details of a relevant
ecological consultant.
5. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been
received. This planning application has been the subject of positive and proactive
discussions with the applicant in terms of:

Amending plans relating to design concerns
The decision to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF is considered to be a
positive outcome of these discussions.

44

PLANNING HISTORY
F/2009/1180

Proposed change of use from residential (C3) to office (B1)
with associated community support facilities (retrospective)
plus the temporary siting of modular unit plus provision of
dropped kerb to allow vehicular access conditionally
approved on 20th August 2009

SUMMARY INFORMATION
Site Area
Existing use
Proposed use
Proposed number of units
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces

901 sqm
B1 and ancillary community support facilities
Sui Generis
2 + 7 bedsitting rooms
3
4 (including 1 disabled)

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Thames Water
WBC Biodiversity
WBC Drainage
WBC Conservation & Listed
Building
WBC Environmental Health
WBC Highways
WBC Tree & Landscape
WBC Waste Services

No objection subject to informative (3)
No objection subject to condition (9) and informative
(4)
No objection subject to condition (14)
No objection subject to condition (3)
No objection subject to conditions (12 & 13)
No objection subject to conditions (5, 6, 7, 8)
No objection subject to conditions (15, 16 & 17)
No objection

REPRESENTATIONS
Wokingham Town Council: No in principle objection, however would suggest the site
boundary is extended into the highways buffer.
Local Members: No comments received
Neighbours: Two letters of objection received on the basis of the following:
 Loss of privacy for neighbours
 Noise & Disturbance for neighbours
 Design & Appearance- The building lacks architectural detailing; is not of a
high quality design; fails to create a landmark building in a prominent
location and; is bland in its appearance
 Road Safety- No provision for refuse vehicles or delivery vehicles on site
and insufficient turning space on site which will lead to reversing onto
Reading Road and vehicles parking on Reading Road
APPLICANTS POINTS
 The site presents a great opportunity in respect of this type of
affordable/vulnerable housing for young adults.
 The proposal would replace an existing facility currently provided from Seaford
Court, Wokingham which has 10 units.
 The site will be operated by a management company and the landlord would be

45



Wokingham Housing.
The site is sustainably located and due to its corner location there is an
opportunity to erect a larger building which would address the street scene of
both Reading Road and Station link road.

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP2

Inclusive Communities

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP7

Biodiversity

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

CC02

Development Limits

CC03

Green Infrastructure, Trees and
Landscaping

CC04
CC06
CC07
CC09

Sustainable Design and Construction
Noise
Parking
Development and Flood Risk

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB09

Residential accommodation for
vulnerable groups

TB12

Employment Skills Plan

TB21

Landscape Character

TB24

Designated Heritage Assets (Listed
Buildings, Historic Parks and Gardens,
Scheduled Monuments and
Conservation Areas)

BDG

Borough Design Guide – Section 7

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

Supplementary Planning Documents
(SPD)
PLANNING ISSUES
Description of Development:

1. The scheme is for the redevelopment of the site to provide supported living
accommodation for young vulnerable people aged between 16 and 25. The
accommodation would comprise of 2 self-contained ground floor flats which
would have disabled access and 7 bed-sit rooms on the first and second floor
with communal kitchen and living areas on the ground floor.
2. The replacement building itself would be in a similar location to the existing
building, albeit with a significantly larger footprint. The width of the proposed

46

building would be 11.5 metres and a depth of 16 metres, compared with the
existing building being 10 metres in width and 8 metres in its length. Although the
proposed building would roughly have a rectangular footprint the front gable
would project forward of the main bulk of the building by 1.9 metres and at the
rear there would single storey projections beyond the two storey bulk to either
side of the rear gable. The building would have a maximum ridge height of 9.8
metres at its highest point as a result of the front gable compared with the
existing ridge height of 9.3 metres, but the roof would have lower planes at 9.2
metres and 8 metres at the rear gable.
3. The two storey bulk of the proposed building would project 5 metres from the rear
elevation of the neighbouring property no.54, and the rear gable (located
centrally in the rear elevation) would project 7.9 metres beyond the rear wall of
the same neighbouring property.
4. The proposed 4 vehicular and motor cycle parking spaces would be located
along the eastern boundary of the site and the bin store to the western side of the
plot, to the front of the dwelling. A secure cycle store area would be provided
within the rear private amenity area.
5. The site would replace the current supported living accommodation provided at
Seaford Court, Wokingham which is currently not fit for purpose and in need of
significant refurbishment. The proposed site would be managed by a housing
management company who will provide at least 1 on-site staff 24 hours, 7 days a
week and the scheme has been designed to include overnight staff
accommodation.
6. The ‘Specification for 52 Reading Road’ would comprise as one of the approved
documents and includes details of how the site would be operated. This
document includes eligibility criteria for future occupiers of the site and how the
site would be managed and shift patterns for staff on site. It is considered
prudent to attach a condition to ensure the management of the site is in
accordance with the submitted specification (18).
Principle of Development:
7. The National Planning Policy Framework has an underlying presumption in
favour of sustainable development which is carried through to the local
Development Plan. The Managing Development Delivery Local Plan Policy CC01
states that planning applications that accord with the policies in the Development
Plan for Wokingham Borough will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
8. The site is located within a major development location and as such the
development is acceptable in principle providing that it complies with other
policies in the Core Strategy and MDD Local Plan. Policy CP3 of the Core
Strategy states that development must be appropriate in terms of its scale of
activity, mass, layout, built form, height, materials and character of the area in
which it is located and must be of high quality design without detriment to the
amenities of adjoining land users and occupiers and this is discussed below.
9. The site is in a sustainable location, and whilst it is termed as supported living,

47

the proposal would be residential in nature which would reflect the dwellings
seen along this part of Reading Road.
10. Policy CP2 (Inclusive Communities) of the Core Strategy outlines that planning
permission will be granted for proposals that address the requirements of (b)
Children, young people and families, including co-ordination of services to meet
their needs whilst Policy TB09 (residential accommodation for vulnerable groups)
of the MDD Local Plan supports, support for vulnerable adults and families in
situations such as this. In this instance, the proposal would be in accordance with
the spirit of Policies CP2 and TB09 as the scheme would provide
accommodation for young people aged between 16 and 25 who require shortterm supported accommodation (for a period of up to 12 months) with training or
education to develop the necessary skills to live independently. Therefore this
need would be met by the proposed facility.
Character of the Area:
11. The site is located to the west of Wokingham Town Centre at the junction of
Reading Road and the new Station Approach link road. The existing building is
two storeys in height, detached with a pitched roof, set within a well landscaped
linear plot, with a single storey side covered area and detached modular building.
The appearance of the proposed building is similar to the three dwellings located
immediately to the west of the site, all detached, two storeys with a front gable
projection. This cluster of dwellings originally comprised of a six dwellings,
however two were demolished as part of the station link road project and
although the application site was also part of the same proposals, it was retained
for office use. Although the building clearly relates to its neighbouring properties,
visually it is tired and in need of significant improvements to the elevations,
windows and roof form.
12. Reading Road is a green route, and therefore as well as being an urban town
centre location, the local area and street scene especially is well landscaped with
mature trees. To the east of the application site is a landscaped buffer
comprising of planting and a highway acoustic noise barrier in line with details
approved as part of the station link road development. The neighbouring
properties (no.’s 54-58) have a significant amount of mature landscaping to their
front boundaries and therefore these properties are not visible apart from the
gaps for their respective driveways. No.58 is slightly more visibly when travelling
west to east along Reading Road towards Wokingham Town Centre.
13. Although the site is not located with a Conservation Area and is not a listed
building, to the west of the cluster of dwellings is the Grade 2 listed parish
church. WBC Listed Building & Conservation Area Officer has advised that ‘from
the Reading Road viewpoint (the replacement building would appear) similar in
scale and design to the existing frontage buildings. The new building would
extend further to the rear (south) but this enlargement is considered appropriate
for the corner plot position. The site falls outside the conservation area, but is
located between two Grade 2* listed buildings (Church of St. Paul to the west
and the WADE Day Centre to the east), and one Grade 2 building (cottage in
garden of WADE Day Centre). The separation distance, intervening
vegetation/buildings, and the locally consistent scale/design of the replacement
building suggest it would have no material impact on the setting of any of these

48

listed buildings.’ Therefore the proposal is considered to maintain the character
and integrity of the setting of the nearby listed buildings and would not result in
harm to the views to and from the Conservation Area in accordance with policy
TB24 of the MDD Local Plan.
14. By virtue of the Station Link Road project, the site is now a corner plot which
provides a visual boundary between Wokingham Town Centre which has a
mixture of uses and the residential dwellings which lie beyond the Town Centre
along this main road. The proposed building has been designed to reflect the
residential dwellings it lays adjacent to with a front gable projecting forward and
elevational details reflecting residential dwellings. Whilst it is acknowledged that
the footprint of the dwelling would be larger than that of the neighbouring
residential properties the width of the dwelling would be similar to no. 58 Reading
Road and would in some respects provide a visual balance of built form for this
row of buildings when viewed form the street scene of Reading Road.
15. The overall of length of the building would project 7.9 metres from the rear of the
neighbouring property at no. 54, however as discussed below it would be set off
the boundary and this projection would allow for the insertions of a number of
windows along this elevation at first floor and two dormers which would create a
form of surveillance for the Station Link Road street scene. From the side
elevation the length of the building would be visibly staggered and would relate to
the large and staggered footprints of the Wade Day Care Centre on the opposite
side of the link road and Willow Court along the northern side of Reading Road.
16. In respect of character and appearance the proposed building would relate to
both its town centre location and the residential properties to the west. The
building would be appear almost as a transitional building which would link the
two distinct areas when travelling west outside of Wokingham. The proposed
external materials to be used would be similar to those of neighbouring
properties (3), but would clearly have a more modern appearance which would
enhance the wider character and setting of the street scene.
17. Due to its siting on a corner plot and the adjacent mixed uses to the east of the
site it is considered that the application site lends itself to providing a landmark
building which would address both street frontages i.e. Reading Road and
Station Approach, and would be designed to reflect the size, scale and design of
buildings in the vicinity. The proposed building would bring together design
features such as the front gable, use of dormers and staggered building lines
which are visible within the immediate street scenes and would reflect the visual
appearance of buildings in the vicinity. As such, the proposed bulk and mass of
the building, although notably larger than the neighbouring residential properties,
is not considered to result in any harm to the local character and would be
suitable for this corner plot.
18. Adjacent to the site, along Station Link Road there is a large landscaped buffer.
Wokingham Town Council suggested that this land should be enclosed as part of
the current application to provide additional space and security for the site,
however this land is part of the original landscaping and highways buffer for the
Station Link Road project. The landscaping which has been provided has not yet
matured, and when this does mature the landscaping will not only soften the road
edge for the link road but would also screen some of the bulk of the proposed

49

building.
19. The proposed development is considered to be appropriate for the site in respect
of its design, size, scale, mass and footprint. The appearance of the proposed
building would be similar to not only the residential properties it lies adjacent to,
but would also appear similar to other buildings in the wider street scene. It is
recognised that the building is in significant disrepair and the proposal would
bring the site into a community use which would not only enhance the
appearance of the site but would also fulfil the need of such housing. As such the
proposed development is considered to accord with policies CP1 and CP3 of the
Core Strategy.
Residential Amenities:
Overlooking:
20. The proposed development would introduce a number of new windows along the
side (west) elevation of the site which would face towards no.54 Reading Road.
There would be a window serving the staircase which would be located between
the first and second floor, two first floor windows which would serve en-suite’s,
and a roof light within the side roof slope at second floor.
21. The staircase window is considered not to result in any detriment in respect of
overlooking or loss of privacy to the residential neighbour as this is a common
relationship between residential properties. The landing or staircases of most
properties have windows which may look towards the common boundary
between sites. Moreover, this window is labelled to be obscure glazed and
therefore condition 11 would secure that this window would be installed and
maintained as such. The first floor windows serving en-suites would also be
subject to this condition and therefore no harm is considered to occur in this
respect.
22. The second floor window would be a roof light which would be located on the
side roof slope. This window would not present any harm in respect of
overlooking and loss of privacy to the adjacent neighbour.
23. Although there is a number of rear facing first floor windows, these would not
result in any harmful overlooking to the adjacent neighbouring property. These
windows would be located further to the rear due to the larger depth of the
building and would only allow limited views between the landscaped boundaries
to the far end of the neighbouring amenity area. As such the proposal is
considered not to result in any harm in respect of overlooking and loss of privacy
and would accord with policy CP3 of the Core Strategy in this respect.
Loss of Light
24. The proposed building would be located to the south-east of the neighbouring
property no.54 Reading Road. The neighbouring dwelling has a first floor side
facing window which appears to service a first floor landing, and the closest
windows along the rear elevation of no.54 are obscure glazed and serve a
bathroom.
25. Due to the siting of the plot and the larger footprint it is considered that there
would be some loss of light as a result of the proposed development, however

50

this would be limited to earlier hours of the day and not the whole day. The
majority of this impact would be to the south-eastern side of the neighbouring
dwelling where there are no habitable windows, and only a side access to the
rear garden area. The distance between the proposed building and the
neighbouring property would be 3.5 metres (5 metres between the two storey
bulk of both buildings) and the roof slope of the proposed building would slope
away from the neighbouring property which would further reduce the impact in
respect of loss of light to the side elevation of the building. As such the impact in
respect of loss of light is considered to limited and would not amount to
significant harm to warrant refusal on this basis.
Overbearing:
26. It is acknowledged that the footprint of the proposed building would be larger
than that of the existing building and neighbouring properties. The depth of the
building would be 5 metres more than that of no.54 Reading Road and 7.9
metres, including the single storey rear projection and rear gable. However it is
considered that the proposed building would result in limited impact in respect of
overbearing. The building would be located at least 3 metres from the
neighbouring property and whilst the building would be more visible from the
private amenity area of the neighbouring property, this would not result in the
usability of the adjacent garden due to the prominence of the building. Moreover
the large width of the application site itself mitigates the physical presence of the
proposed building and it is considered that neighbour amenity would not be
unduly harmed as a result of the proposed development. The harm in respect of
overbearing would be limited and would not amount to significant detriment to
neighbour amenity to warrant refusal on this basis.
Access and Movement:
27. Highway Safety and Access: There is an existing access into the site from
Reading Road which would be utilised and is considered acceptable for access
by all modes of transport. It is considered that the access should be surfaced
before occupation and that a construction method statement should be attached
to planning permission. As such, subject to conditions 5 and 8 the proposal is
considered to accord with policy CC07 of the MDD Local Plan.
28. Parking: The proposal would provide 4 parking spaces, including one disabled
space. Due to the nature of the residential use, it is considered unlikely that the
future occupiers of the units would own a motor vehicle and the spaces would be
used either by visitors to the site or by the management staff. Therefore the level
of parking is considered acceptable.
29. Sustainability: The site is located within a major development area and within
the boundary of Wokingham Town Centre where there are excellent links to the
railways station and frequent bus services. Moreover there is a secure cycle and
motor cycle store on site. As such, subject to condition 7 the proposal is
considered to accord with Core Strategy policy CP6
Flooding and Drainage:
30. The site is located in Flood Zone 1 to the west of an area that historically suffers
from surface water flooding. The development is considered acceptable in

51

principle; however a condition requiring the submission of full details of a
drainage system should be attached to the planning permission (14).
Landscape and Trees:
31. WBC Trees and Landscape officers have raised no in principle objections to the
proposed development. The officer advises ‘that proposed landscaping on the
north eastern and south eastern boundaries will contribute to the enhancement of
the Green Route in this area as well as reinforcing the new planting associated
with Station Approach and therefore complies with Core Strategy Policy CP3 and
MDD Local Plan Policy CC03.’ It is suggested that an additional tree should be
included as part of the planting scheme on the corner of the site at the end of
parking bay No. 4. The landscape drawing will need to be amended to show this;
however a condition requiring the submission of a revised landscape proposal
plan is sufficient to address this concern (15).
32. Due to the scale of the works proposed, it is considered that suitable tree
protection methods would be required and this can be controlled by condition. As
such, the Tree and Landscape Officer does not object to the proposal, subject to
conditions (16 & 17).
Environmental Health
33. Noise & Vibration: The site boundary is approximately 82 metres from the
railway track and 40 metres from the recently built multi-storey car park. The
proposed building would be 120 metres from the railway track and 75 metres
from the car park. Future occupiers of the site will be affected by noise and
vibration from noise and vibration however there are protective measures which
can be built into the proposed building which would minimise the impact to the
extent that future occupiers would experience significant harm in this respect. A
condition requiring the submission and implementation of such measures (12)
has been included to ensure that there would be no harm in this respect.
34. Contamination: A Phase 1 Environmental Report (dated March 2016 by Enzygo
Environmental Consultants) has been submitted with the application. This
includes an acceptable Conceptual Site Model and site walkover survey. The
proposed end use of the site does not appear to have been known at the time of
writing although the assessment has included consideration of both commercial
and residential end uses. The report does not identify any potential pollutant
linkages on the site which could present a risk to either commercial or residential
end users. It does however recommend that a Phase 2 intrusive investigation is
carried out to confirm the soil quality and ground conditions if the proposed end
use is residential. This is considered overly precautionary given no that potential
pollutant linkages were identified on the site and so a watching brief for
unforeseen contamination would be more appropriate. Condition 13 has been
included to require a contamination report in the instance that contamination is
found on site during the site clearance, groundworks and construction phases.
Ecology:
35. An Ecology Report has been submitted with the application and concludes that
the development is unlikely to have an adverse impact on the local bat

52

population, as such the Council’s Biodiversity officer has advised that only an
informative (4) should be attached to planning permission.
36. In respect of Reptiles, the Biodiversity officer has advised that the submitted
report concludes that the proposed development will not cause a significant
extent of habitat loss to the point where it will have an adverse effect on the local
conservation status. However it necessary to have a robust method statement of
reasonable avoidance measures to be followed during the construction process
and the details within the report are too vague to be conditioned. Therefore, a
pre-commencement condition requiring the submission of a robust method
statement should be attached to planning permission (9). Subject to the
conditions the proposal is considered to accord with policy TB23 of the MDD
Local Plan.
Community Infrastructure Levy:
37. As the proposal is for the erection of supported living accommodation, it is likely
that it would not be CIL liable development.
Waste:
38. Due to proposed number of units on site, WBC Waste Services officers have
advised that the applicant read the online guidance for waste and recycling. The
council’s website advices that bin stores should be located no more than 10
metres from the highway and a dropped kerb should be in place. There should
be 1 x 360 litre wheeled bin between 3 units which are to be provided by the
applicant. The guidance from WBC Waste services is attached as informative 2
for the applicant.

CONCLUSION
The application is considered to be acceptable in principle as the replacement building
would improve the character and appearance of the site and make a positive
contribution to providing a residential facility for vulnerable young adults. The
replacement building is of a large size and scale however it is considered acceptable in
terms of its impact on the wider character and relation to larger sized buildings in the
vicinity. Subject to conditions, no harmful impacts would occur with regards to neighbour
amenity, highways, drainage, contamination or trees. As such, the proposal is
considered to accord with local and national planning policy and is therefore
recommended for approval.
CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Email
Development
0118 974 6428 / 6429 development.control@wokingham.gov.uk
Management and
Regulatory Services

53

This page is intentionally left blank

RE

58

AD

IN

G

RO

AD

56
54
52

ST

AT

IO

N

AP

PR
OA

CH

site area as defined
by red line
901.2sqm

0

5

10

15

20

25 m

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

living-architects

14 LINEN HOUSE, 253 KILBURN LANE
LONDON W10 4BQ
TEL. 020 8962 6660 FAX. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com
living-architects copyright reserved

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
EXISTING
SITE LOCATION

55

1:500@A4 DATE
Dec 2016
SCALE
DRAWN BY promap CHECKED BY
mg
981-X02.vwx2016
CAD FILE REF
DRAWING NO.
STATUS

981/X02
REVISION

480640 E

480620 E

480600 E

58

168960 N

168960 N

60
60 .30
.3
1

TREE SCHEDULE
TRUNKØ

HEIGHT

SPREAD

SPECIES

1

0.18

12

3

CYPRESS

2

0.22

10

3.5

PRUNUS

3

0.24

10

10

FRUIT

4

0.28

8

9

PRUNUS

5

0.5

16

6.5

CYPRESS

6

0.21

8

7

YEW

7

0.3

5

4

CYPRESS

8

2x0.13

5

7

YEW

9

multi bole

8

7

HAZEL

10

0.4

15

5

CYPRESS

11

2x0.18

7

5

HOLLY

12

0.28

15

4

CYPRESS

13

0.8

15

12

OAK

60
.3
6

60
.3
5

BT

60
.3
62
1
.3
3
bole
60.89

60
60 .75
60 .52
.42

.75
60

60
60 .34
.4
4

he
dg
e

Ht

60
60 .78
.69

=3
m

setts
60.49

grass

6
60 0.71
.6
1

60
60 .62
.7
0

5

C
60 B H
.2 t=
4 1.

60
60 .55
.4
6

9 .4

3
60
.82

e6

60
.9

rid
g

T

T

T
T
T
T
T

te

.63
61
RW

rid
ge
6

5
.0
61

IC
CL60.96

ra

mp

60.88

MB

CB

61.19
T9

ffit
66
.21

co

nc

60.92

re

te

t=5
m

60.82

60.89
DP
CTO

ra
m

60.94

re

60.80

G

RE
60.93

60.83

ve
d

60.79

stump
60.87
stump

60.64

stump

DP

.92

.8m

60

60.63

stump
60.71
stump
60.64

G

60.84

pa

STN5

60.78

tarmac

60.94

60.79

60.81

STN4

60
.94

p

lau

60.63

60.91

grass

lH

60.89

CB

61
RW

G
DP
61.23

168940 N

60.59

DP 60.91
meter

.60

5

so

DPG

60.30

=1
.9
m

T

61.25 c
DP onc
re

tarmac
61.23

60.48

60.73

Ht

T

so eav
ffit e6
66 6.
.14 34
rid
ge
68
.21

60.91

9

T

61.16

tarmac

8.6

T

G
so
ff
ea it66
ve .15
66
.35

CB

61
.1
61 0
.00

.26

DP

STN1

setts

61

so eav
ffit e6
66 6.
.13 33

.8m
Ht

=1

so eav
ffit
e
66 66.
86
.7
6

1
0 .4
e7
rid
g

60.90

8.6

60.99

60.55

85
59. 9.96
5

T

e6

60.80

RS

tile
98

T

rid
g

STN3

SC

tac

59.

RG

MH
CL59.98

00

T

60.98

60 60.
.3 43
5

tarmac

60.

T

DP

60.09

0m
60
.2
3

30
60.
45
60. .36
60

T

.1
1

CTV

1

T

61.06

=1
. 8m

60
60 .66
.5
6

LP

.2
60

T

61

stump
61.04

61.14

Ht

4

.12
60

setts

.0
0

T

61.04

60.52

60.56

post

in

IW

Ht
=1

61.00

ta
k

ab

61.12

60.64

po
r

61.49
T5

STN7

T3

MB
61.44

re

.3

IC
CL60.53

60.90

61

168940 N

60.57

60.81

T6

168920 N

bole

post

stump
stump

61.66
sap

lH
re
la
u

T4

61.46

bole
61.86
post

T10

61.05

61.30

61.23

T7

61.70

61.11

bush

61.58

61.86

61.10

61.24

T8

T12

bole

60.71

61.00

61.35

61.66

t=
5

m

61.67

61.15

61.40

STN6

post
bole

61.30

Ht
=1

bole

60.86

.8
m

61.59

IW

lap
de

site area as defined by red line
901.2sqm

ida

ted

ch
ick
en

wi

168920 N

60

60.65

61.08

AD

STN2

SC

-Z59.996
60.229
60.648
60.860
60.977
61.690
60.571
61.858

RO

60
.2
9

bole

T2

RG

60
.1
9

60.93

SURVEY CONTROL
STN
-E-N1
480634.912
168943.627
2
480628.112
168952.483
3
480626.345
168943.636
4
480623.731
168931.779
5
480612.626
168926.324
6
480597.503
168915.286
7
480620.328
168922.650
8
480601.516
168900.716

60
60 .08
.0
WM 9

tarmac

RW

T1

RE
AD
IN
G

.9 3
5 9 .0 6
60

TREE

bush

61.87

61.38

61.43

T13
shed

61.53

overgrown

61.76

LEGEND

T11
61.69

61.63

m
.6
=1

ed

Ht

168900 N

de
fin

post
bole
bole
un
61.76
da
ry

bo

SURVEY CONTROL

AV
BS
BT
BW
CB
CL
CTO
EB
EC
EP
FH
FL
G
GM
GV
IL
IC
KLS
KO
LB
LP
MKR
MP
MH
MB
P
PI
RG
RNB
RS
RW
SA
SC
SV
TP
TCB
TJB
TL
V
VP
WL
WM
WO
WV

HEDGE

61.72

FWS

STN8

SWS

IW

po
or
ly

FEATURE ABREVIATIONS

FENCE

61.62

61.80

FEATURE STYLES

WATER

61.95
bole

post

POWER LINE
(OVERHEAD)

61.86

TELECOM LINE
(OVERHEAD)

61.84

ELECTRIC MAIN

E

GAS MAIN

G

EMBANKMENT
Site boundary 'red' line interpreted onto existing boundary features.
Legal boundary to be verified and confirmed by reference to Legal Title
documentation.

FENCE TYPES

SCALE FACTOR REMOVED

NOTES

480620 E

LEVELS - ORDNANCE SURVEY (OSGM02)

480600 E

DATUM
GRID - ORDNANCE SURVEY NATIONAL GRID (OSTN02)

W

Drainage and service covers that were buried, obscured or not visible at the
time of the survey cannot be shown. Sewer connections between manholes
are assumed to be straight and only pipes visible from the cover are shown.
Tree canopy measured values are written as maximium spreads.

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

56

BWR
CB
CI
CL
CPL
CP
CW
IW
IR
OB
PR
PW

Barbed Wire
Close Board
Corrugated Iron
Chain Link
Conc Panel
Chestnut Paling
Chicken Wire
Interwoven
Iron Railing
Openboard
Post and rail
Post and Wire

Air Valve
Bus Stop
British Telecom
Brick Wall
Conc Bollard
Cover Level
cable TV outlet
Electric Box
Electric Cover
Electricity Pole
Fire Hydrant
Floor level
Gully
Gas Meter
Gas Valve
Invert Level
Inspection Chamber
Keep Left Sign
Kerb Offlet
Letter Box
Lamp Post
Marker
Metal Post
Manhole
Metal Bollard
Post
Petrol Interceptor
Road Gully
Road Name Board
Road Sign
Retaining Wall
Soakaway
Stopcock
Sluice Valve
Telegraph Pole
Telephone Box
Tel.Junc.Box
Traffic Light
Valve
Vent Pipe
Water Level
Water Meter
Water Outlet
Water Valve

date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved
Do not scale this drawing
All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH
EXISTING
SITE SURVEY

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

1/100 @A1

MARCH 2016
Tripoint Surveys Ltd

CHECKED BY

living-architects

CAD FILE REF

981-X01.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING NO.
REVISION

981/X01

THIS DRAWING TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION
WITH SITE SURVEY DRAWING 981/X01

gross external
62.011sqm
GIA 52.6 Sqm
GFA 48.1 Sqm

EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION

01
Store
G/10
1.1

Circulation
G/06
4.1

gross external
75.264sqm
GIA 66.6 Sqm
GFA 61.2 Sqm

Circulation
G/09
9.9

01

Dis. WC
G/11
3.3
Kitchen
G/03
4.4

Meeting Room
G/02
15.4

Store
1St/04
3.6

WC
G/07
1.2

Office
G/01
15.6

57

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

WC
1St/05
1.2

Office
1St/03
9.1

Office
1St/01
14.9

Office
1St/02
15.1

Circulation
G/06
1.8

Sun
Lounge
G/08
7.2

Store
G/05
1.2

Meeting Room
G/12
18.8

Office
G/13
9.1

EXISTING WEST ELEVATION
02
gross external
32.261sqm
GIA 28.2 Sqm
GFA 27.8 Sqm
A 20117 elevations added
date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved
Do not scale this drawing

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH
EXISTING
BUILDING LAYOUT

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

0

5

10

15

20

25 M

1/100 @A1

MARCH 2016
WBC

CHECKED BY

living-architects

CAD FILE REF

981-X03.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

DRAWING NO.
REVISION

981/X03
A

480640 E

480620 E

480600 E

58

168960 N

168960 N

60
60 .30
.3
1
60
.3
6

60
.3
5

BT

RW

tarmac

6

60.89

24
00

.75

60
60 .34
.4
4

60
60
60 .78
.69

=3
m
Ht
he
dg
e

6
60 0.71
.6
1

60
60 .62
.7
0

5
9 .4

G

60 G
.
60 93
.82

e6
rid
g

G
R
R
R
R

T
T
T
T

.63
61
RW

rid
ge
6

5
.0
61
low
be
all

of
w

p

60.94

be

RE
60.93

pa

60.84
ve
d

60

ta
k
po
r

Ht
=1

CB

STN7

en
cre

168920 N
rs
cre
en

nd
ba
rrie

cle
cy
nd

re
pa
ire
d

foo
ta

g
fe
n

ar
y

H
OA
C

bush

61.30

61.38

AP
PR

61.23

pa
th

ed
ep
lac
or
r

T8

61.05

cin

T10

bush

61.58

61.70

61.11

T4

T10
T11

un
d

T7
T8

T7

61.10

61.24

bo

T6

61.00

Hi
gh
wa
ys
ou

ay
gh
w

as

IW

H

Hi

ne t=1.
8
ce
ss m
ar
y

60.71

pla
nti
n

gs

ch
ick
en

ON

61.43

61.69

TI

61.53

overgrown
T11

ST
A

de

lap

ida

ted
lH
re
la
u

61.35

T12

61.63
61.62

61.80

bo

m
.6
=1

ed

Ht

de
fin

post
bole
bole
61.76
da
ry

61.72
STN8

C 100117 landscape details
amended
B 040117 path dims added
A 221216 rooflight added

IW

168900 N

60.56

60.57

61.15

SHARED GARDEN

po
or
ly

60.52

60.64

gate

60.86

61.46

T13
shed
T14

stump
60.71
stump
60.64

G

Entrance Unit 2

T3
T3 removed

bole
61.86
post

61.76

60.64

ab

61.12

61.66

t=
5

m

stump

T12

61.87

stump
60.87
stump

in

mi 180
nim 0
um

61.30

61.66
sap

61.86

60.78

DP

.92

61.00

60.79

stump

60.83

.8m

re

STN5

60.63

IW

RW

60.94

60.80

G

168940 N

60.81

tarmac
low

ra
m

60.30

to site boundaries

60.79

60.82

DP
CTO

th

60
.94

all

te

fw

re

60.81

stump

bole

MAIN
ENTRANCE
60.89

STN4 pa1200

eo

nc

lin

et=s5
sm
ar
y

co

tarmac

planting enhancements
60.63

motor
cycle

60.91

grass

leH
c

d la
usr
ne
ce

ffit
66
.21

60.92

Patio
garden access

pla

5

so

DPG

CB

Ht

MB

10No. cycles
shelter

60.89

DP 60.91
meter

.60
lin
e

61

cle
s
icy
ith
b
ce
ss
w

60.88

ac

=1
. 8m

61.23

or
ed
air
ep

gr
cin
fen
ry
da
un
bo

8.6

STN1

=1
.9
m

T

61.67

mp

Ht

T

so eav
ffit e6
66 6.
.14 34
rid
ge
68
.21

T

post

ra

tile

60.59

tarmac

61.40

post
bole

te

IC
CL60.96

9

T

G

1

61.25 c
DP onc
re

RS

60.48

60.73

8.6

61
.1
61 0
.00

T

re

Entrance Unit60.91
1
DP

ne
d

setts

2

.26

so
ff
ea it66
ve .15
66
.35

T

wi

60.90

so eav
ffit e6
66 6.
.13 33

.8m
CB

Ht

=1

so eav
ffit
e
66 66.
86
.7
6

1
0 .4
e7
rid
g

T

e6

60.80

tac

RG
60.55

eta
i

85
59. 9.96
5

4No. ON SITE
PARKING SPACES

yr

98

T

DP

60 60.
.3 43
5

59.

T

rid
g

G
DP
61.23

T5

61.59

STN6

60 .55
.4
6

MH
CL59.98

00

T

y
ion spla

61.16

61.44

bole

60

pla

60.

T

is
45deg v

60.99

61.19
T9

bole

3

30
60.
45
60. .36
60

T

61.06

site area as defined by red line
901.2sqm

60
.2

v

e
60.09 hicu
lar
vis
ion
tarmac
s

1

T

°
45

168920 N

0m

IC
4
CL60.53

61

.0m

.2
60

T

.1
1

60.98

61.14

T6

setts

.0
0

T

61

stump

gate
61.04

12
pa 00
th

MB

60
60 .66
.5
6

tin
g2
.4x

CTV 43

C
60 B H
.2 t=
4 1.

3 STN3

SC

60.90

61

61.04

T4

LP

60.65

168940 N

61.49
T5

4

Ex
is

.12
60

SC

post

.3

grass

60.93

covered
REFUSE

AD

.9 3
5 9 .0 6
60

60.49

60
00

RO

STN2

m
tained
2.4x2.4
Existing n vision splay re
setts
ia
tr
s
e
60
ped

T2

61.08

RG

60
.2
9

bole

T2

existing trees on site managed in accordance with
ACD Environmental Arborocultural Impact
Assessment and Method Statement
Identification numbers as noted in schedule

60
60 .08
.0
WM 9

60
.1
9

60
60 .75
60 .52
.42

T1

24
00

0.
62
31
Existing site entrance
.3
retained and reused
bole 3

T1

RE
AD
IN
G

un

61.95
bole

post

date

61.86

living-architects copyright reserved
All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH

61.84

OUTLINE DESIGN
SITE LAYOUT

This drawing for planning application purposes only. Not to be used for
construction

living-architects

Site boundary 'red line' interpreted onto existing boundary features.
Legal boundary to be verified and confirmed by reference to Legal Title
documentation.

14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE FACTOR REMOVED

NOTES

480620 E

LEVELS - ORDNANCE SURVEY (OSGM02)

480600 E

DATUM
GRID - ORDNANCE SURVEY NATIONAL GRID (OSTN02)

Revisions

Drainage and service covers that were buried, obscured or not visible at the
time of the survey cannot be shown. Sewer connections between manholes
are assumed to be straight and only pipes visible from the cover are shown.

DATE
DRAWN BY

58

1/100 @A1

NOV 2016
mg

CHECKED BY

0

Tree canopy measured values are written as maximium spreads.

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

SCALE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 M

CAD FILE REF

981/OD01.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

DRAWING NO.

981/OD01

REVISION

C

Building layout plans to be
read in conjunction with site
layout plan 981/OD01
for sections as indicated see
drawing 981/OD03

85
0

cle
ar

1

OD 2
03

OD 2
03

Entrance Unit 1

OD 2
03

This drawing for planning
application purposes only.
Not to be used for construction

6

ra

il

obscure
glazing

5c
le

ar

ra

5

77
5c
lea
r

OFFICE

lea

r

frd
frz g
r

77
5c
lea
r

KITCHEN DINING

BED
SITTING
ROOM

ds

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

wh

ra

UP

77
5c
lea
r

77
5c

lea
r

77

5c
le

ar

77
5

cle
ar

77
5c

lea
r

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

c
cp yl
bd

il

sin

k

co
o

OD 1
03

ke
r
ov

77
5c
lea
r

frd
frz g
r

en
ba
s
un e
it

ke

r

BED
SITTING
ROOM

co
o

rc
bin y
s

BED SITTING ROOM
sin

k

c
cp yl
bd

2

4

77
5

cle
ar

85
0c
lea
r

BED
SITTING
ROOM

ra
il

9

BED
SITTING
ROOM

77
5

cle
ar

3

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

ra

il

OD 1
03

OD 1
03

BED
SITTING
ROOM

Entrance Unit 2

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

OD 2
03

OD 2
03

OD 2
03

85
0c

lea

r

rc
bin y
s

cle
ar

77
5c
lea
r

LOUNGE

77
5

BED
SITTING
ROOM

il

HALLWAY
5c

85
0c
lea
r

landing

landing

UP

ra

r

7

il

77
5c
lea
r

77

il

UP

ar

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

77
5c
le

85
0c

lea
r

Sh
12 ow
00 er
x1 cu
20 rta
0m in
m with

ra

il

obscure
glazing

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

lea

ar

il

il
ra
Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with
5c

UP

MAIN ENTRANCE

frd
frz g
r

shower
WC
77

5c
le

77
5c
lea
r

59

sin
k

8
77

staff
overnight

77
5c
lea
r

77
5c
lea
r

UP

STUDY

77

ra

co
ok
er

OD 1
03

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

en

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

ra

ds

BED SITTING ROOM

ov

obscure
glazing

OD 1
03

Sh
10 ow
00 er
x1 cu
00 rta
0m in
m with

wh

re
c

OD 1
03

BED
SITTING
ROOM

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

B 221216 Rooflight indicated.
Internal layout adjustments
A 081216 GF window added

section cut through plan at 1500mm above FFL
yellow shaded area denotes minimum 2100mm headroom

date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved
All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH
OUTLINE DESIGN
BUILDING LAYOUT

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

1/100 @A1

NOV 2016
mg

CHECKED BY

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 M

CAD FILE REF

981/OD02.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

DRAWING NO.

981/OD02

REVISION

b

This drawing for planning
application purposes only.
Not to be used for construction

OUTLINE INDICATION OF MATERIALS

1 PLAIN CLAY ROOF TILES WITH HIPS RIDGES AND VALLEYS TO MATCH
2 HIGH PERFORMANCE DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS WITHIN LEAD DORMER
3 SAND CEMENT RENDER
4 HIGH PERFORMANCE DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS WITH EXPRESSED BRICKWORK HEADS AND CILLS
5 FACING BRICKWORK PLINTH AND QUOINS
6 LEAD CHEEKS TO DORMERS

1
6
2

4

3

52

1

5
54 Reading Road

52 Reading Road

PPROACH

56 Reading Road

58 Reading Road

1. NORTH ELEVATION towards READING ROAD
60
1
2

6

3

4
A 221216 2nd floor window reduced

5

date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved

56 Reading Road

54 Reading Road

52 Reading Road

STATION APPROACH

All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH

2. SOUTH ELEVATION

OUTLINE DESIGN
ELEVATIONS 1+2

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

1/100 @A1

NOV 2016
mg

CHECKED BY

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 M

CAD FILE REF

981/OD04.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

DRAWING NO.

981/OD04

REVISION

A

This drawing for planning
application purposes only.
Not to be used for construction

OUTLINE INDICATION OF MATERIALS

1 PLAIN CLAY ROOF TILES WITH HIPS RIDGES AND VALLEYS TO MATCH
2 HIGH PERFORMANCE DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS WITHIN LEAD DORMER
3 SAND CEMENT RENDER
4 HIGH PERFORMANCE DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS WITH EXPRESSED BRICKWORK HEADS AND CILLS
5 FACING BRICKWORK PLINTH AND QUOINS
6 LEAD CHEEKS TO DORMER

1

3

4

5
READING ROAD

52 Reading Road

61

3. WEST ELEVATION

1
6

3

2

covered cycles

4

A 221216 rooflight added

5

date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved

READING ROAD

All dimensions to be checked on site

52 Reading Road

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH

4. EAST ELEVATION towards STATION APPROACH

OUTLINE DESIGN
ELEVATIONS 3+4

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

1/100 @A1

NOV 2016
mg

CHECKED BY

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 M

CAD FILE REF

981/OD05.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

DRAWING NO.

981/OD05

REVISION

A

For locations of sections
building layout plan drawing
981/OD02

75.00m AOD

8

4

65.00m AOD

7

landing

3000

ensuite

2000

landing

3000

1500

9

2500

70.41m AOD

OFFICE

HALLWAY

60.00m AOD

STATION APPROACH

1. SECTION AA

75.00m AOD

62
8

landing

7

3

65.00m AOD
4

landing

3000

STUDY

9

3000

1500

70.00m AOD

1
READING ROAD

ensuite

HALL

DINING

ensuite

2

A100117 AOD levels corrected
A 221216 Section AA corrected

60.00m AOD

date

Revisions

living-architects copyright reserved
All dimensions to be checked on site

52 READING ROAD
WOKINGHAM
RG41 1EH

2. SECTION BB

OUTLINE DESIGN
BUILDING LAYOUT

living-architects
14 Linen House, 253 Kilburn Lane
London W10 4BQ
Tel. 020 8962 6660
Fax. 020 8962 6661
surname@living-architects.com

SCALE
DATE
DRAWN BY

1/100 @A1

NOV 2016
mg

CHECKED BY

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 M

CAD FILE REF

981/OD03.vwx2016

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

DRAWING NO.

981/OD03

REVISION

B

From:
To:
Cc:
Date:

Mike Dunstan
Planning Enquiries
Pooja Kumar
22 December 2016 09:20:46

163444 52 Reading Road, Wokingham
Full application for the proposed erection of supported affordable housing consisting
of 7 bedsitting rooms, 2 single person flats and supporting ancillary accommodation,
car parking, motor cycle parking, covered cycle storage and garden, following
demolition of existing building.
Planning Officer: Pooja Kumar
Wokingham Town Council does not object to the proposed development but has concerns
about shadowing by the mass of the proposed new dwelling on the neighbouring property.
This could be alleviated by moving the eastern boundary fence out towards Station
Approach which would allow the proposed building to be moved to the left to increase the
gap between properties.
This would also ensure better security for the development as currently there is an insecure
strip of land running between the site boundary and the Station Approach fencing.
Regards
Mike Dunstan
Planning & Transportation Officer
Wokingham Town Council
Town Hall
Market Place
Wokingham
RG40 1AS
Tel: 0118 978 3185
Direct Tel: 0118 974 0885
www.wokingham-tc.gov.uk

F My working days are Monday to Thursday E

Visit www.lovewokingham.co.uk for information about events in Wokingham
2013-16 Silver Gilt Winner in Thames and Chilterns in Bloom
The contents of this message and any attachments to it are confidential and may be legally
privileged. If you have received this message in error, you should delete it from your system
immediately and advise the sender.
To any recipient of this message within Wokingham Town Council, unless otherwise stated you
should consider this message and attachments as " CONFIDENTIAL

63

Click here to report this email as spam.

64

Agenda Item 91.
Development
Management
Ref No
163369

No weeks Parish
on day of
committee
8/13
Woodley

Ward

Listed by:

Bulmershe and
Whitegate

Major & Council’s
own application

Applicant
Location
Proposal

Wokingham Borough Council
Beechwood Primary School, Ambleside Close
Postcode RG5 4JJ
Full application for the proposed erection of 3 single storey classroom
extensions, extension to existing staffroom, erection of new security
fencing and gates, new pathways, access door and alteration to parking
layout
Type
Major
PS Category 006
Officer
Pooja Kumar
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 1st February 2017
Head of Development Management and Regulatory
Services

SUMMARY
The application site is within a major development location in the settlement of Woodley
and to the east of Woodley precinct. The existing school is a 1950’s single storey
structure with timber clad panels and flat roof surrounded by parking to its north and
playing field to the south.
The application is seeking full permission for 3 single storey infill extensions to provide
additional classrooms, an extension to the existing staffroom, alterations to the parking
layout, new security fencing and gates and, alterations to existing footpaths around the
school building. The extensions would be located within the main building curtilage and
on areas of existing hardstanding with only the staffroom extension on a grassed area.
The proposed development would facilitate the internal re-configuration of the school to
provide new classrooms. Over a 7 year period the proposal would allow the school to
increase pupil numbers from 315 to 420 and increase the number full time staff from 29
to 32 in line with the Council’s Primary School Places Strategy approved by the
Council’s Executive on 28th January 2016.
With regards to other aspects, parking would be in accordance with the parking
standards and no harmful impact on residential amenity would occur. There would be
no harm in ecology terms and any impacts with regards to Environmental Health would
be controlled through conditions. As such, the scheme is compliant with the
development plan and is recommended for conditional approval.
PLANNING STATUS
 Major development location
 Groundwater zone
 Sand and gravel extraction
 Replacement Mineral Local Plan

65

RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following:
A. Conditions and informatives:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. This permission is in respect of the submitted application plans and drawings
numbered ‘0001-R1; 0010-R1; 0100-R1; 0102-R1; 0110-R1; 0200-R1; 0205-R1;
0210-R1; Extended Phase 1 Ecological Survey Ref: R1529/a; Arboricultural
Survey PJC ref: 3970/16-01; Transport Statement November 2016 and; Design &
Access statement Ref: 2137-EA-00-00-DA-R1’ received by the local planning
authority on 1st December 2016. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby
approved.
3. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, samples and details of
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
building/s shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. Development shall not be carried out other than in
accordance with the so-approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3
4. No development shall commence until a Construction Management Plan has
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The plan should detail items
such as phasing of construction, types of piling rig and earth moving machinery
to be utilized, working hours, material and equipment delivery hours/plan, noise
abatement, dust suppression and other measures proposed to mitigate the
impact of construction operations. In addition the plan should make note of any
temporary lighting that will be used during the construction phase of the
development. The plan shall be implemented in full and retained until the
development has been constructed. Any deviation from this Statement shall be
first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure disruption is minimised as much as possible during
construction.
5. Prior to the commencement of the development there shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority a scheme of hard and soft
landscaping, which shall specify species, planting sizes, spacing and numbers of
trees/shrubs to be planted and details of the permeable hard landscaping to the
extension of the vehicle parking.
Planting shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details in the first
planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s).

66

Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years from the date of the planting
(or within a period of 5 years of the occupation of the buildings in the case of
retained trees and shrubs) die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size
and species or otherwise as approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure adequate planting in the interests of visual amenity. Relevant
policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan
policies CC03 and TB21 (and TB06 for garden development).
6. No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on
the approved plans shall be felled, uprooted wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut
back in any way or removed without previous written consent of the local
planning authority; any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without consent or
dying or being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years
from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with
trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species unless the local
planning authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that development is being
carried out, of trees, shrubs and hedges growing within the site which are of
amenity value to the are. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21.
7. a)No development or other operation shall commence on site until an
Arboricultural Method Statement and Scheme of Works which provides for the
retention and protection of trees, shrubs and hedges growing on or adjacent to
the site in accordance with BS5837: 2012 has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. No development or other operations shall
take place except in complete accordance with the details as so-approved
(hereinafter referred to as the Approved Scheme).
b) No operations shall commence on site in connection with development hereby
approved (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, soil moving,
temporary access construction and or widening or any other operation involving
use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) until the tree protection
works required by the Approved Scheme are in place on site.
c) No excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of
vehicles, deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of
liquids shall take place within an area designated as being fenced off or
otherwise protected in the Approved Scheme.
d) The fencing or other works which are part of the Approved Scheme shall not
be moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works including external
works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials
removed from the site, unless the prior approval in writing of the local planning
authority has first been sought and obtained.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that the development is
being carried out of trees shrubs or hedges growing within or adjacent to the site
which are of amenity value to the area, and to allow for verification by the local
planning authority that the necessary measures are in place before development
and other works commence Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21.

67

8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted details of
secure and covered bicycle storage facilities for the occupants of [and visitors to]
the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The cycle storage/ parking shall be implemented in
accordance with such details as may be approved before occupation of the
development hereby permitted, and shall be permanently retained in the
approved form for the parking of bicycles and used for no other purpose.
Reason: In order to ensure that secure weather-proof bicycle parking facilities
are provided so as to encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policies CP1,
CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
9. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a final
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors,
ii) segregation of construction, deliveries and construction traffic from users of
the site,
iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development,
iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate,
v) wheel washing facilities,
vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction,
vii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works,
viii) requirements of wheel washing/street sweeping.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety & convenience and neighbour
amenities. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
10. Prior to occupation of the extensions hereby approved, a scheme for a minimum
of one log pyramid for stag beetles shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. The design of the scheme shall be in accordance
with the design standards of People’s Trust fir Endangered Species fact sheet.
Reason: To provide wildlife enhancements in the course of the development for a
local species of principal importance, as per NPPF.
11. Prior to commencement of development a Drainage Strategy Plan, indicating
how the proposed extensions shall link into the existing drainage system shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The plan
shall be implemented in full and any deviation from the plan shall be first
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase flood risk on
or off site.
12. No part of any building(s) hereby permitted shall be occupied or used until
the vehicle parking space has been provided in accordance with the
approved plans. The vehicle parking space shall be permanently
maintained and remain available for the parking of vehicles at all times.
Reason: To ensure adequate on-site parking provision in the interests of

68

highway safety, convenience and amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan
policy CC07.
13. Prior to the occupation of the extensions hereby approved an updated
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The travel plan shall include a programme of
implementation and proposals to promote alternative forms of transport to
and from the site, other than by the private car and provide for periodic
review. The travel plan shall be fully implemented, maintained and
reviewed as so-approved.
Reason: To encourage the use of all travel modes. Relevant policy: NPPF
Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policy CP6.
Informatives
1. The applicant is reminded that this approval is granted subject to conditions
which must be complied with prior to the development starting on site.
Commencement of the development without complying with the precommencement requirements may be outside the terms of this permission and
liable to enforcement action. The information required should be formally
submitted to the Council for consideration with the relevant fee. Once the details
have been approved in writing the development should be carried out only in
accordance with those details. If this is not clear please contact the case officer
to discuss.
2. The requisite Travel plan would need to comply with the latest national and local
guidance:
1) NPPF Section 4 (Sustainable Transport)
2) The Essential Guide to Travel Planning (DfT, March 2008)
3) Delivering Travel Plans Through the Planning Process (DfT, April 2009)
4) A Guide on Travel Plans for Developers (DfT)
5) Making Residential Travel Plans Work (DfT, June 2007) All accessible at:
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/sustainable/travelplans/
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/improving-local-transport
Also:
WBC Transport Plan 3 and Active Travel Plan 2011 – 2026
WBC Workplace Travel Plan Guidance and Residential Travel Plan Guidance
Documents, covering workplace travel plans and residential travel plans provide
local guidance and are available on the Borough’s website.
3. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been
received. This planning application has been the subject of positive and proactive
discussions with the applicant in terms of:
- a pre-application process was undertaken by the applicant;
The decision to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF is considered to be a
positive outcome of these discussions.

69

PLANNING HISTORY
The site has an extensive planning history relating to various extensions at the school
and adjacent nursery. None of the history is relevant to the current application.
SUMMARY INFORMATION
Site Area
Existing Pupils
Proposed Pupils
Existing Staff
Existing Staff
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces
Existing & Proposed Cycle spaces
Proposed Scooter spaces
CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Thames Water
WBC Biodiversity
WBC Drainage
WBC Education
WBC Environmental Health
WBC Highways
WBC Tree & Landscape
WBC Waste Services

2.1 hectares
315
420 (over a period of 7 years)
29 Full-time and 25 Part-time
32 Full-time and 26 Part-time
28
32
40
35

No comments received
No objection
No objection subject to conditions (5 &11)
No objection
No objection subject to condition (4)
No objection subject to conditions (8 & 9)
No objection subject to conditions (5, 6 & 7)
No comments received

REPRESENTATIONS
Woodley Town Council: No objections
Local Members: No comments received
Neighbours: No comments received
APPLICANTS POINTS
 The extensions are only infill and minor in respect of their size and scale, with
most alterations not visible from outside of the site
 The proposal would provide additional space within the school to create school
spaces for local residents
 The proposal would not harm the residential amenities of neighbouring properties
PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP2

Inclusive Communities

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP7

Biodiversity

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

70

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

Supplementary Planning Documents
(SPD)

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

CC02

Development Limits

CC03
CC06
CC07
CC09

Green Infrastructure, Trees and
Landscaping
Noise
Parking
Development and Flood Risk

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB21

Landscape Character

BDG

Borough Design Guide

PLANNING ISSUES
Description of Development:
1. The scheme is for extensions at Beechwood Primary School to provide additional
classrooms, a larger staffroom and associated works within the wider school
complex with internal alterations to facilitate the increase of students by 105 over
a 7 year period. The increase in student numbers would be 15 per school
calendar between 2016 and 2022.The proposed extensions would allow for each
year group to eventually have 2 classrooms.
2. The extensions would comprise of three single storey infill mono pitched
extensions for create classrooms and corridors and a single storey mono pitched
extension to the existing staffroom. There would be a new pathway along the
northern side of the school which would have security fencing around it to allow
safe and secure access for pupils. Due to the siting of the extensions, two
existing sheds would need to be relocated to the site’s eastern boundary.
3. Parking provision would be made within the existing area of parking. To the north
western side of the car park there is an informal area of parking which would be
tarmacked and extended over a ditch to provide 4 additional parking spaces.
Principle of Development:
4. The National Planning Policy Framework has an underlying presumption in
favour of sustainable development which is carried through to the local
Development Plan. The Managing Development Delivery Local Plan Policy CC01
states that planning applications that accord with the policies in the Development
Plan for Wokingham Borough will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
5. Paragraph 72 of the NPPF states that great importance should be attached to
ensuring that sufficient choice of school places are available to meet the needs of
existing and new communities. It also states that Local Planning Authorities
should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting this
requirement, and should look to approve development that will widen choice in
education. The NPPF states that weight should be given to the need to create,
expand or alter schools.

71

6. The site is located within a major development location and within a settlement
boundary and as such the development should be acceptable providing that it
complies with the principles stated in the Core Strategy. Policy CP3 of the Core
Strategy states that development must be appropriate in terms of its scale of
activity, mass, layout, built form, height, materials and character to the area in
which it is located and must be of high quality design without detriment to the
amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers and this is discussed below.
7. Given the national and local policy context, it is considered that the proposal
would be acceptable subject to the assessment of other material considerations.
These include no adverse impact on character of the area or setting of the listed
building, the retention of suitable play space, and no adverse impacts on traffic,
highways safety, neighbouring amenity, biodiversity, or sustainability.
Education:
8. The proposal to expand Beechwood Primary School was agreed by the
Council’s Executive on 28th January 2016 to be part of the Council’s
Primary School Places Strategy. The purpose of the Primary Strategy is to
ensure there are sufficient primary school places to meet need in identified
priority areas. For the Woodley area the strategy concluded that 60
additional places per year were required, 30 of which would be provided at
Beechwood Primary School and 30 at Highwood Primary School. As such,
WBC Education raise no objection to the proposal.
Character of the Area:
9. The existing building is a single storey flat roof building, uniformly faced with
curtain walling and timber clad panels, typical of 1950’s schools. The area to the
north of the building is the main car park with a single vehicle entry point and two
pedestrian accesses, to the south and east lay the playgrounds and playing
fields. The wider area comprises of Woodley precinct to the north and west and
residential dwellings to the east and south. The site has an abundance of mature
trees both around the buildings and car park, but also around the site’s
boundaries. Some of the trees around the main school building will be removed
to facilitate the development.
10. The extensions would be of an appropriate size and scale in relation to the main
school building. The extensions would infill areas within the main school complex
and would not extend significantly away from the original building (please refer to
drawing no. 0010-R1 Proposed Site Plan). The roof of the extensions would be
flat, sloping rooves with heights between 4 and 5.5 metres, providing a more
interesting roof scape for the school building without resulting in detriment to the
same.
11. A new addition to the roof scape of the school building would be ventilation
stacks proposed on both the new and original classrooms. The ventilation stacks
project above the roof line of the building by 0.8 metres and would be of a colour
which coordinates with the external finishes of the proposed extensions, and thus
would not result in any harm to the appearance of the school from neighbouring
properties.

72

12. In respect of character and appearance the proposed extensions and alterations
would relate to the existing use and would not result in any harm or detriment.
The size and scale of the extensions would be reflective of the original building
and would not project significantly away from the original footprint of the building.
Although it is noted that the proposed materials would be different to those of the
original building, a condition requiring the submission of samples of materials has
been included above (3) to ensure their acceptability.
13. In addition the external alterations to the footpaths and parking would not harm
the character of the school site. The proposal would require the loss of a
Category C1 Cherry Tree to facilitate the staff room extension and the removal of
a Category B1 Norway Maple tree to facilitate on classroom extension. WBC
Trees and Landscape officer has raised no objection to this due to the applicant
proposing to plant two replacement trees of suitable species and sizes.
Moreover, the majority of the trees around the sites boundary would be retained
to ensure that the same level of screening is available for residential neighbours
and therefore in respect of character and appearance the proposal would not
result in any harm.
14. The extensions and alterations are modest additions to the school and would not
be out of character nor result in any harm to the appearance of the site. Although
the extensions would be finished with alternative materials and colours this would
not detract from the character of the school site and it is considered that the
proposal would accord with policy CP3 of the Core Strategy.
Residential Amenities:
15. The closest residential properties that could potentially be impacted are those
located to the east of the site along Ambleside Close and Arundel Road. The
proposed extensions would not result in any harm in respect of overlooking, loss
of light and overbearing due to the siting of the extensions within the main school
building which would be located 25 metres from the nearest residential property
in Ambleside Close and 45 metres away from the nearest residential property in
Arundel Road..
16. As a result of the proposed increase in the number of students over the years it is
considered that the increase in noise from children playing in the grounds of the
school would not be significant to the extent to warrant a refusal on this basis.
The increase would be limited and the Council’s Environmental Health officers
have raised no objections to the proposal on this basis. As such the proposed
development would accord with policy CP3 of the Core Strategy in respect of
neighbour amenity.
Access and Movement:
17. Traffic Generation: The proposal would increase the number of students and
staff; however the proposed level of increase is limited and would not have an
adverse impact on the highway network.
18. Highway Safety and Access: There is an existing vehicular access onto site
from Ambleside Close which would be used by construction vehicles. A

73

framework construction method statement has been provided; however the
document should include details such as the segregation of construction, delivery
and construction traffic from users of the site and whether or not wheel
washing/street sweeping would be required. The submitted document should be
updated and re-submitted as required by condition (9).
19. Parking: The proposal would result in the increase of 4 car parking spaces for 3
full time and 1 part time staff is in line with the Borough Standards and therefore
acceptable. The formalising of the existing gravel parking area is also welcomed.
As such the proposal accords with policy CC07 of the MDD Local Plan.
20. Cycle: There was no information provided on the number of cycle spaces for
staff or their location. In addition, no details of visitor cycle spaces have been
provided within the application. The School has confirmed that it is their intention
to provide 10 cycle spaces for staff in line with the Borough’s standards and
additional visitor spaces would also be provided. A condition (8) to request the
submission of cycle parking has been included above to ensure the proposal
accords with policy CC07 of the MDD Local Plan.
21. Sustainability: The site is already well served by public transport and is within
suitable distance to rail and road links and as such, no objection is raised.
22. Travel Plan: There is an existing Travel Plan for the school, which the School
and the Borough are currently in the process of updating for September 2017.
The Travel Plan would monitor the number of cycle spaces as well as vehicle
spaces which is considered acceptable. A condition requiring the submission of
the updated Travel Plan is attached in the suggested conditions (12).
Flooding and Drainage:
23. The submitted design & access statement identifies that the site currently drains
via soakaways and the proposed extension areas are largely on existing paved
area. Therefore the areas of impermeable surfacing would not be harmfully
increased as a result of the proposed extensions. The plans indicate that the
proposed car park extension would be tarmacked; however it is considered that a
permeable material could be used instead to ensure no increase of surface water
flooding within or outside of the site. As such details of hard landscaping have
been requested by condition (5) in addition to a condition requiring the
submission of a Drainage Strategy Plan (11). The car park extension would be
over the existing ditch in the north-west corner of the site however this will not
have any implication on flood risk and drainage.
Landscape and Trees:
24. The proposed development would sit within an established school. Views into the
school are restricted due to the heavy screening around the site’s boundaries,
which will remain unchanged as a result of the proposal and therefore the public
perception of the character of the school will remain unaltered.
25. The extensions will result in the loss of three trees (two category B trees and one
category C tree), two of which are proposed to be replaced. WBC Trees and
Landscape officer has advised that two replacement trees are sufficient in this

74

instance and that the replacement trees should be of an appropriate scale and
species details of which need to be submitted (5).
26. To the North West corner of the site an extension to the car park is proposed.
This area comprises of a number of mature trees which provide screening to the
front area of the school and Ambleside Nursery. Although the trees are unlikely
to be adversely affect from the car park extension the a condition requiring a
survey of these trees, including any necessary protection measures or replanting has been suggested by WBC Landscape & Trees officer (7).
27. A condition requiring the retention of trees is required in line with MDD Local Plan
policy CC03 (6). Subject to condition 5-7 it is considered that the proposed
development would accord with policy CP3 of the Core Strategy and policies
CC03 and TB21 of the MDD Local Plan.
Environmental Health
28. Due to the location of the site within a residential area, the Council’s
Environmental Health officers have advised that a Construction management
plan should be submitted to ensure that the development does not harm
residential amenities during the construction phase. As such a condition (4) has
been attached requiring the submission of Construction Management Plan.
Ecology:
29. An Ecology Report has been submitted with the application and concludes that
due to the dominance of hard standing and buildings the site is of low ecological
value. The Ecology Officer has considered this report and raises no objection to
the application. The officer has advised the applicant to consider wildlife
enhancements for Stag Beetles, this has been secured by condition (10). As
such the proposed development is considered to accord with policy CP7 of the
Core Strategy and policy TB23 of the MDD Local Plan.
Community Infrastructure Levy:
30. As the proposal is for the construction of extensions at a school, it would not be
CIL liable development.
CONCLUSION
The proposed development is considered acceptable in principle and of an appropriate
size, scale and design to accord with local plan policies. The proposed staggered
increase of student and staff numbers is considered acceptable in this location. Subject
to conditions, no harmful impacts would occur with regards to highways, drainage,
contamination or trees. As such, the proposal is considered to accord with local and
national planning policy and is therefore recommended for approval.
CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Email
Development
0118 974 6428 / 6429 development.control@wokingham.gov.uk
Management and
Regulatory Services

75

This page is intentionally left blank

General Notes

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited
SI T
EB

LI BR

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

ARY

Y
AR
ND
OU

AMBLESIDE CLOSE

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

RO
AD

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.

AR
UN
DE
L

CAR PARKING AREA

5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.
CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015
PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

CANOP
Y

NORTH

SUS

SURG
ERY

DISABLED CAR PARKING
E
SIT
RY
DA
UN
BO

GAR
DEN
S

CAR
PARK

CROC
KHAM
WELL
ROAD
TARMAC PLAYGROUND

BEECHWOOD
PRIMARY SCHOOL

SE X

Location Plan
02 1Site
: 1250

25m

0m

50m

75m

100m

125m

VISUAL SCALE 1:1250 @ A1

CANOP
Y

77

BEECHWOOD PRIMARY

CANOP
Y

Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers
Client

Wokingham Borough Council

BEECHWOOD PRIMARY SCHOOL

Project Title

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ

Block Plan
03 Site
1 : 500
0m

01
0m

Existing Site Layout Plan

VISUAL SCALE 1:500 @ A1

1 : 200

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

30m

40m

50m

EXISTING SITE LOCATION PLANS
ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

Date

2137

As indicated @ A1

23-08-2016

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC

20m

SITE BOUNDA
RY
VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ A1

10m

Drawing Title / Description

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Rev.

A 0001 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

SWIMMING
POOL

TARMAC SURFACE EXTENDED TO
TOP OF EXISTING SHALLOW DITCH

CROSSING

2

23

22

21

24

26

25

27

9

28
CROSSING
7

EXISTING CONCRETE/GRAVEL
AREA TO BE TARMAC SURFACED
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL CAR
PARKING FACILITY
EXISTING TREES
(SHOWN IN
APPROX.
LOCATIONS)

3

4

8

YELLOW HATCHING TO
FRONT OF ACCESS GATE

18

PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION

1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

A
ND
RY

HATCHED AREA DENOTES EXTENT OF
NEW PERMEABLE SURFACING
SOLUTION

FORM OPENING IN EXISTING
FENCELINE AND TIE INTO
NEW WELD-MESH FENCE

31
22

NORTH

OU

21

3

PROPOSED NEW PERMIABLE
PATHWAY AND 2m HIGH GREEN
WELD-MESH SECURITY FENCING TO
MATCH EXISTING

EB

NEW
DOOR

2

11

HEDGE TO BE RETAINED

20
30

10

17

The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.

16

PAVEMENT /
WALKWAY

1

9

EXISTING CHAIN LINK FENCE
AND GATE TO BE RETAINED

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

19
CROSSING

16

5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

No. 7

29
17

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.

ENTRANCE
GATES

SI T

18

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

15

15
19

8

7

6

5

11

10

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

ENTRANCE FROM
AMBLESIDE CLOSE

13

12

STOP

20

General Notes

14

1

GRASSED AREA TO BE REDUCED AND
TARMAC SURFACING EXTENDED OVER

32

EXISTING CABIN TO BE RETAINED

4

23

12

EXISTING ACCESS
GATE RETAINED

33
5

24

34

13
6

PROPOSED STAFF
ROOM EXTENSION

25

35

AMBLESIDE
CENTRE ENTRANCE

0m

WATER TANK
HOUSING

26

4 NO. DISABLED CAR
PARKING SPACES

27

CANOPY
OVER
MAIN
ENTRANCE

4m

8m

20m

16m

12m

VISUAL SCALE 1:200 @ A1

EXISTING CYCLE
STORAGE SHEDS

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACKS

28
14

36

37

38

PAVEMENT /
WALKWAY
SIT
Y
AR
ND
OU

EB

WATER TANK
HOUSING

PAVEMENT /
WALKWAY

NOTE. EXISTING PV NOT INDICATED
ON THIS PLAN. FOR DETAILS OF ALL
PV PANELS, SEE DRAWINGS
2137.0101 AND 2137.0102

EXISTING TREE TO
BE REMOVED
SHOWN DASHED
NEW HARD LANDSCAPED
AREA IN FRONT OF NEW
STAFF ROOM EXTENSION

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

78

PROPOSED
ROOF LIGHTS

EXISTING SHED TO BE RELOCATED ADJ. EXISTING
OUTBUILDING

STORE

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

PROPOSED
CLASSROOM
EXTENSION

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

AMBLESIDE
CENTRE

EXISTING SHEDS TO BE
REMOVED / RELOCATED
ON-SITE WHERE INDICATED

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

EXISTING SHED TO BE RELOCATED ADJ. GARAGES

PROPOSED
ROOF
LIGHTS

GARAGE

EXISTING NATURE
GARDEN AREA
PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

WATER TANK
HOUSING

Date

Item

Ch'kd

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

Client

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ

NATURE
GARDEN

Drawing Title / Description

PROPOSED SITE PLANS

FORM NEW PATH
FORM NEW PATH

ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

2137

Site Plan
01 Proposed
1 : 200

By

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers

PROPOSED
CLASSROOM
EXTENSION

CANOPY

Rev
Revisions

PROPOSED NATURAL
VENTILATION STACK

BEECHWOOD
PRIMARY SCHOOL
NATURE
GARDEN

EXISTING TREE TO BE
REMOVED

Status Code

PROPOSED NEW
ROOFLIGHTS

CANOPY

GARAGE

REPLACEMENT
TREE

WATER TANK
HOUSING

PROPOSED
CLASSROOM
EXTENSION

EXISTING PLAYGROUND

EXISTING TREE TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN
DASHED (REPLACEMENT
PROVIDED)

DASHED LINE INDICATES
ROOT PROTECTION AREAS

Date

1 : 200 @ A1

23-08-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC
Rev.

A 0010 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes
2m

0m

4m

6m

10m

8m

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

0200

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

02

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

0200

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.

03

0

2

6

0

1

4

7

5

1

3

5

3

2

0

6

0200

4

5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

05

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

06

0200

PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

04

West Elevation 1
02 Existing
1 : 100

3

01

West Elevation 2
03 Existing
1 : 100

2

4

5

2

1

0

0200

Existing Elevation Key
1 : 500

7

6

0

79

East Elevation
04 Existing
1 : 100

0

1

5

0

MATERIALS KEY:
2

6

0

3

1

5
4

0

2

0 - WATER TANK HOUSING FOR WC's

6

1 - METAL BALUSTRADING AT ROOF LEVEL
2 - UPVC DOUBLE GLAZED PANEL WINDOWS
3 - UPVC DOUBLE GLAZED DOORS
4 - TIMBER CLADDING PANELS
5 - COLOURED INFILL PANELS
6 - UPVC FASCIA
7 - BUILT UP FLAT ROOF WITH KERB UPSTAND

North Elevation
06 Existing
1 : 100

South Elevation
05 Existing
1 : 100

Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers
Client

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

EXISTING BUILDING ELEVATIONS

07

Existing 3D Perspective - East
1:1

08

Existing 3D Perspective - South-East
1:1

09

Existing 3D Perspective - West
1:1

ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

Date

2137

As indicated @ A1

23-08-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC
Rev.

A 0200 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes

CATERING
5 m²

CATERING

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

WC CATERING

7 m²

2 m²

5 m²

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

CATERING

AREA NOT SURVEYED

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

3 m²

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.
5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

KITCHEN

DINING

80 m²

164 m²

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

CANOPY

PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

AREA NOT SURVEYED
NORTH

STAFF ROOM
STORE

48 m²

1 m²

HIGH LEVEL
WINDOW
2m

0m

WET
AREA

STEPS DN TO
BOILER RM

CIRCULATION
6 m²

RECEPTION

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

AREA SURROUNDED WITH DASHED LINE HAS
VARIOUS PV ELEMENTS SITUATED AT FLAT
ROOF LEVEL. NOT SURVEYED AT THIS TIME

YEAR 1/2 D

R/L

12 m²

171 m²

URINALS

RESOUCE AREA

RESOURCE
ROOM

RESOURCE
ROOM

13 m²

BOYS WC

13 m²

CANOPY

CLEANERS
STORE

AREA NOT SURVEYED WITH BLUE
DASHED LINE SURROUND

4 m²

5 m²

DEPUTY HEAD/
SENCO OFFICE

HEADS OFFICE

OFFICE

37 m²

18 m²

WC
STAFF

23 m²

8 m²

IC

R/L
URINALS

YEAR 5/6 T

CLOAKS
2 m²

3 m²

P/V

P/V

FOLDING SCREEN DOOR

58 m²

CLOAKS

P/V

9 m²

FOLDING SCREEN DOOR

12 m²

WINDOWS

CIRCULATION

CLEANERS
STORE
BURSARS
OFFICE

18 m²

12 m²

WC PUPIL
WC PUPIL
BOYS HIGH LEVEL GIRLS

8 m²

8 m²

GULLY

13 m²

SITE
CONROLLERS
OFFICE

8 m²

HYGIENE
ROOM

15 m²

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

8 m²

HALL

IC

LIBRARY

R/L

61 m²

HIGH LEVEL
WINDOWS

GIRLS WC

R/L

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

WET
AREA

LIBRARY

R/L

8 m²

80

WET
AREA

CLEANERS
CUP'D

CIRCULATION
52 m²

R/L

2 m²

AREA SURROUNDED WITH DASHED LINE HAS
VARIOUS PV ELEMENTS SITUATED AT FLAT
ROOF LEVEL. NOT SURVEYED AT THIS TIME

AREA SURROUNDED WITH DASHED LINE HAS
VARIOUS PV ELEMENTS SITUATED AT FLAT
ROOF LEVEL. NOT SURVEYED AT THIS TIME

13 m²

WET
AREA

R/L

HIGH LEVEL
WINDOWS

ICT SUITE

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

R/L

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

R/L

13 m²

R/L

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

WET
AREA

WET
AREA

ROOM 11
62 m²

60 m²

CLOAKS
2 m²

PTA
SHED

GIRLS WC

R/L

12 m²

8 m²

R/L

YEAR 5/6D
R/L

GIRLS WC

DISUSED
HEATER /
CUP'D

9 m²

10 m²

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

R/L

R/L

FIRST AID

OFFICE

R/L

55 m²

CANOPY OVER SHOWN DASHED

CIRCULATION

R/L

WET AREA

WET
AREA

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

R/L

R/L

URINALS

16 m²

54 m²

R/L

WC STAFF

R/L

LIBRARY

YEAR 1/2 K

R/L

118 m²

4 m²

R/L

URINALS

R/L

CIRCULATION

WC
BOYS WC DISABLED
12 m²

2 STOREY GLAZED
PARTITION WALL

BOYS WC

R/L

10m

8m

6m

PE STORE

2 STOREY GLAZED
PARTITION WALL

CANOPY OVER SHOWN DASHED

DISUSED
HEATER USED AS
STORAGE

2 STOREY GLAZED
PARTITION WALL

RECEPTION
61 m²

AREA NOT SURVEYED WITH BLUE
DASHED LINE SURROUND

60 m²

4m

7 m²

HIGH LEVEL
WINDOWS

CIRCULATION

R/L

5 m²

IT CUP'D
5 m²

WET
AREA
WET AREA

Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

YEAR 1/2 F/J
67 m²

YEAR 3/4L
61 m²

STORAGE
UNIT FOR
SCHOOL

YEAR 3/4

YEAR 3/4F

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

60 m²

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

59 m²

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers
Client

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

HAZARD MARKINGS

01

Existing Ground Floor Plan
1 : 100

ONLY ROOFLIGHTS ABLE TO BE CLEARLY SEEN WERE NOTED DURING SURVEY,
OTHERS EXIST WHICH ARE COVERED, THESE HAVE NOT BEEN SURVEYED, AND
SHOULD BE NOTED PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION / M&E WORKS COMMENCING ON
SITE

HAZARD MARKINGS

HAZARD MARKINGS

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN
ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

2137

Date

1 : 100 @ A1

23-08-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC
Rev.

A 0100 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes

ROOF PLAN LEGEND:

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited
2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

EXISTING PV
PANEL

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

EXISTING ROOF
LIGHT

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.
5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

GUTTER LOCATION
AND DIRECTION OF
FLOW

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015
PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION

CABLE TRACK RUNS

The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

CANOPY

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER
BALUSTRADE

3125

3070

NORTH

RWP

3230

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

0m

2m

4m

10m

8m

6m

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

HALL ROOF

BALUSTRADE

3261

CANOPY

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

HIGH LEVEL
EXTRACT VENT

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

LEVEL DATA NOT SURVEYED WITHIN
BLUE DASHED LINE SURROUND

CANOPY
BALUSTRADE

RWP

WATER TANK
HOUSING

3070

HALL ROOF

81

3170
3110

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

3205
3170

M&E
PLANT

BALUSTRADE

BALUSTRADE

3250

CANOPY
3265
3215

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

3135

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

HIGH LEVEL
EXTRACT VENT

3095

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

3170
3119

M&E
PLANT

3130

RWP

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

3190

3170

3225

RWP

3160

3119

RWP

3070

RWP

HIGH LEVEL
EXTRACT VENT

3130

SCUPPER
INTO
HOPPER

3280

SCUPPER
INTO
GUTTER

3090

BALUSTRADE

Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

3200

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

3210

BALUSTRADE

BALUSTRADE

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers
Client

1

Existing Roof Plan
1 : 100

SCUPPER

HOPPER INTO
RWP DOWNPIPE

HOPPER INTO
RWP DOWNPIPE

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

PARAPET WALL

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ

PARAPET WALL

Drawing Title / Description

EXISTING ROOF PLAN

SECTION THROUGH

2

Existing Scupper Details
1 : 10

PLAN DETAIL

INDICATIVE ISOMETRIC DETAIL

ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

Date

2137

As indicated @ A1

14-10-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Drawn

Role

SJ
Drawing No.

Ch'kd

CIC
Rev.

A 0101 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

2m

0m

4m

10m

8m

6m

General Notes

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

PROPOSED MATERIALS KEY:

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

8 - KINGSPAN OR SIMILAR INSULATED ROOF PANEL - COLOUR DARK
GREY
8
9

14

10

14

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

9 - KINGSPAN OR SIMILAR INSULATED PANELS - RAL 3004
(BURGUNDY)

15

12

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.

10 - ALUMINIUM FRAMED DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS WITH HIGH
LEVEL LOUVRES - RAL 7015 (SLATE GREY)

16

5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

11 - KINGSPAN OR SIMILAR INSULATED FLAT ROOF PANEL COLOUR GREY

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

12 - TIMBER DOOR SET PAINTED OR LAMINATED AS PER THE
INSULATED PANEL

PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.

13 - SECRET GUTTERS AND INTERNAL RWPs

1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

14 - NATURAL VENTILATION STACKS BY 'VENTIVE' OR SIMILAR
MANUFACTURER. SIZE, LOCATION AND NUMBERS BY M&E
CONSULTANT. SEE DETAILS FROM SAME - RAL 3004 (BURGUNDY)

West Elevation 1
02 Proposed
1 : 100

15 - EXTERNAL CLADDING TO WALL INFILL AREAS TO MATCH
EXISTING TIMBER CLAD PANELLING

West Elevation 2
03 Proposed
1 : 100

16 - FULL HEIGHT UPVC WINDOW / DOOR PANELS TO MATCH
EXISTING
17 - RE-UTILISED WINDOW/WALL SYSTEM FROM DEMOLITION
WORKS

9

14

8

12

11

14

14

8

14

14

8

14

10

9

12
14

14

14

10

8

9

14

11

East Elevation
04 Proposed
1 : 100

82
17

16

8

14

South Elevation
05 Proposed
1 : 100

9

10

14

13

12

14

8

13

9

12

14

8

16

14

North Elevation
06 Proposed
1 : 100

Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

0205
02
0205

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers

03
Client

0205

Wokingham Borough Council

05

Project Title

06

0205

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATIONS

04

ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

Date

2137

As indicated @ A1

23-08-2016

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC

0205

Elevation Key
01 Proposed
1 : 500

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Rev.

A 0205 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

COLOUR KEY:

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication

NEW CIRCULATION SPACES
REPLACE FENCE WITH RE-USED
WINDOW/DOOR PANELS FROM
DEMOLITION WORKS

3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.

NEW TEACHING SPACES

KITCHEN

4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.

80 m²

NEW RESOURCE SPACES

EXISTING RECEPTION PLAY AREA

CLOAKS
& BENCH

5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.

NEW STORAGE SPACES

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015

HALL

PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION

164 m²

The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

MUSIC / DRAMA
49 m²

STAIRCASE DOWN TO
LGF BOILER ROOM AREA
NORTH

EXG. EXIT DOOR
SEALED
0m

FORM NEW
PATH

2m

10m

8m

6m

4m

FIRE EXIT RETAINED

NEW EXIT DOOR

VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

CANOPY OVERHANG

FORM NEW OPENING
IN EXISTING WALL

YEAR R.1

PE STORE

61 m²

YEAR 1.1

BLOCK
UP DOOR

EXISTING
GARDEN

15 m²

NEW
FOLDING
DOORSET

61 m²

FORM NEW
OPENING IN
WALL

REPLACE BASINS
FOR LOW LEVEL
TYPE UNIT

YEAR R.2
61 m²

NEW
RECEPTION
STORE

SITE CONTROL

BLOCK UP EXISTING
WINDOWS TO HEIGHT OF
NEW ROOF EXTENSION
ONLY

8 m²

MAIN ENTRANCE

HALL
STORE
2 m²

REC. WC
13 m²

SITE CON.
STORE

171 m²

WET AREA

STORE

EXG. EXIT DOOR SEALED

AREA NOT SURVEYED WITH BLUE
DASHED LINE SURROUND

8 m²

2 m²

NEW EXIT DOOR
CLOAKS
& BENCH

FORM NEW
PATH

CLNR STORE

83

SMALL
GROUP
SPACE

HYGIENE ROOM
13 m²

NEW WC
CUBICLE
EXISTING
GARDEN

YEAR 1.2

CLOAKS
& BENCH

63 m²

CANOPY OVERHANG

UNISEX WC
12 m²

CLOAKS
& BENCH

STORE

CLOAKS
& BENCH

STORE

FOLDING DOORSET

63 m²

FORM NEW OPENING
AND BUILD IN NEW
DOUBLE DOORS

CIRCULATION
27 m²

STORE

ROOF CANOPY OVER

WET AREA

CLOAKS
& BENCH

3 m²

RETAIN EXISTING PANEL TO
PROTECT DOOR SWING
NEW
ROOFLIGHT

14 m²

ID 003

CIRC.
NEW
ROOFLIGHT

GIRLS WC
13 m²

SECURE
LOBBY

8 m²

YEAR 6.2

SMALL GROUP
SPACE

58 m²

STAFF WC
14 m²

EXISTING
ICT SUITE
55 m²

BLOCK UP
EXISTING
WINDOWS

STORE

CLOAKS
& BENCH

3 m²

BLOCK EXISTING
HIGH LEVEL GLAZED
PANEL SECTIONS

YEAR 4.1

BLOCK UP
EXISTING
WINDOWS

YEAR 3.1
69 m²

YEAR 3.2
62 m²

FINANCE
OFFICE

INTERVIEW
ROOM

REMOVE GLAZED
PANEL SECTIONS

9 m²

10 m²

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

GIRLS WC

BLOCK
EXISTING
WINDOW
OPENINGS

YEAR 5.2

YEAR 6.1

COMMS CUP'D
5 m²

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

BLOCK
EXISTING
DOOR
OPENING

BLOCK EXISTING
HIGH LEVEL GLAZED
PANEL SECTIONS

62 m²

STAFF ROOM
WORK AREA
12 m²

STAFF ROOM

REMOVE
EXISTING
DOOR

BLOCK EXISTING
HIGH LEVEL GLAZED
PANEL SECTIONS

56 m²

BLOCK EXISTING
GLAZED PANEL
SECTIONS

CLOAKS
& BENCH

Rev

Date

Item

By

BLOCK
EXISTING
WINDOW
OPENINGS

59 m²

YEAR 5.1

KITCHEN

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

62 m²

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

3 m²

ROOFLIGHT

Ch'kd

Revisions

YEAR 4.2

STORE

FIRST
AID
ROOM

61 m²

WET AREA

BLOCK
EXISTING
WINDOW
OPENING

NEW SOLAR
TUBE

9 m²

55 m²

BLOCK EXISTING
GLAZED PANEL
SECTIONS

GLAZED
SCREEN

NEW EXIT DOOR

4 m²

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

BLOCK
EXISTING
DOOR
OPENING

NEW DOORS AND
SCREEN PARTITION
FORMING SECURE
LOBBY

DIS. WC

8 m²

28 m²

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

BOYS WC

33 m²

CIRC.

YEAR 2.2
ROOF CANOPY OVER

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

42 m²

CLOAKS
& BENCH

56 m²

NEW BUILD
RESOURCE
AREA

LIBRARY / LARGE
GROUP ROOM
NEW
ROOFLIGHT

CIRCULATION

12 m²

BOYS WC

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

WET AREA

DASHED AREA LINE INDICATES AREA OF PV AT
ROOF LEVEL WHICH MAY REQUIRE RELOCATION DUE TO PROPOSAL WORKS

99 m²

54 m²

55 m²

37 m²

HATCH

BLOCK UP EXISTING
WINDOWS

ID 001

YEAR 2.1

23 m²

SCREEN

REMOVE GLAZED
PANEL SECTIONS

ID 002

STAFF
WC

RECEPTION

FOLDING DOORSET

CIRC.

CLOAKS
& BENCH

18 m²

HEAD OFFICE &
MEETING ROOM

12 m²

13 m²

14 m²

9 m²

2 m²

NEW
ROOFLIGHT

DEP. HEAD &
SENCO

NURTURE
OFFICE

18 m²

BOYS WC

LOBBY

5 m²

GIRLS
WC

ROOFLIGHT

COVERED LOBBY
SPACE

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers

ROOF CANOPY OVER
Client

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

Ground Floor Plan
01 Proposed
1 : 100

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

PROPOSED GA FLOOR PLAN
ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

Date

2137

As indicated @ A1

23-08-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

Drawing No.

Drawn

Ch'kd

JQ

CC
Rev.

A 0110 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes

ROOF PLAN LEGEND:

ASSUMED LOCATION
OF INTERNAL RWP TO
DRAIN EXISTING ROOF

EXISTING PV
PANEL

ASSUMED LOCATION OF
INTERNAL RWP TO
DRAIN PROPOSED ROOF
ASSUMED LOCATION OF
EXTERNAL RWP

PV PANEL TO BE
RE-LOCATED

EXISTING GUTTER
LOCATION AND
DIRECTION OF FLOW

EXISTING PV PANEL
RE-LOCATED IN NEW
POSITION

PROPOSED GUTTER
BETWEEN EXISTING AND
PROPOSED STRUCTURE

EXISTING ROOF
LIGHT
PROPOSED 'VENTIVE'
PASSIVE STACK
ROOF MOUNTED
VENTILATION UNITS

CABLE TRACK RUNS

EXISTING DRAINAGE
RUN LEVEL AT TOP
OF SCUPPER

2000

2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication
3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.
4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.
5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.
CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015
PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

PROPOSED GUTTER
LEVEL

2000

FLAT ROOF MOUNTED
CIRCULAR ROOFLIGHT

RWP

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited

NORTH
NORTH

FLAT ROOF MOUNTED
CIRCULAR ROOFLIGHT
ON MONOPITCH ROOF
INTERNAL
RWP

0m

2m

4m

10m

8m

6m

HALL ROOF
VISUAL SCALE 1:100 @ A1

3 NO. RELOCATED PV PANELS TO
BE INSTALLED TO COVER LOSS OF
OTHERS DUE TO NEW VENTILATION
UNIT PLACEMENT

CANOPY

INTERNAL
RWP

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

CANOPY

WATER TANK
HOUSING

3070
HALL ROOF

6 NO. RELOCATED PV
PANELS TO BE
INSTALLED TO COVER
LOSS OF OTHERS DUE
TO NEW VENTILATION
UNIT PLACEMENT

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

CROSS HATCHED PV
PANELS TO BE RELOCATED

2985

84
PROPOSED
ROOFLIGHT

NEW VENTILATION
UNIT

3243

M&E
PLANT

PROPOSED
ROOFLIGHT

CROSS
HATCHED PV
PANEL TO BE
RE-LOCATED

EXTERNAL RWP 75mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL
3147.5

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

PROPOSED
ROOFLIGHT

ROOF GUTTER

3173

WATER
TANK
HOUSING

PROPOSED
ROOFLIGHT

NEW 'SUNPIPE' TUBE

3135

M&E /
PLANT

EXISTING PV PANELS
TO BE RELOCATED
3095

CROSS HATCHED PV
PANEL TO BE RELOCATED

3070

EXTERNAL RWP 75mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

3190

3130

3090

3059

CROSS HATCHED PV PANELS TO BE RE-LOCATED
DUE TO NEW VENTILATION UNIT POSITIONING

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

Rev

3065

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

EXTERNAL RWP 75mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL
2985

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

EXTERNAL RWP 100mm SQUARE
POCKETED IN WALL

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

3019

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers

2966
Client

01

Proposed Roof Plan
1 : 100

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

2137

Date

1 : 100 @ A1

Drawn

14-10-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 DR

Level

Type

Role

SJ
Drawing No.

Ch'kd

CIC
Rev.

A 0102 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

General Notes

1) This drawing is the copyright of the ermc limited and may not be altered or
reproduced in any way without the written permission of ermc limited
2) Written dimensions supersede manual or electronically scaled dimensions. All
dimensions must be checked on site by Contractor before commencement of the
works or fabrication
3) This drawing is to be used only for the purposes intended as described in the
Drawing Title box.
4) This drawing must be read in conjunction with all other Consultants drawings &
specifications applicable to this project.
5) The information contained herein is confidential and may not be copied or
disclosed to any other person or used for any purpose other than that for which is
was originally prepared and supplied without the prior written consent of the client.
CONSTRUCTION DESIGN & MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS 2015
PRINCIPLE DESIGNERS HAZARD INFORMATION FOR CONSTRUCTION
The notes below refer specifically to the information shown on this drawing. Refer
to the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan for further information.
1) If you do not fully understand the risks involved during the construction of the
items indicated on this drawing ask your Manager, Health and Safety Advisor or a
member of the Design Team before proceeding.

85
Rev

Date

Item

By

Ch'kd

Revisions

S2

PLANNING ISSUE

Status Code

Issue Purpose

Enterprise House
18 Cherry Orchard Lane
Salisbury
Wiltshire
SP2 7LD
T: 03300 240365
E: info@ermc.co.uk
W: www.ermc.co.uk

Architectural Technologists - Quantity Surveyors
Project Managers - Principal Designers
Client

Wokingham Borough Council
Project Title

Proposed Alteration & Extensions at:
Beechwood Primary School
Ambleside Close, Woodley, Reading, RG5 4JJ
Drawing Title / Description

ILLUSTRATIVE 3D RENDERS
ERMC Project Ref.

Scale

2137

Date

@ A1

Drawn

14-10-2016

ClientCode

Originator

Zone

2137

EA

00 00 VS

Level

Type

Role

SJ
Drawing No.

Ch'kd

CC
Rev.

A 0210 R1

This Drawing is the copyright of ermc limited

This page is intentionally left blank

87

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 92.
Development
Management
Ref No
163115

No weeks on
day of
committee
12/8

Parish

Ward

Listed by:

Arborfield

Arborfield

Cllr Gary
Cowan

Applicant
Location

Mr & Mrs M Yardley
The Firs, Parkcorner Lane, Carters Hill,
Postcode RG2 9JJ
Arborfield
Proposal
Householder application for the proposed replacement of existing roof
lights with dormer window extensions and the erection of a raised
terrace to the south- west corner of the building at first floor level
Type
Householder
PS Category 21
Officer
Rosie Rogers
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on Wednesday 1 February 2017
Head of Development Management and Regulatory
Services

SUMMARY
The application site is situated on the north side of Parkcorner Lane in a countryside
location. The site comprises a detached stable/garage block with first floor ancillary
residential accommodation over, sited adjacent to the main dwelling known as The Firs
which together are located on a good sized plot, fronting onto Carters Hill, an unadopted
road with extensive views of open countryside on all sides of the site.
The detached stable/garage block was approved in 2003 with storage accommodation
at first floor level. The first floor accommodation was subsequently converted in 2004 to
form ancillary residential accommodation and a number of roof lights inserted in the
roof. The applicant’s son has been using this annex accommodation ancillary to the
main house since 2004, although the applicant has informally advised that he now
wishes to use this accommodation for his elderly mother.
A Certificate of Lawful Existing Use was granted on 16 August 2016 under planning
reference 161368 for the use of the first floor as residential annex accommodation over
the detached garage/stable block as ancillary to the main house known as “The Firs”.
The current application seeks to make further changes to the external appearance of
the building with the replacement of some of the existing rooflights with dormer
extensions and the creation of a first floor terrace. The use will remain as ancillary
accommodation to the main dwelling.
The application has been listed by Cllr Cowan in the event that the recommendation is
for refusal on the grounds that “it complies with policy as its ancillary accommodation in
the countryside, that is acceptable in character terms and not out of place in its rural
setting.”
PLANNING STATUS
 Countryside
 Contaminated Land Consultation Zone

89

 Landfill Gas Consultation Zone
 Thames Basin Heaths SPA – within 7km zone
RECOMMENDATION
The application is recommended for refusal for the following reason:
1. The proposed replacement of the existing roof lights with dormer window extensions
and the erection of a raised terrace to the south-west corner of the building at first floor
level would result in an inappropriate increase in the scale, form and mass of the
original building which would have an urbanising effect on the appearance of this
ancillary building causing significant harm to the visual amenity of the countryside
character of the area including the wider views of the surrounding countryside contrary
to the National Planning Policy Framework, policies CP1, CP3 and CP11 of the
Wokingham Borough Core Strategy and the Supplementary Planning Document Wokingham Borough Design Guide - Section 8.
Informatives
1. This decision is in respect of the drawings and plans numbered 3063/01, 3063/02
and 3063/100C received by the Local Planning Authority on 9 November 2016 and the
revised plan, plan no. 3063/200A received by the local planning authority on 18 January
2017.
2. The Council engages with all applicants in a positive and proactive way through
specific pre-application enquiries and the detailed advice available on the Council’s
website. On this particular application, no pre-application advice was sought before the
application was submitted. As the proposal was clearly contrary to the provisions of the
Development Plan, it was considered that further discussions would be unnecessary
and costly for all parties.

PLANNING HISTORY
F/2003/9831 – Erection of new garage and stable block. Demolition of existing building
– 18.09.03 – Approval
161368 – Certificate of Lawful Existing Use granted for use of first floor residential
annex accommodation over the detached garage/stable block as ancillary
accommodation to the use of the main dwelling house – 16.08.16 – Approval
SUMMARY INFORMATION
For Residential
Existing units
Proposed units
Number of bedrooms per unit
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces

1
1
1
2
2

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
WBC Biodiversity Officer: No objection, subject to an informative
WBC Building Control: No comments received

REPRESENTATIONS
Arborfield Parish Council: No objection

90

Local Members: The application has been listed by Cllr Gary Cowan if the
recommendation is for refusal
Neighbours: No comments received
APPLICANTS POINTS
Planning policy gives support for extensions to residential buildings in the countryside
subject to them being subordinate to the host dwelling and appropriate in terms of
design and scale.
The proposed dormers are considered to be appropriate in terms of scale in relation to
the existing building and would maintain the appearance of an agricultural building in
the countryside.
There is no impact on neighbouring amenity in terms of loss of light and overlooking due
to the isolated nature of site and existing hedge screening.
The proposal would not affect any existing boundary treatments or trees over the site.
PLANNING POLICY
National Policy
Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

NPPF
CP1
CP3
CP6
CP7
CC01
CC02
CC03

Supplementary Planning Documents
(SPD)

TB21
BDG

National Planning Policy Framework
Sustainable Development
General Principles for Development
Managing Travel Demand
Biodiversity
Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development
Development Limits
Green Infrastructure, Trees and
Landscaping
Landscape Character
Borough Design Guide – Section 8

PLANNING ISSUES
Principle of Development
1. The site is located within the countryside outside any defined settlement area;
therefore the principle of development is only acceptable subject to an assessment of
the impact of the proposal on the countryside and rural character of the area and the
amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.
2. The National Planning Policy Framework recognises that there are a set of core landuse planning principles. In particular principle No. 5 states that it should “take account of
the different roles and character of different areas…..recognising the intrinsic character
and beauty of the countryside…..” and supporting thriving rural communities within it. In
particular, it seeks to encourage development that respects the character of a locality. In
this instance, the character is predominantly rural, with isolated dwellings on large plots
surrounded by open fields and development must respect this and not compromise

91

these qualities.
Impact on the Character of the Area
3. Policy CP3 of the adopted Wokingham Borough Core Strategy states that planning
permission will be granted for proposals that “are of an appropriate scale of activity,
mass, layout, built form, height, materials and character to the area….”
4. Policy CP11- Proposals outside Development Limits (including Countryside) of the
adopted Wokingham Borough Core Strategy states that:
“In order to protect the separate identity of settlements and maintain the quality of the
environment, proposals outside of development limits will not normally be permitted
except where:
2) It does not lead to excessive encroachment or expansion of development away from
the original buildings…
And 4) In the case of residential extensions, does not result in appropriate increases in
the scale, form or footprint of the original building…”
5. Section 8.5.4 of the revised Borough Design Guide relating to extensions and
additions in the countryside states that “extensions may be permissible provided that
the scale, form and footprint does not have an unacceptable impact upon the
countryside.
6. The application site is situated on the north side of Parkcorner Lane in a countryside
location. The site comprises a detached garage/stable block with first floor ancillary
residential accommodation over, sited adjacent to the main dwelling known as The Firs
which together are located on a good sized plot, fronting onto Carters Hill, an unadopted
road with extensive views of open countryside on all sides of the site. The front of the
site is enclosed by electric wooden gates and mature hedge screening. To the rear of
the site is an open paddock area, also in the ownership of the applicant, with a mature
conifer hedge, which acts as a windbreak, screening the rear of the detached
garage/stable block from this open paddock area.
7. The area is characterised by isolated dwellings on good sized plots with large
stretches of open countryside in between. The area has a distinctive rural character.
8. The proposal is for the replacement of some of the existing rooflights in the first floor
of the detached garage/stable block with 6 x no pitched roof dormers and 1 x no flat roof
dormer to increase the floorspace to the bedroom, bathroom, kitchen and main living
room. The existing volume of the building is 505m³ whilst the proposed volume is
568m³, an increase of 12.5% above the volume of the existing building.
9. The proposed dormers are shown to be set in from the eaves but positioned
marginally below the main ridge height. They are considered to be overly bulky and
would appear as dominant features within the roofslope and out of keeping with the
style of the existing building given its countryside location. Moreover, they would give
the converted stable/garage block a “top-heavy” appearance which would draw
attention to the building in this countryside setting. It is therefore considered that the
increase in scale, form, and mass of the roofspace significantly changes the existing

92

character and external appearance of the building away from that of a subservient
detached outbuilding to a building with a more dominant and urbanised appearance
causing harm to the visual amenity of the area and the openness of the surrounding
countryside.
10. The proposal also includes the provision of an enclosed raised terrace area to the
south western corner of the building at a height of 2.2m above ground level and a depth
of 5.5m. This would extend the footprint of the building to the north of the site, away
from the existing building and towards the open countryside. It is considered that this
additional element would result in a further inappropriate increase in the scale, form and
mass of the building and this in turn would have a further urbanising effect on the site,
causing additional harm to the openness of the surrounding countryside whilst
detracting from the subservient nature of the building. (Officer note: The applicant has
informally advised that this terraced area is required to provide an area of private rear
amenity space for his elderly mother. Although this is a valid request, the main house
has a secluded private rear amenity area with a raised deck area and summerhouse
and which is within easy reach of the annexe accommodation.)
11. It is accepted that the substantial existing hedge screening to the rear of the site
limits the views of the dormer extensions from the rear. However, the two front dormers
would be visible over the electric gates at the front of the site in public locations along
Carters Hill and would detract from the countryside character of the area. Moreover, the
existence of the landscape screening is not considered sufficient to outweigh the harm
that would result from the proposed changes to the external appearance of the building.
Impact on Neighbours
12. The nearest neighbouring properties are Park Farm Stables situated to the south of
the site and Tudor House, to the west of the site on the corner of Julkes Lane. These
properties are situated some 95.0m and 110.0m away respectively and as such the
proposed external changes to the building will have no significant impact in terms of a
loss of light or loss of privacy as a result of direct overlooking.
Highway Issues
13. The proposal will not result in any additional habitable rooms. The proposal makes
no change to the existing access or the existing number of parking spaces which is in
accordance with the Council’s parking standards in respect of the main dwelling and the
annex accommodation. As such there is no impact on highway safety.
Impact on a Protected Species – Bats:
14. The proposal will involve changes to the existing roof of the building. The site is
located in an area with suitable bat foraging habitat. However, given that it is a modern
building which has been well maintained and the proposals are limited in potential for
disturbance/roost destruction, it is considered that an appropriate informative only is
attached to any approval in this instance.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
15. Wokingham Borough Council adopted CIL on 6 April 2015. The proposed
development will result in an increase in new build floorspace of less than 100 sqms

93

gross internal area and therefore is not liable for CIL.

CONCLUSION
The proposed changes to the external appearance of the detached garage/stable block
would result in an inappropriate increase in the scale, form and mass of the original
building which would have an urbanising effect on the appearance of this ancillary
building causing significant harm to the visual amenity of the countryside character of
the area including the wider views of the surrounding countryside and therefore is
recommended for refusal.
CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Email
Development
0118 974 6428 / 6429 development.control@wokingham.gov.uk
Management and
Regulatory Services

94

95

This page is intentionally left blank

97

This page is intentionally left blank

the firs

Governance and
Improvement Services

1:750

© Crown copyright and database rights (2015) Ordnance Survey 100019592

99

This page is intentionally left blank

101
map

Governance and Improvement Services

1:5000

© Crown copyright and database rights (2015) Ordnance Survey 100019592

This page is intentionally left blank

103
the firs

Governance and Improvement Services

1:15000

© Crown copyright and database rights (2015) Ordnance Survey 100019592

This page is intentionally left blank

©

PROPOSED
FLAT ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
FLAT ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
TERRACE

PROPOSED
TERRACE

SideElevation

SideElevation

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
FLAT ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
TERRACE

RearElevation

FrontElevation

105

VOLUMES:
EXISTING -505m3
PROPOSED-568m3

PROPOSED
TERRACE

PROPOSED
FLAT ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMER
LIVING

DOUBLE
GARAGE

KITCHEN

wc

HALL

STORAGE

BATH

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMERS

1:100 scale Bar
This Drawing has been produced for printing onto A1 size paper,
If printing on A3 please use the scale below for reference.
0m

1m
0.5 m

DOUBLE
GARAGE

BEDROOM

4m
2m

Day Tanner Partnership

8m

ARCHITECTURE
AND PLANNING

Mr & Mrs M. Yardley

FirstFloor

PROPOSED
PITCHED ROOF DORMERS

GroundFloor

Dormers to replace rooflights
on outbuilding @ The Firs,
Carters Hill , RG29JJ
PROPOSED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
1 : 100
DN
DEC 2016
3063 / 200 A

This page is intentionally left blank

PROPOSED FLAT ROOF
DORMER
PROPOSED TERRACE

PROPOSED
PITCHED
ROOF DORMERS

107

Location Plan
1:1250

Site Plan
1:500

Mr & Mrs M. Yardley
Stable Block Conversion
The Firs, Carters Hill RG2 9JJ
Site and Location Plan
1:500/1:1250

KN

May 2016

3063 / 100

C

This page is intentionally left blank

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Rosie Rogers
Planning Enquiries
FW: PA 163115 - The Firs, Parkcorner Lane, Carters Hill, Arborfield ~[UNCLASSIFIED]~
14 December 2016 14:07:00

Rosie Rogers
Planning Officer
Development Management
Wokingham Borough Council
Civic Offices
Shute End
Wokingham RG40 1WR
Direct dial telephone number (0118) 974 6229
Email: rosie.rogers@wokingham.gov.uk
www.wokingham.gov.uk

From: Arborfield & Newland Parish Council [mailto:parishclerk@arborfield.org.uk]
Sent: 14 December 2016 13:58
To: Development Control; Rosie Rogers
Subject: PA 163115 - The Firs, Parkcorner Lane, Carters Hill, Arborfield

Apologies for sending the Parish Councils response a day late.
The Parish Council has no objections to this application.
Kind Regards,
Alison Ward
Parish Clerk
Arborfield & Newland Parish Council
The Parish Office, Arborfield Village Hall
Eversley Road, Arborfield, Berkshire, RG2 9PQ
0118 976 1489
www.arborfield.org.uk
The Parish Office is open 10am - 12noon, Monday to Thursday
This message, its contents and any attachments to it are private and confidential. Any
unauthorized disclosure; use or dissemination of the whole or any part of this message
(without our prior consent in writing) is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of
this message please notify us immediately. No contracts or agreements may be concluded
on behalf of the Council solely by means of e-mail.

109

Click here to report this email as spam.

110

Agenda Item 93.
Development
Management
Ref No
161845

No weeks on
day of
committee
28/13

Parish

Ward

Listed by:

Ruscombe

Remenham, Wargrave
and Ruscombe

Major

Applicant
Location
Proposal

McCarthy & Stone
134 – 146 London Road, Ruscombe
Postcode RG10 9HJ
Full application for the erection of 31 two bedroom apartments with
associated communal areas, landscaping and parking (C3 residential
use)
Type
Full
PS Category 7
Officer
Graham Vaughan
FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Planning Committee on 1st February 2017
Head of Development Management and Regulatory
Services

SUMMARY
The application site is within the modest development location of Ruscombe and is also
an allocated site within the MDD for around 15 dwellings. Currently, the remains of a
dwelling are on the site but otherwise it is an open field. The site is within a triangle of
land surrounded by three roads with a residential character. Typically this is for two
storey detached properties on a building line but there have been changes to this
through backland development over time. The design and materials of these dwellings
is therefore mixed.
The scheme is for full permission for the development of the site to erect 31 two
bedroom apartments with associated landscaping and parking. The apartments are
proposed as retirement living, through the applicant McCarthy & Stone. However, the
only limitation on the apartments is an age exemption, in this case 55. There would not
be any element of healthcare provided as a result of the development. The proposal is
for a single plan building to ensure step free internal access across the site however it is
been designed to provide articulation and to break up the massing the building as a
whole. More specifically, the front section of the building has been designed to appear
as individual dwellings whilst the central and rear sections are split across the land
levels and have articulation through their roof forms.
The site has been subject to two previous applications; both outline proposals for
residential development. The most recent, O/2014/1386 was conditionally approved and
this has been a material consideration in the formation of the current application. As
with the 2014 application, the current scheme has been considered by the South East
Regional Design Review Panel. This has prompted alterations to be made to the
scheme in relation to materials, landscaping, highways and design. More specifically,
the Design Review Panel was asked by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to consider
the single plan form for the building and its impact on the character of the area.
However, the Design Review Panel does not consider harm to arise and therefore the
scheme has been taken forward on this basis.

111

The site is within development limits and therefore is acceptable in principle. Although,
the 31 units exceed the site allocation of around 15 units, this in itself is not considered
to make a development unacceptable in principle. The application needs to demonstrate
however that the over provision would not result in any harmful impacts in planning
terms. Through the Design Review Panel and the design process, it is considered the
scheme would not have a harmful impact on the character of the area. Specifically, the
built form of the proposal is broken up and landscaping would enhance the overall
setting. With regards to residential amenities there are numerous residential properties
around the site. However, due to the layout of the proposal and the separation
distances to actual properties, no harm would occur in this respect. In terms of
highways, the provision of three accesses into the site is considered acceptable as is
the parking provision which accords with parking standards. Other impacts in terms of
trees, ecology, environmental health and sustainable design are all considered
acceptable and controlled by conditions.
As a result of the above, and the fact the proposal would provide older persons
accommodation, the scheme is considered to be compliant with the development plan
and is therefore recommended for conditional approval.
PLANNING STATUS
 Modest development location
 Allocated housing site
 Groundwater zone 3
 Wind turbine safeguarding zone
 Contaminated land consultation zone
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee authorise the GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following:
A. Prior completion of a legal agreement to secure a financial contribution to
provide off-site affordable housing.
B. Conditions and informatives:
Conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In pursuance of s.91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended by s.51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. This permission is in respect of the submitted application plans and drawings
numbered ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1100’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1101’, ‘SE-2293-03AC-PL1102’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1110 Rev A’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1112 Rev A’,
‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1350’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1210 Rev A’, ‘SE-2293-03-ACPL1211 Rev A’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1212 Rev A’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1213 Rev
A’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1310 Rev A’, ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1311 Rev A’, ‘SE-229303-AC-PL1312 Rev A’ and ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1360 Rev A’ received by the local
planning authority on 20th July 2016 and the revised plans 21st December 2016.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

112

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is
carried out in accordance with the application form and associated details hereby
approved.
3. No development shall take place until a scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which specifies the provisions
and details to be made to establish a Project Community Liaison Group for the
duration of the construction works. The scheme shall include details of dates of
meetings and a name and telephone number for residents to contact should any
issues arise during the construction period. The scheme shall be implemented
as approved.
Reason: In order to minimise disturbance to neighbours during construction
works. Relevant Policy: Core Strategy policy CP3
4. a) No development or other operation shall commence on site until an
Arboricultural Method Statement and Scheme of Works which provides for the
retention and protection of trees, shrubs and hedges growing on or adjacent to
the site in accordance with BS5837: 2012 has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. No development or other operations shall
take place except in complete accordance with the details as so-approved
(hereinafter referred to as the Approved Scheme).
b) No development (including any tree felling, tree pruning, demolition works, soil
moving, temporary access construction and or widening or any other operation
involving use of motorised vehicles or construction machinery) shall commence
until the local planning authority has been provided (by way of a written notice)
with a period of no less than 7 working days to inspect the implementation of the
measures identified in the Approved Scheme on-site.
c) No excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of
vehicles, deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of
liquids shall take place within an area designated as being fenced off or
otherwise protected in the Approved Scheme.
d) The fencing or other works which are part of the Approved Scheme shall not
be moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works including external
works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials
removed from the site, unless the prior approval of the local planning authority
has first been sought and obtained.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that the development is
being carried out of trees shrubs or hedges growing within or adjacent to the site
which are of amenity value to the area, and to allow for verification by the local
planning authority that the necessary measures are in place before development
and other works commence Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21
5. Before any above ground work commences a Construction Environmental
Management Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The plan
should detail items such as phasing of construction, lorry routing and potential
numbers, types of piling rig and earth moving machinery to be utilized and
measures proposed to mitigate the impact of construction operations such as
noise, odour/smoke, vibration and dust. In addition the plan should make note of

113

any temporary lighting that will be used during the construction phase of the
development. The plan shall be implemented in full and retained until the
development has been constructed. Any deviation from this Statement shall be
first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure disruption is minimised as much as possible during
construction. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP1 and CP3
6. Before any above ground work is commenced, samples and details of the
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building/s
shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the
so-approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP1 and CP3
7. Before any above ground work is commenced full details of both hard and soft
landscape proposals shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. These details shall include, as appropriate, proposed finished
floor levels or contours, means of enclosure, car parking layouts, other vehicle
and pedestrian access and circulation areas, hard surfacing materials and minor
artefacts and structure (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage
units, signs, lighting, external services, etc.). Soft landscaping details shall
include planting plan, specification (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment), schedules of plants, noting
species, planting sizes and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate, and
implementation timetable.
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in
accordance with a timetable approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after planting, are
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of species, size and number as originally
approved and permanently retained.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy
CP3 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21
(and TB06 for garden development)
8. Before any above ground work is commenced details of all boundary
treatment(s) shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first
occupation of the development or phased as agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The scheme shall be maintained in the approved form for so
long as the development remains on the site.
Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety. Relevant policy: Core
Strategy policies CP1, CP3 and CP6.
9. Before any above ground work is commenced an Employment and Skills Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
Employment and Skills Plan shall show how the development hereby permitted
provides opportunities for training, apprenticeship or other vocational initiatives to
develop local employability skills and shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved details.

114

Reason: To ensure training opportunities are available for local workers.
Relevant policy: Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy TB12
10. Before any above ground work is commenced details of any proposed external
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The scheme shall set out the steps that will be taken to
ensure that external lighting does not cause a nuisance to local residents
including future residents of the site and shall include details of location, direction
and level of illumination.
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policy CP3.
11. Before any above ground work commences the applicant or their agents or
successors in title have secured and implemented a programme of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains within the site are
adequately investigated and recorded or preserved in situ in the interest of
protecting the archaeological heritage of the borough. Relevant policy: Core
Strategy policies CP1 and CP3
12. Before any above ground work commences the following drainage details shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
(i)
The sizing of the basins to demonstrate that they can cater for flood
volumes generated by the 1 in 100 year flood event with a 40% allowance
for climate change.
(ii)
Level details of the proposed SuDS features.
(iii)
Drainage strategy plan indicating the linkage of the permeable areas to
the basins.
(iv)
SuDS maintenance strategy and who will be responsible for this
throughout the lifetime of the development.
(v)
Finished floor levels of the proposed development
The submitted details shall be implemented as approved and thereafter
maintained unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development would not have an adverse impact on flood
risk for the surrounding area. Relevant Policy: MDD Local Plan policy CC09 and
CC10
13. No building shall be occupied until details of secure and covered bicycle storage/
parking facilities for the visitors to the development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The cycle storage/ parking
shall be implemented in accordance with such details as may be approved
before occupation of the development hereby permitted, and shall be
permanently retained in the approved form for the parking of bicycles and used
for no other purpose.
Reason: In order to ensure that secure weather-proof bicycle parking facilities
are provided so as to encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policies CP1,
CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
14. No building shall be occupied until secure and covered parking for cycles for

115

occupants has been provided in accordance with the approved
drawing(s)/details. The cycle parking/ storage shall be permanently so-retained
for the parking of bicycles and used for no other purpose.
Reason: In order to ensure that secure weather-proof bicycle parking facilities
are provided so as to encourage the use of sustainable modes of travel. Relevant
policy: NPPF Section 4 (Sustainable Transport) and Core Strategy policies CP1,
CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy CC07.
15. No part of any building(s) hereby permitted shall be occupied or used until the
vehicle parking and turning space has been provided in accordance with the
approved plans. The vehicle parking and turning space shall be retained and
maintained in accordance with the approved details and the parking space shall
remain available for the parking of vehicles at all times and the turning space
shall not be used for any other purpose other than vehicle turning. The spaces as
indicated on plan ‘SE-2293-03-AC-PL1110 Rev A’ shall remain as unallocated
and shall not be sold or leased.
Reason: To provide adequate off-street vehicle parking and turning space and to
allow vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in the interests of road
safety and convenience and providing a functional, accessible and safe
development and in the interests of amenity. Relevant policy: Core Strategy
policies CP3 & CP6 and Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policy
CC07.
16. No building shall be occupied until the bin storage area/ facilities have been
provided in full accordance with the approved details. The bin storage area and
facilities shall be permanently so-retained and used for no purpose other than the
temporary storage of refuse and recyclable materials.
Reason: In the interests of visual and neighbouring amenities and functional
development. Relevant policy: Core Strategy CP3 and Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan policy CC04.
17. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
details as agreed in ‘Construction Method Statement, (McCarthy & Stone, June
2016)’ and ‘SE - 2293 - 03 - AC - PL1113 Rev A’ received by the Local Planning
Authority on 13th January 2017 and shall be implemented in full in accordance
with the approved plan unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning
authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety & convenience and neighbour
amenities. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
18. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
details as agreed in ‘Pre-commencement Reptile Protection Method Statement
(Innovation Group Environmental Services, Ref: E-13195, December 2016)
received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th January 2017 and shall be
implemented in full in accordance with the approved plan unless otherwise
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that species protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended) are not adversely impacted upon as a result of the
development. Relevant Policy: Core Strategy policy CP7
19. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
details as agreed in ‘Sustainability Statement – Focus Consultants, June 2016,

116

L1517’ received by the Local Planning Authority on 20th July 2016 and shall be
implemented in full in accordance with the approved plan unless otherwise
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure developments contribute to sustainable development.
Relevant policy: NPPF Section 10 (Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change,
Flooding and Coastal Change), Core Strategy policy CP1, Managing
Development Delivery Local Plan policy CC05 & the Sustainable Design and
Construction Supplementary Planning Document.
20. No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on
the approved plans shall be felled, uprooted wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut
back in any way or removed without previous written consent of the local
planning authority; any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without consent or
dying or being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years
from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be replaced with
trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species unless the local
planning authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: To secure the protection throughout the time that development is being
carried out, of trees, shrubs and hedges growing within the site which are of
amenity value to the area. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3 and
Managing Development Delivery Local Plan policies CC03 and TB21
21. The apartments hereby approved shall only be occupied by persons over the age
of 55 and by any wife, husband or partner of such a person unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy
CP7
22. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning, (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order with or without modification), no additional windows or similar
openings shall be constructed in the any of the elevations of the building hereby
permitted except for any which may be shown on the approved drawing(s).
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring properties.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3
23. The corridor windows in the south east elevation of the development hereby
permitted shall be permanently obscure-glazed and fixed closed at all times.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring properties.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP3
24. No works related to the development hereby approved, including works of
demolition or preparation prior to building operations, shall take place other than
between the hours of 8.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday and 8.00am to
13.00pm on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank or National Holidays
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority
Reason: To safeguard amenity of neighbouring properties. Relevant policies:
NPPF, Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP3
25. No other development of the site as hereby approved shall take place until the
access has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: To ensure adequate access into the site for vehicles, plant and

117

deliveries associated with the development in the interests of highway safety and
convenience. Relevant policy: Core Strategy policies CP3 & CP6.
26. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. Any subsequent investigation/remedial/protective works
deemed necessary by the LPA shall be carried out to agreed timescales and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. If no contamination is
encountered during the development correspondence confirming this fact shall
be submitted to the LPA upon completion of the development.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is remediated to protect
the existing/proposed occupants of the application site and adjacent land.
Relevant policy: Core Strategy policy CP1 and CP3
Informatives:
1. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m
head (approx. 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves
Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum
pressure in the design of the proposed development.
2. Records indicate a public sewer beneath or in close proximity to the proposed
development. In order to protect public sewers and to ensure that Thames Water
can gain access to those sewers for future repair and maintenance, approval
must be sought from Thames Water where the erection of a building or an
extension to a building or underpinning work would be over the line of, or would
come within 3 metres of, a public sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such
approval in respect of the construction of new buildings, but approval may be
granted in some cases for extensions to existing buildings. The applicant is
advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to
discuss the options available at this site.
3. The developer’s attention is drawn to the fact that this permission does not
authorise the physical construction of the proposed off-site highway works and
site access connections to the public highway. A separate legal agreement
made with the Council under s.278 of the Highways Act 1980 is required. No
work within or affecting the public highway shall commence until the agreement
has been completed and the Council, as local highway authority, has approved
all construction and installation details together with a programme of works.
4. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been
received. This planning application has been the subject of positive and proactive
discussions with the applicant in terms of:
(i)
full pre-application process was undertaken by the applicant;
(ii)
the design of the proposal;
(iii)
planning issues relating to ecology and drainage;
(iv)
amended plans being submitted by the applicant to overcome concerns
relating design and residential amenity;
The decision to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in
favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF is considered to be a

118

positive outcome of these discussions.
PLANNING HISTORY
 O/2011/2661 - Outline application for the erection of 26 dwellings with associated
access
and
parking.
Demolition
of
146
London
Road.
(Access appearance Layout and Scale to be considered) refused on 20th March
2012
 O/2014/1386 - Outline proposal for the erection of 16 dwellings with
redevelopment of site and associated works following demolition of existing
dwelling (All matters reserved) conditionally approved on 19th August 2015
SUMMARY INFORMATION
Site Area
Proposed density
Existing units
Proposed units
Existing parking spaces
Proposed parking spaces

0.63 hectares
49 dwellings per hectare
1 (remains of former dwelling)
31
0
33

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Berks, Bucks and Oxon Wildlife Trust
Berkshire Archaeology
Crime Prevention Design Officer
National Grid
Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue
Southern Gas Networks
SEE Power Distribution
Thames Water
NHS Wokingham Clinical Commissioning
Group
WBC Biodiversity
WBC Community Infrastructure
WBC Drainage
WBC Education
WBC Environmental Health
WBC Economic Sustainability Team
(Employment Skills)
WBC Housing
WBC Highways

No comments received
No objection subject to condition (11)
No comments received
No comments received
No objection
No comments received
No comments received
No objection subject to informative (2, 3)
No comments received
No objection subject to condition (18)
No comments received
No objection subject to condition (12)
No comments received
No objection subject to conditions (5, 10,
26)
No objection subject to condition (9)
No comments received
No objection subject to conditions (5, 13 –
17, 21, 25)
No objection
No objection subject to conditions (4, 7, 8
20)
No comments received
No objection

WBC LUTT (Policy)
WBC Tree & Landscape
WBC Property Services
WBC Waste Services

REPRESENTATIONS
Ruscombe Parish Council: Objection received with regards to the following:
 There is not a requirement for this type of housing
 Impact on local infrastructure

119







Out of keeping with the character of the area and the village design statement
Parking is inadequate
Drainage would not be acceptable
Boundary plans need clarification
Building is too dominant

Local Members: Objection received from Councillor Pitts with regards to the following:
 The scale and mass of the proposed building is totally out of character with the
surrounding area and Ruscombe
 The need for such a development is questionable
 The proposed parking is totally inadequate. Residents would need a car to
access the village and the bus stop is not nearby
 The current doctor’s surgery is heavily used and it is not easy to get an
appointment. The fact that s106 money goes to the NHS is irrelevant as it is
difficult to recruit GPs
Neighbours:
From WBC consultation:
9 letters of objection received with regards to the following:
 Too many properties proposed (See principle and character section)
 Out of character with the area and doesn’t comply with the village design
statement (See character section)
 Insufficient parking provided (See paragraph 32)
 Loss of privacy from overlooking (See neighbour section)
 Surface water flooding would be worsened (See paragraph 34)
 Too far from the centre of Twyford (Officer note: allocated housing site and
therefore sustainability already accepted)
 Substation gives access to adjoining properties (Officer note: substation would
be secured behind fencing/landscaping)
 Site would be better used for low rise development (See character section)
 Sets a precedent (Officer note: site is unique and therefore any other sites may
not accommodate the development)
 Strain on medical centre (Officer note: infrastructure impacts mitigated through
CIL payments)
 Overdevelopment of the site (See character section)
 Impact on traffic (See paragraph 31)
 Family homes are needed (Officer note: applications have to be assessed on
their own merits. There is a demonstrated need for elderly persons
accommodation as per paragraph 11)
 Fencing is required between the parking area and residential properties (Officer
note: boundary treatment controlled by condition 8)
 Overbearing impact due to height of proposal and proximity to boundaries (See
neighbour section)
1 letter of comment received with regards to the following:
 Clarification required on maintenance of planting (Officer note: this would be
maintained by McCarthy & Stone through their management of the site)
 Surface water comes off the site as drainage is poor (See paragraph 34)
From McCarthy & Stone Consultation:
33 letters of supporting received with regards to the following:
 Provision for elderly people in the area

120








Near the centre of Twyford
Will fit in design wise with other properties
Good for local village, shops and businesses
Type of accommodation proposed would be very useful
Better than lots of residential homes
Land has been an eyesore for years

From 2nd WBC consultation:
7 letters of objection received with regards to the following:
 Not in accordance with Ruscombe Village Design Statement (See character
section)
 Overdevelopment of the site (See character section)
 Height of flats would be obtrusive (See neighbour section)
 Paving would reduce absorption of rainwater (See paragraph 34)
 GP surgery currently full (Officer note: not a material planning consideration)
 Not enough parking (See paragraph 32)
 Already have retirement homes in the area (Officer note: not a material planning
consideration)
 Overlooking (See neighbour section)
 Family houses are required in the area (Officer note: applications have to be
assessed on their own merits. There is a demonstrated need for elderly persons
accommodation as per paragraph 11)
 Location of substation could be dangerous (Officer note: no objection from
consultees regarding this)
APPLICANTS POINTS
 Site is allocated for housing and development is expected on the site as part of
the Development Plan for the Borough
 Site is in a sustainable location
 National and local planning policy support the need for older persons
accommodation
 Proposal has been subject to a design review and amended accordingly
PLANNING POLICY
National Policy

NPPF

National Planning Policy Framework

Adopted Core Strategy DPD 2010

CP1

Sustainable Development

CP2

Inclusive Communities

CP3

General Principles for Development

CP4

Infrastructure Requirements

CP5

Housing mix, density and affordability

CP6

Managing Travel Demand

CP7

Biodiversity

CP9

Scale and Location of Development
Proposals

CP17

Housing Delivery

CC01

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development

Adopted Managing Development
Delivery Local Plan 2014

121

Supplementary Planning
Documents
(SPD)

CC02

Development Limits

CC03

Green Infrastructure, Trees and
Landscaping

CC04

Sustainable Design and Construction

CC09

Development and Flood Risk (from all
sources)

CC10

Sustainable Drainage

TB05

Housing Mix

TB07

Internal Space standards

TB09

Residential accommodation for
vulnerable groups

TB12

Employment Skills Plan

TB21

Landscape Character

SAL02

Allocated housing development sites

BDG

Borough Design Guide – Section 4

NISS

DCLG – National Internal Space
Standards

RVDS

Ruscombe Village Design Statement

PLANNING ISSUES
Description of Development:
1. The site is located within Ruscombe and currently comprises of an empty field
save for the remains of a former dwelling. A distinctive but failing line of conifers
is at the front of the site which prevents views from London Road. Around the site
are residential properties. The scheme is for the erection of 31 two bedroom
apartments with associated landscaping, communal space and parking. This
would be provided through a single building however its form and massing would
be split in response to land levels and the character of the area. The main access
would be from London Road at the north eastern section of the site, providing
vehicular access to the main parking area. Two other accesses are also
proposed with parking provision.
2. The proposal has been submitted by McCarthy & Stone, who specialise in
retirement housing. The scheme would be for retirement housing however this
would only be applied through an age exemption, in this case over 55. It is not
proposed to provide any healthcare through the development and therefore the
apartments are considered as C3 residential use class in planning terms. This
type of older persons accommodation provided by McCarthy & Stone is aimed at
those in the early stages of retirement, who wish to downsize into high quality but
low maintenance apartments instead of those which offer specific healthcare
needs. The emphasis with this type of development is more discrete features
such as higher levels of security and step free access to the apartments. Other
internal features are also typical of this type of development but are not a
planning consideration. The development would be visited by a Housing
Manager who would arrange for aspects such as window cleaning and ground
maintenance to take place but would not be required to live on the site nor be

122

there every day.
3. The overall design of the scheme is relatively challenging with the requirement
for a single building to be designed with broken up form whilst responding to the
topography of the site. The final design brought forward is for a ‘horseshoe’
shape building staggered over different floors due to land levels. The building can
be split into three areas; firstly the frontage onto London Road. This involves two
storey elements of the building deliberately designed to look as individual houses
which are connected via a lower subservient communal corridor. This element of
the proposal would be situated on the building line established by other
properties along London Road. Behind this element would be additional flats and
the refuse/cycle/buggy store which would be contained in a flat roof section and
the apartments would look directly onto the courtyard/communal area. Two
secondary entrances are proposed in conjunction with the additional
access/parking areas from London Road. The design of the building has
deliberately picked up on the design elements of London Road and therefore has
a gable roof as well as a projecting gable or flat roof frontage.
4. Secondly, is the central section of the site which comprises of a two storey form;
however it would be set higher than the front section due to the land levels. This
section is designed as more traditional semi-detached dwellings (with the
subservient link corridor) when viewing from the car parking area but again also
has the flat roof section with additional apartments behind. Due to being adjacent
to the car parking area, the main entrance to building would be contained in this
section and footpaths from London Road and around the parking area are
provided. A similar design as the front section has been taken forward with
projecting front gables or flat roof elements to add variety. However, the main
roof is hipped to reduce built form, particularly towards the London Road end.
5. The third section of the proposal whilst two storey, has been designed with
reduced mass and roof form and is connected to the central section by a flat roof
element comprising of the internal corridor. Although this continues the design
theme of the proposal, it has been designed with lower eaves to the rear and
without the flat roof section facing the courtyard area. As such, from the
courtyard area the typical design features are seen but from the opposite side,
i.e. from Walnut Tree Close, a much blanker elevation is seen. Some variation is
proposed through the flat roof section however this element of the proposal is in
direct response to the constraint of the neighbouring dwelling. Again the roof
would be hipped.
6. More generally, the apartments would all be two bedrooms and have accessible
showering/toilet facilities. Also proposed are separate living rooms and kitchens
and all upper floor apartments would have access to an external balcony. The
building would be set around a communal garden area which would have defined
walkways and seating areas. Beyond the third section of the building would be an
informal planting area which can be accessed from either side of the site.
Landscaping to the front would comprise of trees and hedgerow to help alleviate
the built form and integrate the building into the street scene. Infiltration ditches
are also proposed along the frontage as part of the drainage system however
these would be designed to enhance the landscaping. Along the side boundaries
existing vegetation would be retained. In terms of materials, it is proposed to use
a red brick to match other properties on London Road and a pearl silver render.

123

Roofs would comprise of grey slate or ply membrane and fenestration would
typically be grey UPVc.
7. Given the massing of the building and its context in a lower density setting, it was
considered prudent for the scheme to be reviewed by the South East Design
Review Panel. Following the review, the panel’s comments were taking into
account by the applicant and revised plans submitted. The report makes
reference to the panel’s comments in assessing the design of the proposal as
this has been influential in the acceptability of the scheme. Also referenced is the
extant outline permission on the site for 16 dwellings: O/2014/1386. The
applicant has provided 3D modelling of this approved scheme to enable
comparisons between this and the current proposal.
Principle of Development:
8. The National Planning Policy Framework has an underlying presumption in
favour of sustainable development which is carried through to the local
Development Plan. The Managing Development Delivery Local Plan (MDD)
Policy CC01 states that planning applications that accord with the policies in the
Development Plan for Wokingham Borough will be approved without delay,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
9. Policy CC02 of the MDD sets out the development limits for each settlement as
defined on the policies map and therefore replaces the proposals map adopted
through the Core Strategy, as per the requirement of policy CP9. Policy CP9 sets
out that development proposals located within development limits will be
acceptable, having regard to the service provisions associated with the major,
modest and limited categories. As the site is within a modest development
location, the proposal is acceptable in principle.
10. Notwithstanding the above, the site is allocated for residential use through policy
SAL02 of the MDD which designates the site for around 15 dwellings. Therefore,
it needs to be demonstrated that the proposal accords with this allocation both in
terms of use and number of dwellings provided. As set out above, the proposal is
for age exclusive apartments provided by McCarthy & Stone. A clear distinction
should be made in that the accommodation is to allow for older people to live
independently rather than providing any element of healthcare. In this respect,
the proposal is for C3 use class housing just with an age exemption.
11. Through national and local policy, it is recognised there is a need for older
person’s accommodation. Due to an ageing population, there is a growing
requirement for specific accommodation that allows older people to downsize into
appropriate, low maintenance apartments. The applicant has provided several
national reports that highlight this. Supporting this, the NPPF states at paragraph
50 that local authorities should plan for a mix of housing based on current and
future demographic trends with older people given as an example. At a local
level, it is noted that the Strategic Housing Market Assessment projects an
increase in older people over the development plan period. Furthermore, policy
CP2 of the Core Strategy states “to ensure that new development contributes to
the provision of sustainable and inclusive communities (including the provision of
community facilities) to meet long term needs, planning permission will be
granted for proposals that address the requirements of: an ageing population,

124

particularly in terms of housing, health and wellbeing”. Policy TB09 of the MDD
also supports, in principle, schemes that provide for the elderly through purpose
built accommodation. As such, it is considered there is a recognised need for
older person’s accommodation both nationally and locally which is reflected in
planning policy.
12. The proposal is for 31 apartments which allows for a greater level of
development than the original allocation envisaged as set out in policy SAL02.
However, the policy is worded to allow flexibility in the number of units provided
due to site constraints and opportunities. The overprovision of residential units in
itself is not considered to make a development unacceptable in principle and it
should be noted that the overprovision is beneficial to housing land supply.
Additionally, the provision of older person’s accommodation is considered
beneficial and adds weight in favour of the quantum of development. As a result
of the above, the provision of 31 apartments with an age exemption is accepted
in principle.
Character of the Area:
13. Existing character: The site is located within a triangle of land between London
Road, New Road and Northbury Avenue. Within and adjoining this triangle are
residential properties and this is the established character (save for one
commercial use in the form of a nursery on New Road). The site itself is
essentially an open field with hedgerow and trees along the boundaries. The
remains of a former dwelling are located in the northern corner but otherwise the
site is undeveloped. The land rises towards the south east and is most noticeable
at the southern corner.
14. The junction of London Road and New Road represents the start of the
settlement of Ruscombe and is characterised by detached two storey dwellings
along both roads, although there are some bungalows. There are a mix of sizes
and scales which results in multiple roof forms including hipped and gable. There
is also a mix of materials with red brick being predominant but other colours and
render also present in the street scene. The more defining characteristic of both
New Road and this side of London Road is the set back of the dwellings on a
building line which allows for a grass verge adjacent to the main highway. On the
opposite side of London Road there is a set design of dwellings with a row of red
brick, two storey semi-detached dwellings. These are set back further from the
road including a group set on their own side road.
15. Within the triangle of land, and immediately to the south west of the site, the
character for detached dwellings set back from the road continues to the junction
with Northbury Avenue. However, Russet Gardens is a small cul-de-sac
backland development to the rear of these properties. The dwellings are semidetached and arranged in a tighter, denser form of development than those on
London Road. Northbury Avenue signifies another change comprising of
bungalows on either side of the road. These properties follow a set pattern with
similar materials and set back on a building line. Off Northbury Avenue is
Northbury Lane which leads to Garraway Close. Similar to Russet Gardens, this
backland development is a much denser form and comprises both semidetached and detached dwellings. An additional dwelling, off Garraway Close
(Magnolia House) is a further backland development and is located adjacent to

125

the application site. Close to Magnolia House, but accessed from New Road, is
Walnut Tree Close. This is further backland development consisting of 10
detached, two storey properties arranged around a single access road.
16. Scale, massing and layout: The proposal has been designed as a single
building due to the product McCarthy & Stone wish to provide. Specifically, this
enables step free internal access to all the apartments. It is acknowledged
however that this results in one large block which is different to the grain of
development in the surrounding area. At this stage, it was considered prudent to
take the application to the Design Review Panel to assess if this difference would
cause harm to the character of the area. However, the Panel did not consider this
to be the case and as such, significant weight is placed on this in taking the
scheme forward. In any case, through the application process, the design of the
building has been altered to encourage the built form to be broken up and
articulated. Specifically, along the London Road frontage, the building has been
divided with the internal corridor aspect set back to give the appearance of
individual houses. There is also variation in the ridge height of these units
however the scheme presents a step change in ridge heights along London
Road. Given the character of London Road and the mix of ridge heights, this is
considered appropriate.
17. The topography of the land results in a challenging site and therefore the scheme
has been designed in a staggered form. Except for one part of the central
section, the building remains as two storeys and the rear section is reduced in
scale compared to the central area. It is noted that the central section appears
higher than the front section particularly through the elevational plans and this
impact was highlighted by the Design Review Panel. As a result, the roof for the
central section has been hipped to reduce the amount of built form in this area. It
is also considered that actual views of this part of the building would be difficult
from the street scene due to the front section of the building. As such, due to the
articulation of the building, the single plan form and scale of the proposal is not
considered to result in a detrimental impact on the character of the area.
18. Materials and design features: As noted above, there is a mix of materials
within the street scene although red brick is relatively prominent. The Design
Review Panel considered that a more modern approach in terms of materials
could be acceptable in the area given the variation however noted that the use of
red brick to complement the existing properties would be beneficial to the
scheme. It is acknowledged that the proposal would be of a more modern
appearance, particularly when viewed against the properties on the opposite side
of London Road. Nonetheless, the use of similar materials in a mixed area is
considered appropriate.
19. The proposal uses multiple design features to give variety and articulation to the
scheme. In particular, the use projecting gable frontages, brick detailing and
balconies are considered to represent a high quality of design as well as being
reflective of the street scene. Whilst it is noted that balconies are not a feature of
the street scene, the use of glazed screen balconies, rather than a more solid
balustrade form is considered to overcome this as they would not be overly
prominent. The Design Review Panel noted that the north eastern elevation
facing the main entrance lacked any architectural merit and therefore a bay form
has been added to prevent this from being a blank elevation. The Design Review

126

Panel also noted that the internal and external facades of the proposal could
benefit from the use of different materials. As a result, further analysis of the local
vernacular has taken place and introduced into the scheme including brick
detailing. The overall design approach and the articulation of the building form
are therefore considered appropriate and create a suitable public façade and
private area. Furthermore, changes to the main entrance from the car parking
area have been made as a result of the Design Review Panel including a formal
landscaping area to clearly indicate the entrance feature.
20. Density: The scheme is of a higher density than surrounding areas however this
is because of the inclusion of multiple apartments instead of through separate
detached dwellings. As noted above, the area is mixed in terms of its character
and overall density. Walnut Tree Close is approximately 15 dwellings per
hectare, with Garraway Close and Russet Gardens both approximately 32
dwellings per hectare. The site is allocated for residential use in the development
plan and therefore it is envisaged that development can occur there. Given the
size of the site, the density of any scheme is likely to be higher than the
surrounding areas. It is acknowledged that the Ruscombe Village Design
Statement states that development in this area should not be based solely on the
character of Garraway Close but nonetheless the mix of densities in the
immediate area is considered an indication of the established and varied
character. As such, it is not considered the proposal would detrimentally impact
on this.
21. Landscaping: Along London Road, there are numerous hedgerows along the
front boundaries with gaps for access. This is reinforced directly opposite the site
by the semi-detached dwellings set further back on their own road resulting in a
long hedgerow by the road side. Additionally, both sides of the road contain
grass verges. The proposal would result in the loss of the conifer trees at the
front of the site however these are of a declining quality and failing in places. The
loss of these trees, albeit removing the front boundary element; has been
considered acceptable in previous applications, specifically O/2014/1386.
22. In any case, development of the site is an opportunity to provide replacement
landscaping and achieve betterment across the site. Specifically, the front
boundary planting has been carried forward in the design proposals to integrate
into the street scene. The Design Review Panel considered the frontage
landscaping should be broken down more and therefore individual trees with
some hedgerow have now been included. It was also considered that the
substation would benefit from greater landscaping around it to ensure it did not
become a focal point when moving into the car parking area.
23. Also noted by the panel was to simplify the planting palette and use more native
species. Although specific species would be controlled by the landscaping
condition, the indicative species in the Design and Access Statement are
considered appropriate. Another aspect considered by the panel was the
courtyard area. Following their comments this has been redesigned to take better
account of the topography of the land as well as include connectivity around the
site through informal pathways. Importantly, the boundary planting, particularly
along the east and west edges of the site, would be enhanced and would help to
mitigate the built form. Planting is also used to alleviate the impact of the parking
areas and provide screening to the rear of the site. Overall, the landscaping is

127

considered appropriate for the site and would help in mitigating the increase in
built form. The Tree and Landscape Officer does not object subject to conditions
(7, 8).
Residential Amenities:
24. Properties on opposite side of London Road: These properties would be
located approximately 70 metres away from the proposal and therefore no
harmful impact would occur with regards to a loss of light, overlooking or
overbearing.
25. 148 London Road: This property would be located 15.8 metres from the nearest
element of built form (side to side relationship) and therefore no harmful loss of
light or overbearing impact would occur. With regards to overlooking, there are
no side facing windows other than at ground floor on the elevation facing the site
and therefore no harmful impact would occur in terms of overlooking into the
property. In terms of the garden, the closest point of the development (i.e. the
balconies) would be 24.8 metres increasing to 27.5 metres at the ‘top’ of the site.
Although the topography of the site is acknowledged, the separation distance
and the boundary treatments that could be secured are considered to mitigate
the fact there are properties facing towards the garden area.
26. 132 London Road: Whilst this property would be located approximately 5.0
metres from the nearest element of built form (up to a single storey extension
and side to side relationship), this would be on the same building line and there
are no windows serving habitable rooms (save for one high level window) on the
elevation facing the site. As such, no harmful impact would occur with regards to
loss of light, overbearing or overlooking into the property. With regards to
overlooking of the garden, it is considered the proposed apartments at the ‘top’ of
the site and those through the centre would potentially have an impact. The
apartments at the top of the site would be 48 metres away and although the
topography of the land is acknowledged, this would not be any worse of an
impact than the overlooking from Magnolia House, Northbury Lane. The
apartments through the centre of the site would be 28 metres at their nearest
point and again, although the topography of the land is acknowledged, the
separation distance and boundary treatments would mitigate the impact.
27. Magnolia House, Northbury Avenue: Whilst this property would be located
approximately 5.0 metres from the nearest element of built form this would be on
the same building line and there are no windows serving habitable rooms on the
elevation facing the site. As such, no harmful impact would occur with regards to
loss of light, overbearing or overlooking into the property. With regards to
overlooking of the garden, it is considered the proposed apartments at the
‘bottom’ of the site and those through the centre would potentially have an
impact. The apartments at the bottom of the site would be 38 metres away and
although the topography of the land is acknowledged, this would not be any
worse of an impact than the overlooking from 132 London Road. The apartments
through the centre of the site would be 25.4 metres at their nearest point and
again, although the topography of the land is acknowledged, the separation
distance and boundary treatments would mitigate the impact.
28. Properties on Walnut Tree Close: With regards to 6 Walnut Tree Close, it is

128

noted at its closest point, the proposal would be 12 metres away. However, this
is between the corners of the buildings. The land would be reformed slightly to
ensure that the building would be no higher than 6 Walnut Tree Close.
Additionally, the roof form would be reduced when compared to the other
sections of the building. Although it is noted that the proposal would be close to
the property and this was highlighted by the Design Review Panel, the western
elevation of the dwelling contains either secondary windows or windows serving
non-habitable rooms. As such, the proximity of the proposal does not result in a
harmful overbearing or loss of light impact.
29. With regards to overlooking, no windows serving habitable rooms would be on
the elevation facing the neighbouring property. The only windows facing the
dwelling would be for the corridor element which could be obscured glazed and
non-opening in any case (23).The norther elevation of 6 Walnut Tree Close does
contain windows serving habitable rooms however these would be of a sufficient
distance and orientation to ensure no harmful overlooking, overbearing or loss of
light impact would occur. It is noted the garden would be impacted to an extent
however the main section of the garden is intended to the rear (or beyond the
north elevation). Boundary treatment helps obscure the site from view and this
would be retained but in any case a condition requiring details to be agreed is
included (8). As the other properties in Walnut Tree Close are located further
away, it is considered the separation distance and boundary treatment would
mitigate any harmful impact.
Access and Movement:
30. Highway Safety: The site would be accessed from London Road and this is
considered acceptable in terms of visibility splays. The introduction of three
separate accesses was considered acceptable as part of the previous outline
application (O/2014/1386) and would be similar to the existing properties along
London Road. With regards to the internal traffic movements, the main access
would maintain a 5 metre width to the ‘top’ of the site and sufficient turning space
is provided. In terms of construction traffic, a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted and the Highways Officer does not object to this subject to a
condition (17).
31. Traffic Impact: It is noted that the site does not generate any trips at this time as
it is currently vacant (save for the remains of a dwelling). Although an increase in
trips would have some impact on the local network, the site is allocated for a
residential use in the development plan. As such, it is envisaged that the
development of the site and the additional trips that would be created could be
accommodated in the Borough. In any case, the additional trips generated are
not considered to have a detrimental impact at peak times (based on TRICS
data). The Highways Officer has considered this and does not object to the
proposal.
32. Parking: The proposal indicates that 33 parking spaces would be provided
across the site on an unallocated basis. This would be through a main area off
the main access and additional spaces to the front of the site. On the basis of a
C3 residential use, the parking standards require one space for each dwelling
provided that they are all unallocated. As a result, there is an overprovision of
parking by 2 spaces when considered against the standards although it is noted

129

this needs to be secured through a condition (15). The provision of unallocated
parking allows for flexibility between residents and visitors to the site. As
described above, the scheme has been submitted as part of McCarthy & Stone’s
older person’s accommodation. The flats are intended as properties for those
over the age of 55 and it is accepted that there is a reduced demand for parking
as a result of the age restriction. On this basis, and subject to a condition limiting
the age of occupants (21), the Highways Officer considers the parking provision
is acceptable.
33. Sustainability: As the site is allocated for housing and within development limits,
the sustainability in highway terms has already been considered acceptable
through the adoption of the MDD. The proposal includes sufficient space for
cycle and buggy provision within the building. Cycle provision for visitors can be
secured through a condition (13).
Flooding and Drainage:
34. The site is located in Flood Zone 1 and therefore there is a low probability of
flooding. However, it is noted that the site has a history of surface water drainage
issues and therefore a Flood Risk Assessment and a Drainage Strategy has
been submitted. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposal would create a large
amount of impermeable surfaces, the FRA concludes that with appropriate
Sustainable Urban Drainage methods, and in particular permeable pavements,
geo-cellular attenuation systems and traditional lined soakaways, the impact of
the proposal could be mitigated. The Drainage Officer has considered this and,
following further details regarding infiltration rates, does not object to the scheme
subject to a condition (12).
Trees:
35. With regards to the impact on trees through construction, a tree survey has been
submitted which shows there are trees at the edges of the site which would
require some protection. This could be controlled through a condition (4).
Environmental Health:
36. The Environmental Health Officer has not raised specific objections to the
proposal but note that some environmental health issues would require details to
be agreed in a Construction Environmental Management Plan including
mitigating the impact of dust (5). Due to the scale of development proposed, a
precautionary contamination condition is recommended (26) as well as details of
an external lighting scheme to be agreed (10).
Amenity Space for Future Occupiers:
37. The Borough Design Guide advises that all dwellings should have access to
some form of amenity space preferably in the form of private or communal
garden space. It is also noted that upper floor dwellers rarely have access to
gardens and therefore balconies should be incorporated to provide privacy and
receive sunlight.
38. It is proposed to provide communal space to the western end of the site as part

130

of a landscaped communal garden. This would be an area for residents to
congregate or walk round and, following the design review panel’s comments,
has been designed to better reflect the topography of the land. The space is
considered appropriate and usable and with appropriate landscaping would
receive sunlight but also achieve some privacy.
39. Also proposed are balconies on the upper floor flats. Each balcony is of a
suitable size that can accommodate people and furniture if required and
therefore no objection is raised in this respect. The Design Review Panel did
note that the balconies facing the courtyard could result in some overlooking
between properties. However, the balconies are generally set back resulting in
oblique angles towards other apartments and in any case, such relationships
would be expected in an apartment scheme.
Internal Space Standards:
40. Internal space standards are set nationally and the requirement for a two bed
(four bed space) apartment is 70m2. The smallest apartments in the proposal
would be 87m2 and therefore no objection is raised in this respect.
Ecology:
41. An ecological survey was carried out and submitted with the application. The
survey concludes that the habitats found in the site were of low ecological value
and are common and widespread in the local area. However, in respect of
protected species, slow worms are known to be present on the site. As a result,
translocation of these reptiles has taken place and therefore their conservation
status has been maintained. Notwithstanding this, the Ecology Officer has raised
a concern that not all the slow worms may have been removed and therefore
recommends that a mitigation strategy is agreed by condition (18).
Sustainable Design and Construction:
42. Due to the replacement of the Code for Sustainable Homes with national
standards in building regulations, the proposal is not required to meet Code 4 in
line with Policy CC04 of the MDD. However, the policy does require that all
development should incorporate suitable waste management facilities including
on-site recycling. It is considered that sufficient internal and external storage
could be provided to accommodate this.
43. Policy CC05 requires residential proposals of more than 10 dwellings to deliver a
minimum 10% reduction in carbon emissions through renewable energy or low
carbon technology. An Energy Statement has been submitted which states how
this would be achieved through the use of solar PV panels. As such, it is
considered necessary to condition that the development is carried out in
accordance with this statement (19).
Community Infrastructure Levy:
44. As the proposal is for new residential floor space, it would be a CIL liable
development. CIL is charged at a rate of £365 per square metre. A CIL liability
notice would be issued in the event of the application being approved.

131

Affordable Housing:
45. As per policy CP5 of the Core Strategy, a 40% provision of affordable housing is
required which equates to 12.4 units (£1,307,702 index linked as an off-site
contribution). However, it would not be possible to provide affordable housing on
site as the scheme is not large enough to provide a separate block of housing,
and ‘pepper potting’ of the affordable units would not be possible due to the
significantly higher management charges levied on occupiers in schemes of this
type. The Council’s Economic Sustainability Team agrees that in this instance it
would be appropriate to accept a financial contribution as a commuted sum in
lieu of on-site affordable housing provision. This would assist in enabling the
provision of larger affordable units elsewhere within the Borough.
46. The ‘Affordable Housing Statement’ submitted alongside the planning application
indicated that the development would not be able to provide a contribution
towards the provision of off-site affordable housing. However, the viability has
been independently assessed and it has been found that a viable scheme could
still be delivered were a financial contribution of £150,000 provided. The
applicant has agreed this figure, and therefore a commuted sum of £150,000 for
the provision of affordable housing will be included within a S106 Legal
Agreement.
Employment Skills:
47. Policy TB12 of the MDD requires major applications to demonstrate how they
can encourage the use of local skills and employment. The proposal is
considered appropriate for this and therefore a condition requiring a plan to be
submitted is included (9).
CONCLUSION
The application is considered to be acceptable in terms of the impact on the character
of the area, the residential amenity of neighbouring properties and future occupiers.
Sufficient parking provision has been indicated and the proposal would provide
mitigation for protected species. Adding weight in favour of the proposal is the provision
of older person’s accommodation. As such, the proposal is recommended for
conditional approval.
CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Email
Development
0118 974 6428 / 6429 development.control@wokingham.gov.uk
Management and
Regulatory Services

132

133

HARDWORKS KEY

E
B

E
4

SUB
STATION
5

2

3

3

6

6

B

4

A

E
F

E

A

*

4

6

4

4

VEHICULAR TARMAC
(IMPERMEABLE)

4

VEHICULAR TARMAC WITH
CHIPPINGS (PERMEABLE)

5

VEHICULAR TARMAC WITH
CHIPPINGS (IMPERMEABLE)

6

PEDESTRIAN TARMAC
WITH CHIPPINGS

7

GRAVEL

PERGOLA

*

SOFTWORKS KEY
A

LAWN

B

SHRUB PLANTING

C

DEFENSIBLE PLANTING

D

WILD AREA

E

HEDGE

F

INFILTRATION POND

B

E
B

B

6

C

C

C
C

RAISED PLANTER

1

2

3

SCULPTURE

E

1

6

3

*

*

E
B

B

VEHICULAR TARMAC
(PERMEABLE)

BENCHES

*

*

C

2

FLUSH KERB

*

C

E

E

*

B

STONE FLAG PAVING
(ENTRANCES)

4

B
A

1

PROPOSED TREE

C
EXISTING TREE

A

4

*

CLIMBING ROSES TO
PERGOLA

B

134
A
7

A

6

B

B

C
C

F

C

C

B

C

C

E
E

6
4

B

A
2

3

1

D
B

6
A

B
C

4

D

A

6
A

F

E

C
C
6

B

B
E

PLANNING
McCarthy & Stone

E

134-142 London Road, Ruscombe
Annotated Site Plan

1:200

June 2016

AP

AT

SE - 2293 - 03 - AC - PL1111

ac c o r

a

r

c

h

i

t

e

c

t

u

A
r

De

w w w . a c c o r d a r c h i t e c t u r e . c o m

Scale: 1:200 @ A1

Compton House, Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4TX
[t] 01483 455100 [f] 01483 455210 [E] mail@accordarchitecture.com

E

+ 42.25

B

E

4

B
4

A

+ 42.35

5

1:20
+ 44.05
2

+ 43.45

3

+ 44.10

1:55

1:20
+ 42

3

+ 43.65

B

1:40
+ 42.50

6

C

*

6

4

A

AIRING
CUPB
WALK IN
WARDROBE

BEDROOM 2

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

HALLWAY

F
A

*

+ 41.5
UTILITY
CUPBOARD

E

CLOAKROOM

C

SHOWER
ROOM

B

4

E

LIVING

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

6
KITCHEN

DINING

+ 43.95

4

*

E
B

B
+ 44.40

1

6
C

+ 44.40

B

+ 45.05
6

+44.5

Fall 1:20

+41.5
REFUSE

E

+ 44.77

E
B

+ 43.85

B

1

4

*

ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

WALK IN
WARDROBE

BEDROOM 1

+ 42.30
41.5

*

+41.75

1:55

1:40

1:40

+ 42.00

+ 42.50

E

E

*

+ 43.47

SUB
STATION

C

+44.5

C
C

+ 42.20

3 + 42.40

1

+ 42.00

2

+ 41.50

+ 45.22
+ 44.50

WALK IN
WARDROBE

AIRING
SHOWER
ROOM

CLOAKROOM

WALK IN
WARDROBE

HALLWAY

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

UTILITY
CUPBOARD

2

AIRING
CUPB

7
ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

B

+ 45.55

Lift 1
SHOWER
ROOM

BEDROOM 2

Plant

GF 41.5

CLOAKROOM

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

A

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

BEDROOM 1

BUGGIES /
CYCLES

KITCHEN

LIVING

FRENCH BALCONY

UTILITY
CUPBOARD
WALK IN
WARDROBE

DINING

KITCHEN

Stair 1

HALLWAY

135

4

ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

C

DINING
WALK IN
WARDROBE

Seating
Area

Fire Exit
BEDROOM 1

A

+ 45.80

BEDROOM 2
LIVING

7

A

6

B

B

C

C

BEDROOM 2

WALK IN
WARDROBE

C

C

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

HALLWAY

SHOWER
ROOM

3

E
E

6

UTILITY
CUPBOARD

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

UTILITY
CUPBOARD

WALK IN
WARDROBE

BEDROOM 2

B

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

LIVING

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

4

SHOWER
ROOM

HALLWAY

6

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

BEDROOM 1

WALK IN
WARDROBE

ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

DINING

B

C

LIVING

C

FRENCH BALCONY

F

DINING

ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

WALK IN
WARDROBE

BEDROOM 1

A
+ 41.50

1

+ 42.00

C
FRENCH BALCONY

LIVING

D

DINING

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

UTILITY
CUPBOARD

A

Stair 3

SHOWER
ROOM
ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

WALK IN
WARDROBE

BEDROOM 1

6

BEDROOM 2

HALLWAY

HALLWAY

E
C

B

5

WALK IN
WARDROBE

F

A

6

BEDROOM 2

A

B

6

UTILITY
CUPBOARD

SERVICES
CUPBOARD

DINING

LIVING

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

4

4

WALK IN
WARDROBE

SHOWER
ROOM

LARGE BALCONY SPACE

2

+ 42.50

BEDROOM 1

3

WALK IN
WARDROBE

ENSUITE
SHOWER ROOM

+ 42.15

D

C
+ 42.14

Fire Exit

+ 42.69
B
+ 46.25

B
+ 41.65

E

+ 42.06
+ 43.35

+ 46.29

PLANNING
McCarthy & Stone

E

134-142 London Road, Ruscombe
Proposed Ground Floor Plan
+ 41.71
1:200

June 2016

AP

AT

SE - 2293 - 03 - AC - PL1210

ac c o r

a

r

c

h

i

t

e

c

t

u

A
r

De

w w w . a c c o r d a r c h i t e c t u r e . c o m

Compton House, Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4TX

Scale: 1:200 @ A1

[t] 01483 455100 [f] 01483 455210 [E] mail@accordarchitecture.com

E

+ 42.95
+ 42.22

E

B
4

B
4

A

SUB
STATION

+ 44.35
5

+ 43

3

+ 43.25

6

B

4

A

E
E
6
Fire
Escape

+ 44.15

*

C

B
6

+44.35
C

MAIN ENTRANCE

+ 45.05
C

AOV

1

2

+44.35

C

+ 44.5
3

E

B

E
B

1

6

+ 44.35

4
+ 44.35

+ 44.77

E
B

+ 43.75

B

8

4

4
+ 44

*

*

C

F
A

*

*

C

E

E

*

B

6

+ 44.00

2
+ 43.8

+ 43.5

3

SHOPPERS ENTRANCE

+44.5

C

+ 45.57
+ 44.5

LOBBY

Plant
4

Lift 2

FOYER

Plant

Lift 1

9

10

11
18

A

12

17

16

+44.42

LOBBY

FF 44.5
B

23

Seating
Area

Stair 1

136

A

STORE

Blank
Window

7

A

6

B

B

C
WC
C

F

C

C

B

22

C
6

4

E+46.15

C

19

Fire Exit
+44.5

+43.90

E

B
15

+46
A

D

2

3

1

AOV

14

B

6
A

B

20

C

4

21

+43.70
D

A

A

F

E
C
6

Fire
Escape

Stair 3

6
44.35+

C

High Level
Window

B

+47.07

B
E

+46.00
+ 44.29

PLANNING
McCarthy & Stone

E

134-142 London Road, Ruscombe
Proposed First Floor

1:200

Jan 2016

AP

AT

SE - 2293 - 03 - AC - PL1211

ac c o r

a

r

c

h

i

t

e

c

t

u

A
r

De

w w w . a c c o r d a r c h i t e c t u r e . c o m

Compton House, Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4TX

Scale: 1:200 @ A1

[t] 01483 455100 [f] 01483 455210 [E] mail@accordarchitecture.com

E
B

E

4

B
4

A

SUB
STATION

+ 44.35
5

2

3

3

*

B

6

6

B

4

A

E
E
4

4
+ 44.35

*

B

E
B

B

1

6

E

+ 44.77

E
B

B

6

4
+ 44

*

*

C

F
A

*

*

C

E

E

6

+44.35

C

C

+44.35
+ 45.05

C
C

1

2

3

+ 45.57

C
AOV

Plant

137

Lift 2

4
Lift 1

24

25

CORRIDOR

26

GF 47.5

32

CORRIDOR

31

A

27
30

+44.42

LOBBY

Plant
B
VOID

Stair 1

A
7

A

6

B

B

C
C

F

C

C

B

C

E+46.15

C
6

LEVEL BELOW

E

+44.5

B
29

CORRIDOR

4

+43.90

+46

A
2

3

1

D
B

6

+47.5
Fire Exit

A

28

+46.60
B
C

4

+43.70
D

+46.85

6
A

F

E

A

44.35+

C
C
6

B

+47.07

B
E

+46.00

PLANNING
McCarthy & Stone

E

134-142 London Road, Ruscombe
Proposed Second Floor

1:200

Jan 2016

AP

AT

SE - 2293 - 03 - AC - PL1212

ac c o r

a

r

c

h

i

t

e

c

t

u

A
r

De

w w w . a c c o r d a r c h i t e c t u r e . c o m

Compton House, Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4TX

Scale: 1:200 @ A1

[t] 01483 455100 [f] 01483 455210 [E] mail@accordarchitecture.com

138

139

140

141

This page is intentionally left blank

143

144

Planning Application 161845 ~ 132 /146 London Road, Ruscombe
RESPONSE BY RUSCOMBE PARISH COUNCIL
August 2016
THE KEY CONSIDERATIONS
There can be no denying the well researched and documented case, made by
the Applicants, McCarthy & Stone (Ortus), for the need for more 'retirement
living' homes in the Wokingham Borough, stands up to close examination.
But, this need for such additional retirement stock is not relevant, locally.
Fortunately, for the residents of Ruscombe, there is an above~average range
of options, open to those seeking a specialist 'retirement living' home in the
local vicinity. Indeed, our residents are well served already, with new
retirement dwellings being offered now … and already planned into the future.
The addition of yet more 'retirement living' options is unnecessary and will
further imbalance the housing mix to the detriment of the Parish as a whole.
Conversely, the Parish of Ruscombe falls far short in providing Affordable
Homes or those suitable for first time buyers. The Applicants suggest that the
availability of their retirement living dwellings will help mitigate this situation.
However, with higher than average house prices in Ruscombe, where “homes …
can reach up to £1m” (Ortus publicity), they offer little such tangible benefit.
A final consideration is the total lack of any infrastructure support to
accommodate the increased demand in meeting the special needs of more
elderly residents. In particular, this applies to the pressured medical surgery
and fully stretched voluntary services.
Therefore, in view of these key considerations, this Planning Application must
be judged, not on the needs it seeks to satisfy, but solely on whether it
satisfies the planning guidelines, as set out in the Ruscombe Village Design
Statement (RVDS). Since 2011, this Statement has been acknowledged as a
key Supplementary Planning Document by Wokingham Borough Council.
THE RUSCOMBE VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT
At the informal meeting between the Applicants and Ruscombe Parish Council
on Wednesday 1st June 2016, some immediate concerns were raised by
Councillors in respect of 'character of the area' and 'density'~ both key
components of the RVDS.
To help clarify these concerns, a copy of the relevant section of the RVDS was
presented to the Applicants. However, it will be seen from concerns, expressed
below, that little attention appears to have been paid by the Applicants to
satisfying the guidelines set out in the RVDS.
CHARACTER: the development of a large, monolithic block on this site would
be in direct contrast to the open and leafy character of the area. This is
reflected in the street scene of detached, individually styled dwellings, with
extensive gardens, located in a desirable, semi~rural village setting. Ruscombe
Parish Council continues to fight hard to protect the character of this idyllic and
highly desirable place to live and bring up a family.

145

DENSITY: it is totally unrealistic to equate the provision of 16 individual homes
on this site, each with their own private garden (already approved in Outline)
with even the reduced 31 apartments proposed within a single, dense mass.
STYLE: the style of the proposed development is more attune to an urban,
rather than this semi-rural location. To be acceptable, it needs to be positioned
in an area with similar sized/designed developments. Whilst the Applicants
have been careful to present illustrations of the likely street scene from an
angle, thus suggesting individual blocks, this is not reflected when the site is
viewed by residents living directly across the road. There, the full impact of the
mass will be highly visible ~ in contrast to all other London Road dwellings.
Furthermore, the extensive use of balconies for each block is not in keeping.
PARKING & ACCESS: Both these issues are of considerable concern to RPC.
The proposed provision of just 33 PARKING spaces for 31 dwellings is totally
inadequate, even though it meets parking standards. This is because the
proposed site, unlike all the other local 'retirement living' options, is not central
to any of the main amenities. Such claims by the Applicants are misleading.
For example, there is no bus stop “just out the front of the development”
(Ortus publicity). A car will prove to be essential for many of the residents on
this site. For those without, it will take at least 20 minutes to walk to the
central shops, including the Post Office, Waitrose and the many cafes, pubs
and restaurants.
Furthermore, 33 parking spaces makes very little provision for visitor parking;
for the support services (eg; health workers), not forgetting the on-line
delivery vehicles. Any overflow parking, situated on London Road, would be
unacceptable, because of the significant traffic dangers this will create.
The majority of vehicles on site must ACCESS the busy London Road only via a
single driveway, which narrows in the middle (why?). Returning, they must
face the dangers of crossing over, in front of in-coming traffic.
Ruscombe PC would ask WBC Highways to satisfy themselves, both as to the
number of proposed parking spaces for the proposed number of dwellings and
the safety of access for these vehicles, both onto and off the London Road.
SUSTAINABILTY: the Applicants have presented a strong case to support their
sustainability credentials. The truth, however, is that this mass concreted area
will block all natural drainage and so have a major impact on a location already
known for its flooding problems. Ruscombe PC would ask WBC Environmental
Services to satisfy themselves that the Applicants case, to provide linear
infiltration ditches along London Road, will address this issue. Furthermore, the
Landscape Plan would appear to suggest these infiltration ditches will be left
open, thus raising safety concerns. Clarification is required.
FULLY IN KEEPING: it has already been argued this proposed development
can, in no way, be considered as being in keeping with the area. There is
nothing else in style and mass like this within the Parish ~ or even close by.
SUBSIDENCE: this area is prone to building subsidence. Some properties in
Walnut Tree Close (directly above the application site) and in lower Northbury

146

Avenue have been affected. All the properties in Russett Gardens, built by
Shanly Homes, stand on platform stilts, pile-driven into the heavy clay. This
was deemed necessary by WBC Planning in order to avoid any subsidence.
In view of this, WBC should assure itself that the foundation plans for this
proposed development, situated on a similar, sloping clay base, will address
any potential subsidence issues.
BOUNDARIES: the boundary plans, in particular those shown adjacent to
Walnut Tree Close, need clarification (Typographical Survey). Should the Land
Registry Deeds for the site not clearly register ownership of the existing hedge,
then, under the Land Registry Act 2002, the boundary between the site and
Walnut Tree Close lies in the middle of the hedge. The same diligence should
also be applied to the other two hedges, running up each side of the site, when
determining the correct boundaries.
VISUAL IMPACT: the true visual and overwhelming impact of this proposed
development can be seen from the South West and South East Elevations
(drawing PL1311).
From the South West, standing in the communal garden, the predominant view
will be of a single, 2/3 storey high building, almost to the full width of the site.
From the South East, standing in the gardens of Walnut Tree Close, the
predominant view will be of a dominant, almost windowless building in red/buff
brick and with a 'grey slate-type roof' (clarification is needed on the roof).
The visual impact, generated by each of this elevation views, is, most certainly,
not in keeping with the character of the immediate semi~rural area, where
individual dwellings dominate. Nor, indeed of the Parish, itself, as a whole.
Furthermore, it is not in sympathy with the Design Criteria and guidelines, as
set out in the Ruscombe Village Design Statement.
RUSCOMBE PARISH COUNCIL RESPONSE:
Ruscombe PC cannot find any justification to give its support to this Planning
Application. Its character and density is totally out of place in the Parish and its
presence will not provide any additional, tangible benefits to our Community.
On this basis, Ruscombe PC strongly recommends REFUSAL.

djh/Ruscombe PC august 2016

147

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 94.
Development
Management
Ref No
N/A

Applicant
Location
Proposal
Type
PS Code
Officer

No weeks on
day of
committee
N/A

Parish

Ward

Listed by:

Swallowfield

Swallowfield

Scheme of
Delegation

Hugh Craddock
Jouldings Lane, Swallowfield
Definitive Map Modification Application
Highways Act 1980
N/A
Rebecca Walkley

FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Postcode N/A

Planning Committee on Wednesday 1 February 2017
Public Rights of Way Officer

SUMMARY
The Authority has a legal duty to determine Definitive Map Modification Applications
once they have been formally submitted.
A Definitive Map Modification Application has been made to both Wokingham Borough
Council and Hampshire County Council to record Jouldings Lane, Swallowfield,
Wokingham on the definitive map and statement as a byway. It is preferable for one
Authority to determine the application. The majority of the claimed route lies within
Hampshire. Wokingham will pay agreed costs to cover the Officer time and legal fees to
Hampshire CC to carry out this work if it is agreed that Hampshire CC will determine the
application. If it is agreed by Hampshire to make the Modification Order and there are
objections to the Order, there may be further costs if the Secretary of State wishes that
the application is determined by an informal hearing or Public Inquiry. Wokingham will
contribute towards costs for the latter if they consider them to be reasonable.
This item is a request for permission to authorise Hampshire County Council to
determine an application for a byway open to all traffic within Wokingham Borough
along Jouldings Lane.

PLANNING STATUS
 N/A

RECOMMENDATION
That Hampshire County Council be given permission to determine the Definitive Map
Modification Application on behalf of Wokingham Borough Council.

PLANNING HISTORY
 N/A

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
None.

149

REPRESENTATIONS
None.
APPLICANTS POINTS
None.
PLANNING POLICY
 N/A
PLANNING ISSUES
1. A Definitive Map Modification Application has been made by the British Horse
Society, to modify the Definitive Map and Statement to include Jouldings Lane. The
Lane is partly within Wokingham Borough Council but largely within the boundary of
Hampshire County Council.
2. The application is to record Jouldings Lane as a byway open to all traffic (BOAT)
from the turning to Jouldings Farm at A, south-westwards to the north side of
Jouldings Ford across the Blackwater River at B (in Wokingham borough), and as a
restricted byway from B south-westwards to the county boundary in Jouldings Ford at
C, and southwards to Well House Lane at D (in Hampshire), see map.
3. The Application is most probably triggered by the impending closure of the Definitive
Map and Statement in 2026 for new claims for rights of way which are based on
historic evidence.
4. Both Hampshire and Wokingham as surveying authorities have a duty to determine
the application which is made under s 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 where there is evidence of a hitherto unrecorded right of way. The application
was made in 2013. However, Hampshire County Council has agreed to determine
both their section of the route together with claimed route in Wokingham.
5. Although the application was not a priority for Hampshire County Council as set out
in their Statement of Priorities, because of the delay the British Horse Society
referred the application to the Secretary of State in 2016 for determination.
6. Hampshire County Council now requires formal approval from Wokingham Borough
Council for them to progress the determination of the application.
7. If approval is granted by Wokingham, Hampshire County Council will determine
whether or not to make the Order. If they believe that there is sufficient documentary
evidence to make an order under s.53 (3)(c) (i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act,
then there may be an objection from the land owner. If this is the case the Order will
be sent to the Secretary of State who may want to resolve the matter by holding an
informal hearing or a Public Inquiry. Wokingham will agree to contribute to the Inquiry
costs as long as the Authority considers that they are reasonable.
8. If Hampshire decides not to make the Modification Order and the applicant appeals,
the Secretary of State may want to resolve the matter by holding an informal hearing
or Public Inquiry. If this was the case, then both surveying authorities would take a
neutral stance at the Inquiry.

150

CONCLUSION
The Authority has a legal duty to determine Definitive Map Modification Applications,
once they have been formally submitted.
This is a request for permission to authorise Hampshire County Council to determine an
application for a byway open to all traffic within Wokingham Borough along Jouldings
Lane. The remainder of the Lane lies within Hampshire County Council.
It is preferable for one Authority to determine the application. Considerably more of the
Lane lies within Hampshire, and therefore approval to confirm that Hampshire County
Council may determine the application on behalf of Wokingham Borough Council is
sought.

CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Green Infrastructure 0118 934 2016

151

Email
publicrightsofway@wokingham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

153

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 95.
Development
Management
Ref No
N/A

Applicant
Location
Proposal
Type
PS Code
Officer

No weeks on
day of
committee
N/A

Parish

Ward

Listed by:

Earley

Maiden Erlegh,
Hawkedon,
Winnersh

Scheme of
Delegation

Wokingham Borough Council
Footpath Earley 15
Diversion Order Amendment
Highways Act 1980
N/A
Rebecca Walkley

FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Postcode N/A

Planning Committee on Wednesday 1 February 2017
Public Rights of Way Officer

SUMMARY
Currently, part of Earley footpath 15 is obstructed. To resolve the obstruction the
Council made the Wokingham Borough Council (Footpath 15 Earley (Part)) Public Path
Diversion Order 2014 under s.119 of the Highways Act 1980). Agreement to the final
width of the right of way will enable the Order to be sent back to the Secretary of State
for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for confirmation or otherwise. If the
Diversion Order is confirmed, a definitive footpath and permissive cycle route will be
created for residents of Earley travelling to the Park and Ride and train stations at
Winnersh. The diverted path will also be well used as a valuable leisure link to leisure
facilities located in Winnersh. The new route would also form part of the Loddon Long
Distance Path.

PLANNING STATUS
 N/A

RECOMMENDATION
That Members agree to a modification of the Diversion Order, the effect of which will be
to reduce the width of the diverted path between Points B-C on the Order to 2.5m and to
authorise officers to submit the modified Order to the Secretary of State for the
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs to be confirmed.
PLANNING HISTORY
 N/A

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
None.

REPRESENTATIONS

155





Ramblers’ Association – no objections
Open Spaces Society – no objections
Earley Town Council – no objections

APPLICANTS POINTS
None.

PLANNING POLICY
 N/A
PLANNING ISSUES
1.
Currently, part of Earley footpath 15 is obstructed between A-D (see plan
appended to this report). It was proposed to resolve the matter by way of a
Diversion Order under s.119 of the Highways Act 1980. The Order was agreed to
be made by Members at the Planning Committee on 8th January 2014. The Order
was made in agreement with the landowners. A Section 106 agreement was also
drawn up between the landowners and Authority regarding the development of the
adjacent land to provide a showroom and forecourt facility; however, the land
owners subsequently objected to the Order.
2.

The description of the new path as set out in Part 2 of the Schedule to the
Diversion provides for a path width of 5.5m between A-B and 3.5m between B-C.
These widths included a 1m width of an existing path (which is currently used by
cyclists and walkers) outside of the site planning application boundary. The
Authority originally intended to fence 0.5m inside the path from the bank edge of
the River Loddon to create a final path width of 5m and 3m respectively. The 3m
width would allow for dual use for cyclists and walkers.

3.

Although originally agreed, the land owner’s new view was that the path should be
2.5m in total width as they understood it to be set out in the s.106 agreement. The
land owner’s understanding was that they owned the existing adjacent path and
therefore this was included in their final calculation. Therefore they would only be
providing 3.5m and 1.5m respectively, on their land.

4.

The Diversion Order therefore requires modification before it may be confirmed
and the new path brought into operation. The Authority could decide to submit the
Order to the SoS to be confirmed without amendment. However, in view of the
landowner’s current objection this would most likely to an Inquiry incurring high
costs for the Authority and there is no guarantee of a successful outcome.

5.

With a view to resolving the situation, a second engineer’s opinion was sought
regarding the necessity for fencing the path at the top of the embankment. The
Council’s Structures Engineer is of the view that ‘the existing footpath above the
embankment is in good condition with straight & true surfacing’. When the path is
fenced then the preferred option would be for concrete footing to the main posts.

6.

This would provide final widths to the path of 4.5m between A and B and 2.5m
between C and D. The land owners have agreed to the path carrying permitted
use for cyclists. A 2.5m width is the minimum width the Authority would
recommend for a shared use path.

156

7.

The Ramblers’ Association and the Open Spaces Society have been consulted on
the modified width between points B-C to 2.5m and they have no objection this
modification. Earley Town Council has no objection to the modified width.

8.

The Land owners have been consulted regarding the new width. They are of the
view that they will agree to the change of width provided that: a) That the whole of
the proposed amended width between A-B and B-C in Part 2 of the order is
outside the boundary fence, as currently exists on site. b)That where there may be
currently any diminution on site of the proposed amended width for A-B and B-C in
Part 2 of the order, this is as a result of side growth (or other feature) on the
eastern side of the proposed path the Council agrees that this is not the
responsibility of the land owner to address.

9.

Resolving this Diversion Order will bring a long standing issue of the obstruction of
this part of footpath Earley 15 to conclusion. In the past, the Authority could not
have been confident that by serving notice on the land owner for obstruction that it
could recover its costs if a site building had to be demolished to reinstate the
public right of way. An alternative path had been available for use. However,
currently, this existing path is not included on the Definitive Map and Statement
(DM&S). This Order provides the legal mechanism for this path, which is currently
well used, to be recorded on the DM&S, if the Diversion Order is confirmed and
resolves the issue of the obstructed path.

CONCLUSION
The Diversion Order cannot currently be confirmed due to the land owner’s objection.
This means that part of Earley 15 is currently obstructed until the Diversion Order is
resolved via a modification to the Order. If Members decide not to agree to modification
then it is likely to go to Public Inquiry to resolve the matter. If Members decide to agree
the modification, this means that it can be sent back to the Secretary of State to be
confirmed. This not only resolves the Diversion Order but adds a currently well used
path to the Definitive Map and Statement.

CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Green Infrastructure 0118 934 2016

157

Email
publicrightsofway@wokingham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

159

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 96.
Development
Management
Ref No
N/A

Applicant
Location
Proposal
Type
PS Code
Officer

No weeks on
day of
committee
N/A

Parish

Wokingham

Wokingham Borough Council
Footpath Wokingham 23 (Tan Hill)
Diversion Order
Highways Act 1980
N/A
Rebecca Walkley

FOR CONSIDERATION BY
REPORT PREPARED BY

Ward

Listed by:

Evendons,
Westcott

Scheme of
Delegation

Postcode N/A

Planning Committee on Wednesday 1 February 2017
Public Rights of Way Officer

SUMMARY
Tan Hill Level Crossing forms part of footpath Wokingham 23, which takes pedestrians
over the London Waterloo to Reading railway line, owned by Network Rail. Network Rail
proposes to replace the level crossing with a bridge which will divert the footpath by
approximately 23 metres. The level crossing has been assessed in terms of risk and
was found to have a rating of C3, according to Network Rail’s all Level Crossing Risk
Model (ALCRM). This comprises a high risk for users. Therefore the proposed diversion
will be made under s.119A of the Highways Act 1980.

PLANNING STATUS
 N/A

RECOMMENDATION
That Members authorise Officers to make a railway crossing diversion order and, if no
objections are received or if any objections are subsequently withdrawn, to confirm the
order as an unopposed order.
PLANNING HISTORY
 N/A

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
None.

REPRESENTATIONS
•
Ramblers’ Association – no objections
•
Open Spaces Society – no objections

Wokingham Town Council – no objections

161

APPLICANTS POINTS
None.

PLANNING POLICY
 N/A
PLANNING ISSUES
1.
Currently, part of footpath Wokingham 23 is a level crossing (Tan Hill) which
crosses over a live rail on the London Waterloo to Reading railway line. The
crossing is considered to carry a high risk of accident according to Network Rail’s
own risk assessment. There was a near miss on the crossing in 2012 and a survey
in 2013 revealed unauthorised use, trespass and criminal activity at Tan Hill.
2.

Nationally, Network Rail, with the support of the Office for Rail Regulation is
running a £130m investment programme to improve safety and reduce risk
wherever a public highway meets a railway across the railway network.

3.

A survey of Tan Hill level crossing was carried out in 2013. The results showed
that the crossing is used by 80-90 pedestrians per day on an average weekday.
This number increases at weekends to an average of 105 per day. A significant
number of unaccompanied children were recorded using the crossing during the
census. Night time use is frequent. Whistle boards are subject to a blanket ban
between 11pm and 7am and trains do not sound their horns. This means that the
sighting deficiencies at this crossing are not mitigated between these hours.

4.

The highest risk to the public is a fatality occurring. The crossing is on a double
track section of the line with a maximum speed of 70mph in both directions.
Network Rail is of the view that the sighting of approaching trains is insufficient
from the crossing due to the presence of the embankment and track curvature.
The key risks identified by Network Rail are deficient sighting of approaching
trains, large numbers of users (which will increase with the development of the
Wokingham Town centre), frequent trains and sun glare. Therefore Network Rail
believes that the replacement bridge is the only safe solution.

5.

Currently there is a temporary closure on part of Wokingham 23 because of two
further near misses reported verbally to WBC by Network Rail this year. The
temporary closure order expires in September 2017.

6.

Wokingham Borough Council is developing the Carnival Pool site. A planning
application will be submitted in 2017. The application will include leisure facilities
and residential use. A new car park is being constructed on site and the
application will include permission for a new double span bridge which will
eventually replace the temporary bridge and the existing bridge already in situ.
The new double span bridge will be Equalities Act Compliant being accessed by
lift in the car park at the eastern end and by ramp at the western access point.

7.

A Memorandum of Understanding has been signed between Network Rail and
WBC which sets out an agreement for such a double span bridge to be jointly
funded in future. A further Diversion Order would be necessary to accommodate
the new route before the double span bridge can be deemed the new highway.
Network Rail has agreed to maintain the temporary bridge as set out in a

162

Memorandum of Understanding dated November 18th 2016.
8.

Part of Footpath Wokingham 23, A-G-F (approximately 37.5 metres) would be
diverted to A-B-D-E-F (approximately 61 metres) via a temporary stepped
footbridge on both sides of the track (see plan appended to this report). The
temporary bridge is not Equalities Act (EA) compliant but it does conform to British
Standard 8300 5.9.2.

9.

The proposed rail crossing diversion order would apply to the section A-G-F and
would be made under section 119A of the Highways Act 1980.The Council cannot
confirm a rail crossing diversion order as an unopposed order unless they are
satisfied that it is expedient to do so having regard to all the circumstances set out
in sub-paragraph (5)(a) and (b), in particular as to a) whether it is reasonably
practicable to make the crossing safe for use by the public and b) what
arrangements have been made to ensure that if the order is confirmed, any
appropriate barriers and signs are erected and maintained.

10.

In response to a) above Network Rail states that the primary benefit of the
diversion is that it removes all risk of an incident at the level crossing as it would
effectively close the level crossing to public traffic. They also believe that misuse,
trespass and criminal activity would be eliminated as the railway would be securely
fenced off. The occurrence of near misses would also be eradicated. The
proposed bridge crossing would eliminate the risk associated with this high speed
railway line that would otherwise solely rely on the individual user having to look
and listen for approaching trains with deficient visibility along the line.

11.

In response to b) above, Network Rail has agreed to provide new signage to notify
users of the diversion. If the Diversion Order was confirmed, these would be in
place for up to 12 months and maintained by Network Rail.

12.

Where a proposed diversion alters the point of termination of the path on a
highway, it can be diverted only to a point which is on the same or a connected
highway which is substantially as convenient to the public. In this case the point of
termination of the path is another point on the same highway and so this
requirement is met.

13.

A railway crossing diversion order may make provision requiring the operator of
the railway to maintain all or part of the public right of way. In this case Network
Rail agrees to maintain the temporary bridge crossing as set out in the MoU.

14.

The Council should also consider any compensation which may become payable
under s.28 on land that may be affected by the Order. The land owner usually
enters into an agreement with the Authority to defray any compensation which
may be payable. In this case the affected land is owned by Network Rail and
Wokingham Borough Council and Network Rail have agreed to indemnify the
council in respect of claims arising under s.28.

15.

The Ramblers’ Association and the Open Spaces Society have made no
objections to the proposed diversion. Wokingham Town Council has made no
comment regarding the application.

16.

Local Members have been consulted. Concerns were raised by Councillor

163

Singleton regarding the steep steps over the temporary bridge. Network Rail
responded to state that the steps confirm to BS8300 the stair riser height is
between 150-170mm. The preferred range for the rise of a step should be
between 150 – 180mm (British Standard), therefore they conform to standard.
Also, the clear span between handrails is 1.8m. The minimum clear span width of
staircase should be 1.6m, again conforming to standard.
17.

It should be noted that the existing section of path to be diverted is currently not
Equalities Act compliant because of kissing gates at the level crossing making it
unsuitable for wheelchair and pushchair access.

18.

All costs for advertising and legal fees for the public path order will be met by the
applicant.

CONCLUSION
The proposed railway diversion order will provide safer access over across the railway
line at Tan Hill, according the Network Rail’s safety auditing procedures. It is expected
that there will be increased pressure from users on this crossing with the development
of Wokingham Town Centre and Wokingham’s Strategic Development Locations,
therefore improved safety is welcomed.
As the owners of the land, Network Rail believe that it would be preferable for users if
the railway crossing could be diverted over a new stepped footbridge to eliminate the
risk associated with crossing this high speed railway line.
As there is a high risk to users of the crossing according the Network Rail’s own risk
assessment, the diversion order is being made under s.119A of the Highways Act 1980.
It is recommended that the Authority be authorised to make a railway crossing diversion
order under s.119A of the Highways Act (1980) and to confirm the order if no objections
are received or if any objections received are subsequently withdrawn.

CONTACT DETAILS
Service
Telephone
Green Infrastructure 0118 934 2016

Email
publicrightsofway@wokingham.gov.uk

164

165

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 97.
QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT MONITORING INFORMATION
PLANNING COMMITTEE Feb 2017
___________________________________________________________________
RFS CASES 1 Oct – 31 Dec 2016
Number on hand 1 Oct

210

Number received

136

Number closed

170

% closed in 8 weeks

56%

Number on hand 31 Dec

176

Reasons for closure
Other
No breach of planning control
Not expedient to pursue
Voluntary compliance
Details submitted (eg minor amendment, details
pursuant to conditions, planning application)
Notices served

Number
10
88
5
29

%
6%
52%
3%
17%

34
4

20%
2%

______________________________________________________________
SUMMARY OF NOTICES/PROSECUTION for period 1 Oct – 31 Decp 2016
Notice Type
Enforcement Notices

Number Served
Bluebell Farm
Montelle Motors Basingstoke Road
18 Barkham Ride
Bluebell Farm

Stop Notices

0

Temporary Stop Notices

0

Breach of Condition Notices

0

Section 215 Notices

0

Prosecutions

0

Direct Action

0

Injunctions/Orders

The Stables Lower Sandhurst
Pineridge

167

APPEALS AGAINST ENFORCEMENT NOTICES 1 Oct – 31 Dec 2016
Number of enforcement appeals lodged: Bluebell Farm, Barkham Ride Total 2
Number of enforcement notice appeals determined: 0
Number of enforcement appeals withdrawn: Val Wyatt Marina shop/café use Total 1
Enforcement appeals public inquiries pending: Pineridge and New Acres (appeals by
Mr Cash) (Mar 2017); Barkham Manor Farm (May 2017), Kybes Lane (May 2017),
Val Wyatt Marina 28 Feb 2017, Warren Farm tbc
SUMMARY OF ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS
None received
Report Author: Marcia Head

168

